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MetaTech

TRADING LIMITED

July 10, 2023

The General Manager
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building,

Stock Exchange Road,

Karachi.

Sub: Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting — MetaTech Trading Limited
Dear Sir,

Enclosed please find a copy of the Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) of MetaTech
Trading Limited formerly MetaTech Health Limited to be held on Monday, Jul 31, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. at
Register Office No. 508, 5th Floor, LSE Building, Aiwan-e-Igbal, being dispatched to shareholders and
to be published in newspaper.

You may please inform the TREC Holders of the Exchange accordingly.

For and on behalf of
MetaTech Trading Limited (Formerly MetaTech Health Limited)

Compan
Encl: as above
Cc:

L The Executive Director/HOD
Offsite-II Department, Supervision Division
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
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NOTICE OF EXTRORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION FOR

AMALGAMATION/MERGER OF

I. METATECH TRADING LIMITED
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

WITH AND INTO

2. BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

(IN TERMS OF PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 279 TO 283
AND ALL OTHER ENABLING PROVISIONS
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Metatech Trading Limited
(formerly Metatch Health Limited)

Board of Directors

1. Mr. Zahid Mahmood Chairman

2. Mr. Mansoor Ahmed Soomro Chief Executive Officer

3. Ms. Maaria Ahmad Non-Executive Director

4, Mr. Sohail Habib Non-Executive Director

5. Ms. Farzin Khan Independent Director

6. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Independent Director

7. Mr. Usman Ali Shah Independent Director

Audit Committee

1. Ms. Farzin Khan Chairman

2. Mr. Mansoor Ahmed Soomro Member

3. Ms. Maaria Ahmad Member

4, Mr. Muhammad Usman Secretary

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Chairman

2. Mr. Sohail Habib Member

3. Ms. Maaria Ahmad Member

4. Mr. Muhammad Usman Secretary

Company Secretary Mr. Muhammad Usman

Auditors Kreston Hyder Bhimji & Co. Chartered Accountant
Legal Advisor Azzizuddin & Shahid Law Associates
Registrar Digital Custodian Company Limited

508, LSE Plaza, Kashmir Egerton Road, Lahore

Registered Office Office # 505, 5tuFloor, LSE Building, Aiwan-e-
Igbal, Lahore.



Big Bird Foods Limited

Board of Directors

H P

Mr. Abdul Basit

Dr. M. Mustafa Kamal
Dr. Abdul Karim

Mr. Salman Basit

Mr., Ahmed Kamal
Mrs. Sadia Karim

Mr. Muhammad Aleem

Company Secretary

Auditors

Legal Advisor

Manufacturing Facility

Registered Office

Chairman / Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive / Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive/ Female Director
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Muhammad Usman

Abdul Khalig & Co., Chartered Accountants
Umer Faroog, Advocate, Lahore

63-Km Multan Road, Lahore

2-A, Ahmad Block, New Garden Tow, Lahore

Compliance to the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
regarding composition of Board of Directors, committees and other matters shall be made before

listing of BBFL at PSX.



BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING FOR APPROVAL OF
SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND RECONSTRUCTION OF
METATECH TRADING LIMITED WITH AND INTO BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED

In compliance with the order dated June 26, 2023 passed by the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore in Civil Original No. 43907/2023, notice is hereby given that the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting (EOGM) of the shareholders of Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL) will be held on Monday
July 31,2023 at 11:00 A.M. at the registered office of the Transferor Company i.e. LSE Plaza,
19-Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore to consider and if deemed fit, adopt, agree and approve the
Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and Reconstruction (‘the Scheme’) of METATECH
TRADING LIMITED (and its members) with and into BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED (and its
members) and to pass the special resolution, with or without any modification, subject to the terms
and conditions entailed in the Scheme.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on June 22, 2023 has approved the Scheme and has
recommended the resolutions as outlined in the Statement of Information accompanying the Notice
to the Members under Section 281(1)(A) / 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 to the Shareholders
for their approval with or without amendment/alteration. The Board of Directors of the Company
has passed the following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT as recommended by the Board, the draft scheme of compromises,
arrangement and reconstruction for amalgamation/merger of Metatech Trading Limited (& its
members) with Big Bird Foods Limited (& its members) along with the Statement of Information
accompanying Notice to the Members in terms of the provisions of Sections 279 to 282 and all
other enabling provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 be and is hereby approved”.

In compliance to the above order of the Honorable High Court, the undersigned Joint Chairpersons
issue and serve this Notice that the EOGM of the Company will be held at the date, time and place

mentioned above. N
il 2005

Mr. Hafi M(lclgl%t‘nmad Tahir Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt
Advocate® P “Court Advocate High Court
M.Q. Law Chamber Axis Law Chambers,

7-Turner Road, Lahore 5- Block S, Gulberg II, Lahore.



Notes:

1. The detailed explanatory statement accompanying the notice to the members is being sent along with
the Notice of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company.

2. Copies of the Scheme, statement u/s 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 recent annual/quarterly accounts
along with all published or otherwise required accounts of all previous periods of the above referred
companies along with financial details on swap ratio, Memorandum and Articles of Association,
requisite approvals and any other related information/ documents may also be inspected/ procured
during the business hours on any working day at Registered Office of the Company from the date of
publication of this Notice till the conclusion of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting.

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from July 24, 2023 to July 31, 2022 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of attending Extraordinary General Meeting. Transfers received in order at
the office of our Company Secretary, 2-Ahmad Block, New Garden Town, Lahore at the close of
business on July 21,2023 will be considered in time to attend the EOGM.

Participation in the Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM)

In the light of COVID-19 situation in the Country, the Company has made the arrangement for the safety
of the members attending the meeting physically. The relevant SOPs should be followed strictly. All
members entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend,
speak and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders
will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Proxy form is available at the Company’s website i.e.,
www.bigbirdfoods.com.

For Attending the Meeting

a. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing his/ her original National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

For Appointing Proxies

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC Regulations,
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

b) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

c) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

d) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

¢) In case of corporate entities, board of directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form to
Company.



‘Consent For Video Conference

Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, if the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the
meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. In this regard, please
fill the following and submit to registered address of the Company at least 10 days before the date of EOGM.
I/'We of , being member(s) of Big Bird Foods Limited holder
Ordinary share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at

W

Mr. Hafiz Muhammad Tahir Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt
Advocate Supreme Court of Pakistan Advocate High Court
M.Q. Law Chamber Axis Law Chambers,

7-Turner Road, Lahore 5- Block S, Gulberg II, Lahore.



METATECH TRADING LIMITED
(FORMERLY METATECH HEALTH LIMITED)
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING FOR APPROVAL OF
SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND RECONSTRUCTION OF
METATECH TRADING LIMITED WITH AND INTO BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED

In compliance with the order dated June 26, 2023 passed by the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore in Civil Original No. 43907/2023, notice is hereby given that the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting (EOGM) of the shareholders of Metatech Trading Limited (META) will be held on
Monday July 31,2023 at 11:30 A.M. at the registered office of the Company i.e. LSE Plaza, 19-
Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal, Lahore to consider and if deemed fit, adopt, agree and approve the
Scheme of Compromises, Arrangements and Reconstruction (‘the Scheme’) of METATECH
TRADING LIMITED (and its members) with and into BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED (and its
members) and to pass the special resolution, with or without any modification, subject to the terms
and conditions entailed in the Scheme.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on June 23, 2023 has approved the Scheme and has
recommended the resolutions as outlined in the Statement of Information accompanying the Notice
to the Members under Section 281(1)(A) / 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 to the Shareholders
for their approval with or without amendment/alteration. The Board of Directors of the Company
has passed the following resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT as recommended by the Board, the draft scheme of compromises,
arrangement and reconstruction for amalgamation/merger of Metatech Trading Limited (& its
members) with Big Bird Foods Limited (& its members) along with the Statement of Information
accompanying Notice to the Members in terms of the provisions of Sections 279 to 282 and all
other enabling provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 be and is hereby approved”.

In compliance to the above order of the Honorable High Court, the undersigned Joint Chairpersons
issue and serve this Notice that the EOGM of the Company will be held at the date, time and place

mentioned above, o
N NS

Mr. Haﬁ% Muhammad Tahir Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt
Advocate “‘ Court Advocate High Court
M.Q. Law Chamber Axis Law Chambers,

7-Turner Road, Lahore 5- Block S, Gulberg II, Lahore.



Notes:

1. The detailed explanatory statement accompanying the notice to the members is being sent along with
the Notice of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company.

2. Copies of the Scheme, statement u/s 281 of the Companies Act, 2017 recent annual/quarterly accounts
along with all published or otherwise required accounts of all previous periods of the above referred
companies along with financial details on swap ratio, Memorandum and Articles of Association,
requisite approvals and any other related information/ documents may also be inspected/ procured
during the business hours on any working day at Registered Office of the Company from the date of
publication of this Notice till the conclusion of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting.

3. Pursuant to “Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018~ issued vide SECP SRO.254(1)/2018 dated
February 22, 2018 members may exercise their right to vote through e-voting in accordance with the
requirements and procedures contained in the aforesaid regulations.

Closure of Share Transfer Books

The share transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from July 24, 2023 to July 31, 2022 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of attending Extraordinary General Meeting. Transfers received in order at
the office of our Share Registrar, Digital Custodian Company Limited, 508, LSE Plaza, Kashmir
Egerton Road, Lahore at the close of business on July 21, 2023 will be considered in time to attend the
EOGM.

Participation in the Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM)

In the light of COVID-19 situation in the Country, the Company has made the arrangement for the safety
of the members attending the meeting physically. The relevant SOPs should be followed strictly. All
members entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend,
speak and vote for him / her. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting. The CDC Accounts Holders
will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. Proxy form is available at the Company’s website i.e.,

https://meta-tech.com.pk/.

For Attending the Meeting

a. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate their
identity by showing his/ her original National Identity Card (“CNIC”) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

b. In case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

For Appointing Proxies

f) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder is and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration detail is uploaded as per the CDC Regulations,
shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

g) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

h) Attested copies of the CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

i) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.



j) In case of corporate entities, board of directors’ resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be submitted (unless provided earlier) along with the proxy form to
Company.

Consent For Video Conference

Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 21 May 2014, if the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the
meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. In this regard, please
fill the following and submit to registered address of the Company at least 10 days before the date of EOGM.
I/We of , being member(s) of Metatech Trading Limited holder
Ordinary share(s) as per Register Folio No. hereby opt for video
conference facility at

W R

Mr. Hafiz Muhammad Tahir Mr. Ahmad Hassan Butt
Advocate Supreme Court of Pakistan Advocate High Court
M.Q. Law Chamber Axis Law Chambers,

7-Turner Road, Lahore 5- Block S, Gulberg II, Lahore.



STATEMENT OF INFORMATION
ACCOMPANYING NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS
UNDER SECTION 281(1)(a) / 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

BACKGROUND

Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL) was incorporated on September 21, 2011 as a private limited company
under Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with enactment of the Companies Act, 2017). Subsequently,
it was converted into public limited on June 21, 2023. The principal business of the Company is to carry
on the business of manufacturer, importer, exporters, suppliers, distributors, agent of dealers/manufacturer
doing business in food and produce of every kind and to act as agent of manufacturers, merchants, traders
and others for the purchase, disposal and sale of all kind of merchandise, goods, commodities, materials
and generally to undertake and to carry out agency work of any kind in any part of the world except
managing Agency business.

METATECH TRADING LIMITED (META) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1953 as a public Limited
Company and its shares were listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited). Due to closure of its plant and disposal of manufacturing facilities, the Company had long become
a dormant Company. However, during the Financial Year 2021-2022, the Board of Directors, while
approving the revival business plan, had decided to change the principal business of the Company to operate
in the technology-enabled healthcare business & services. Upon the unanimous approval of the revival
business plan by the Shareholders, the Company has resumed its commercial / business activities/operations
in the new / revised line of business. Furthermore, the Company's name has also been changed to M/s
Metatech Health Limited after approval from the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan as on
August 02, 2022.

However, due to adverse market and economic conditions Ensmile Studio Business was sold to Modaraba
Al-Mali with the approval of shareholders in their extraordinary general meeting held on March 24, 2023
and principal business of the Company was changed to carry on the business of services legally
permissible, sale, purchase, import, export and to act as general traders, general order suppliers of
products commodities, material legally permissible and name of the Company was changed to Metatech
Trading Limited.

Objective of the Scheme

a) Book value of META per share is Rs. 0.36 whereas its market value is Rs. 7.29 per certificate

(as on June 21, 2023).
Rs.
Shareholders’ Equity 2,692,468
No. of Shares Outstanding 7,432,425

Book Value - Rs. / Share 0.36



d)

e)

META has weak financial position having limited capacity to raise funds. However, BBFL has
strong financial position and shareholders of META can participate in profitability of BBFL
(with healthy EBITDA i.e. earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) soon
after merger. Moreover, technical, financial and sales & marketing expertise of BBFL will be
an added advantage for the operations of META. Thus it is expected to have positive synergies
with this merger for the shareholders of both of the merging entities.

BBFL shall be listed at PSX by virtue of listing status of META and accordingly BBFL would
be having capacity to raise funds from the Market. Capital market can act as a catalyst to grow
of merged company i.e. Big Bird Foods Limited and listing status can give it the requisite fund-
raising power to harness its future diversification plan, if any.

Free float of 30% i.e. volumes will be created by BBFL with good free float once it is listed at
PSX.

The requisite changes in the Memorandum of Association of BBFL shall be made, if required,
to accommodate the intended activities of META (as a transferor) in BBFL (as a transferee).
Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the intended Scheme, META will be
dissolved under the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore without winding up,
and the shares of BBFL shall be issued to the registered members/shareholders of META.

Benefits of the Scheme

In addition to the benefits enumerated in the above section, the merger shall also provide the following

benefits:

To BBFL and its Shareholders:

a.

Operational and strategic synergies in terms of costs, efficiency and fund raising (if any) will
be available to BBFL if all operations of both the companies (i.e., BBFL & META) are
combined.

The proposed merger will provide a broader shareholders’ base which will be conducive in
further fund raising from the capital market, if required.

The combined equity value of the company shall increase to more than PKR 4.61 billion, which
will be beneficial to all shareholders.

Shares of BBFL will be listed on PSX that will provide secondary market for the shareholders.

To META and its Shareholders:

a.

Financial position of META is weak and with this merger shareholders of META will be the
part of strong balance sheet of BBFL.

The combined value (based on book value) of BBFL shares that are being given to META's
shareholders under the SWAP ratio is expected to be in excess of the market value of META's
shares. Thus, the shareholders of META shall gain from the merger transaction.

It is expected that trading volumes (at PSX) will be improved after the proposed merger which
will provide liquidity and tradability to the shareholders/investors.



SPECIAL BUSINESS

Proposed Resolutions as an integral part of Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and
Reconstruction for Amalgamation/Merger (‘the Scheme’) to be adopted by the

Shareholders:

Agenda item — 1 : and the specific resolution required to be approved
by the Shareholders

Type of resolution
to be passed

To approve the Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction for

Special Resolution /

Under Section 279
and all other
enabling provisions
of Companies Act,
2017

Amalgamation/Merger of METTECH TRADING LIMITED (and its
members) with and into BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED (and its members)

In terms of provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and all other enabling
provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, and, for this purpose, pass the
resolutions, as special resolutions (as attached in the Statement of
Information, accompanying Notice to the Members under Section
281(1)(a) / 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017) , with or without
modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s), and to approve the consequent
alterations in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, subject to requisite approvals, if any;

To grant authorization (singly) to the Chief Executive Officer and
Company Secretary of the Transferee Company i.e. Big Bird Foods
Limited to undertake and implement all relevant steps/actions, required
to be completed, as a consequence of the approval of the above special
resolutions.”

Special Resolution /
Under Section 279
and all  other
enabling provisions
of Companies Act,
2017

Notes:
I. The resolutions are meant for enabling actions under Sections 279 to 283 of the Companies Act,

2017 and the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
2. The above resolutions may be passed by the shareholders in their absolute discretion, with or

without modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s), if any.
AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 - SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

1. RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies, Act, 2017 and
other applicable provisions, if any, and subject to the approval of the Honorable Lahore High Court,
the proposed merger of Metatech Trading Limited (‘Transferor Company’) with and into Big Bird
Foods Limited (‘Transferee Company’) along with the draft Scheme of Amalgamation/ Merger/ as
placed before the Shareholders, be and are hereby approved.

2. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby accorded to implement the
Scheme and accordingly application/petition shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan, honorable Lahore High Court, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and
any other competent authority(ies).




3. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the shareholders, be and is hereby granted to the
. terms and conditions as set out in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation/ Merger, which includes, inter-
alia, the following:

a) Thatall asset and liabilities including Income Tax and all other statutory liabilities of the Transferor
Company will be transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company (as described in Schedule — |
of the Scheme);

b) That all the employees of the Transferor Company, if any, in service on the date immediately
preceding the date on which Scheme finally takes effect i.e. the Effective Date, shall become the
employees of the Transferee Company (as described in Schedule — 4 of the Scheme) on such date
without any break or interruption in service and upon terms and conditions not less favorable than
those subsisting in the concerned Transferor Company on the said date;

¢) That the Scheme of Amalgamation / Merger shall be effective from Effective Date, the provisions
of the Scheme, so far as they relate to transfer and vesting of the business and undertaking(s) of the
Transferor Company (as described in Schedule — 1 of the Scheme) into the Transferee Company,
shall be applicable and come into operation from the Sanction Date or such other date as the
Honorable Lahore High Court may approve;

d) That the Transferee Companies shall allot shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company in
accordance to the SWAP Ratio as per the Valuation Report given by the Abdul Khaliq,
Chartered Accountants (or any other renowned practicing-chartered accounting firm), as tabled
before the meeting and taken note of: and

¢) That the listing status of the Metatech Trading Limited (META) with the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX) and eligibility status (of META) with Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (CDC) along with all privileges, rights and liabilities of the Transferor Company
with PSX and CDC shall be transferred in the names of the Transferee Company (as described in
the Scheme).

f) Effective date of the Scheme is March 31, 2023 or any other date which is determined by the
honorable Lahore High Court. However, this will not affect the SWAP ratio determined in the
Scheme. Any difference, if any, will be adjusted either in goodwill or merger reserves, as the case
may be. Moreover, actual transfer will be effectuated on sanctioned date, when the Scheme shall
become the operative (as defined in Article — 3 of the Scheme). No further approval shall be
required from the shareholders of the Company.

g) SWAP ratio will not be changed unless directed (and accepted by the Company) by the honorable
Lahore High Court or the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, as the case may be.
Any difference, if any, will be adjusted either in goodwill or merger reserves, as the case may be.
No further approval shall be required from the shareholders of the Company.

4. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies,
Act, 2017 and other applicable provisions, necessary joint/separate application(s), petition(s) and may
be moved by the Chief Executive Officer or the Company Secretary singly (of transferee Company)
before the Honorable Lahore High Court, for seeking its directions as to convening, holding and
conducting of any meeting(s) of the shareholders and creditors (if any) or dispensation thereof, as the
case may be, including for the appointment of Chairman, issuance and dispatch of notices and
placement of advertisements and for seeking any other directions as the Honorable Lahore High Court
may deem fit and proper and for seeking the approval of the proposed amalgamation/ merger and the
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation / Merger.”

5. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors to amend
the swap ratio, if advised or directed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan or
honorable Lahore High Court, as the case may be, for the issuance of shares to the shareholders of the
shareholders of the Metatech Trading Limited.




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the shareholders, be and hereby authorize singly the Chief Executive
or the Company Secretary of the Transferee Company, to undertake and implement all relevant
steps/actions, required to be completed, as a consequence of the approval of the above special
resolutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Exccutive Officer or the Company Secretary of the
transferee Company, be and are hereby singly authorized to submit the certified true copies of the
resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company to the Honorable Lahore High Court, the
Registrar of Companies, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited and such other competent authorities, if necessary.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer, or the Company Secretary of the

transferee Company, be and are hereby singly authorized:

a) To sign, submit or present necessary applications, petitions, supplementary applications/petitions,
summons, deeds, documents, instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to swear affidavits or execute
bonds for the above-mentioned amalgamation/ merger;

b) To engage any counsel(s)/advocate(s)/consultant(s) to file the application(s) and petition(s) before
the Honorable Lahore High Court, and to do other needful tasks;

¢) To appear [in person or through representative(s)] before the Honorable Lahore High Court; the
Offices of the Registrar of the Companies; the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan;
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and/or before any other authority or person in connection with
the aforesaid amalgamation/merger; and

d) To do any other act, deed or thing which may be ancillary or incidental to the above-mentioned
matter or which may otherwise be required for the aforesaid purpose.



Financial Statements

1. Big Bird Foods Limited
2. Metatech Trading Limited

Scheme of Compromises, Arrangement and Reconstruction

As attached

(including SWAP ratio certificate from external Auditors)



FOR CORPORATE MEMBER
(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

Date:
The Secretary

Limited.

Lahore.

Sub:  Authorization to attend the EOGM of the Company on behalf of Body Corporate
(Member) of the Company.

Dear Sir,

Please be informed that Mr./Mrs./Ms. , S/o W/o Dlo , holder of CNIC

No. , has been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of our company vide resolution dated
to participate and vote on resolutions included in the agenda of the notice of EOGM of

Limited scheduled for July 31, 2023 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled thereof.

Resolution of the Board dated in original duly signed and stamped is attached herewith for reference

and record,

Yours truly,

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company

......................................................................................................................................

SPECIMEN RESOLUTION
(ON THE LETTERHEAD OF THE COMPANY)

The following resolution has been passed by the Board of Directors of (Name of the Company) in its meeting held on
, at ;

Resolved that Mr./Mrs./Ms. , S/o W/o Dlo , be and is hereby authorized on behalf of
the Company to participate and vote for resolutions included in the agenda of the notice of EOGM
of Limited scheduled for July 31, 2023 or at any date adjourned/rescheduled thereof.

Certified True Copy.

Authorized Signatory Seal of the Company
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SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION FOR

4R -

AMALGAMATION MERGER OF

1. METATECH TRADING LIMITED
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

WITH AND INTO

2. BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
{AND ITS MEMBERS)

(IN TERMS OF PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND ALL OTHER ENABLING PROVISIONS
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017)

The Board of Directors of Big Bird Foods Limited and Metatech Trading Limited in their respective
meeting held on June 22, 2023 have approved the Scheme of Compromises, -Arrangement and
Reconstruction for Amalgamation/Merger of Metatech Trading Limited {as a transferor) with and Into Big
Bird Foods Limited {as a transferee} and have recommended the resolutions {that will be placed in the
Statement of Information accompanying the Notice to the Members under Section 281{1){A) / 134{3) of
the Compandes Act, 2017} to the respective shareholders for their approval with or without
amendment/alteration as and when meeting is convened by the honorable Lahore High Court,

The Board of Directors of the Company has passed the following resolutions:

"RESOLVED THAT the draft scheme of merger Metatech Trading Limited [& its Members) with and into
the Big Bird Foods Limited in terms of the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and all other enabling
provisions of the Compandes Act, 2017 be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive of the Transferee Company, be and Is hereby autharized
toy shgn, submit or present necessary applications, petitions, supplementary applications/petitions, |
summaons, deeds, documents, instruments, refoinders, replies, and to swear affidavits or execute bonds
for the above-mentioned amalgamation/ merger to the competent authorities including but not limited
to honorable Lahore High Court, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Competition
-Commission of Pakistan.”

The Board of Directors of the respective Companies (i.e. Metatech Trading Uimited and Big Bird Foods
Limited) have also passed the following resolutions {as an integral part of the Scheme) for the subseqguent
approval (with and without amendments/ alterations) from their respective shareholders in the-rr
farthwnln-g meeting as and when meeting is convened by the honorable Lahore High Court.
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RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provislons of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies, Act. 2017 and
other applicable provisions, if any, and subject to the approval of the Honorable Lohore High Court,
the proposed merger of Metatech Trading Limited (Transferor Company’) with and into Big Bird
Foods Limited (Transferee Company’) along with the draft Scheme of Amalgamation/ Merger/ as
placed before the Shareholders, be and are hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and Is hereby accorded to implement the Scheme and
accordingly application/petition shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, honorable Lahore High Court, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and amy other competent
authoritylies],

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the shareholders, be and Is hereby granted to the terms
and conditions as set out in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation/ Merger, which includes, inter-alla,
the following:

a}  That all asset and liabilitles iIncluding Income Tax and all other statutory liablliities of the Transferor
Company will be transferred to and vest in the Transferes Company (as described in Schedule - 1
of the Scheme};

bi That all the employees of the Transferor Company, If any, in service on the date Immnediately
preceding the date on which Scheme finally takes effect Le. the Effective Date, shall become the
empioyees of the Transteree Company (as described in Schedule — 4 of the scheme) on such date
withaut any break or interruption in service and upon terms and conditions not less favarable
than those subsisting in the concerned Transferor Company on the said dake,

€} That the Scheme of Amalgamation / Merger shall be effective from Effective Data, the provisions
of the Scheme, so far as they relate to transfer and vesting of the business and undertaking(s) of
the Trensferor Company (as described in Schedule - 1 of the Scheme) into the Transferee
Company, shall be applicable and come into operation from the Sanction Date or such other date
a5 the Honorable Lahore High Court may approve; ;

d) That the Transferee Companies shall allot shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company
in accordance to the SWAP Ratio as per the Valuation Report given by the Abdul Khalig and Co.,
Chartered Accountants {or any other renowned practicing-chartered accounting firm), as tabled
before the meeting and taken note of; and

¢) That the listing status of the Metatech Trading Limited (META) with the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX) and eligibility status (of META] with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(CDC] along with all privileges, rights and liabilities of the Transferor Company with PSX and CDC
shiall be transferred in thenames of the Transferee Company (as described in the Scheme).

fl Effective date of the Scheme is March 31, 2023 or any other date which Is determined by the
henorable Lahore High Court. However, this will not affect the SWAP ratio determined in the
Scheme. Any difference, if any, will be adjusted either in goodwill or merger reservias, as the case
may be. Mereover, actual transfer will be effectuated on sanctioned date, when the Scheme shall
become the operative (as defined In Article = 3 of the Scheme). No further approval shall be
required from the shareholders of the Company. P | !
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g} SWAP ratio will not be changed unless directed (and accepted by the Company] by the honorable
Lahore High Court or the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, as the case may be.
Any difference, if any, will be adjusted either in goodwill or merger reserves, as the case rriay b,
Mo further approval shall be reguired from the shareholders of the Company,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 279 to 283 of the Caormpanies, act, |
2017 and other applicable provisions, necessary joint/separate application(s), petition(s) and may be |
mowed by the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary [aintly Before the Honorable Lahore
High Court, for seeking its directions as to convening, holding and conducting of any meeting(s) of the
shareholders and creditors (if any) or dispensation thereof, as the case may be, including for the
appointment of Chalrman, lssuance and dispatch of notices and placement of advertisements and for
seeking any other directions as the Honorable Lahore High Court may deem fit and proper and for
seeking the approval of the proposed amalgamation/ merger and the proposed Schems of
Amalgamation / Merger.”

- RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and Is hereby given to the Board of Directors to amend the
swap ratio, If advised or directed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan or honorable B
Lahore KHigh Court, as the case may be, for the issuance of shares to the shareholders of the
shargholders of the Metatech Trading Limited. ‘

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the sharsholders, be and hereby authorize jointly the Chief Executive
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company, to undertake and implement all relevant
stepsfactions, required to be completed, as a consequence of the approval of the sbove special
resolutions,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary of the Transferse
Company, be and are hereby singly authorized to submit the certified true coples of the resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company to the Hanorable Lahore High Court, the Registrar of
Companies, the Securties and Exchange Commizsion of Pakistan, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
and such other competent authoritles, if necessary,”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Executive Officer, or the Company Secretary of the Transferse

Company, be and are hereby singly authorized:

8] To sign, submit or present necessary  applications, petitions,  supplementary
appiications/pefitions, summons, deeds, documents, Instruments, rejoinders, replies, and to
swirar affidavits or execute bonds for the above-mentioned amalgamation/ merger:

bl To engage any counsel{sl/advocate[s)/consultant{s) 1o file the application(s) and petition(s)
biefore the Honorable Lahore High Court, and to do other needful tasks;

€] To sppear [in person or through representative(s)] before the Henarable Lahore High Court; the
Offices of the Registrar of the Companies; the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
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Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and/or before any other authority or person In connection with
the aforesald amalgamation/merger: and

d] Todo any other act, deed or thing which may be ancillary or incidental to the above-mentioned
matter or which may otherwise be required for the aforesald purpose.
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SCHEME OF COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENT AND RECONSTRUCTION FOR
AMALGAMATIONMERGER OF

1. METATECH TRADING LIMTTELD
(AND ITS MEMBERS)

WITH AND INTO

2. BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
{AND TS MEMBERS)

{IN TERMS OF PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 279 TO 283 AND ALL OTHER ENABLING
FROVISIONS

2 O THE COMPANTES ACT, 3017
The Boerd of Directors of Big Bird Foods Limited and Metatech Trading Limited in their respective
meeting held on June 23, 2023 have approved the Scheme of Compromises, Ammangement and
Reconatruction for Amalgamation/Merger of Melatech Trading Limited {a< 2 tranaferor) with and into
Bip, Bird Foods Limited (as a trinaferee) and have reconmmencded the resolutions (that will be plaged in
the Sttt of Information scoomparying the Motice bo the Members under Section 28T(THA) [ T34(3)
ol the Compandes Act, 2017} o the respective shareholders for their approval with or without
smendment/alteration as and when meeting is convened by the honorable Lahore High Court.

The Board of Direclors of the Company has passed the following resohationa:

"RESOLVED THAT the draft schame of merger Metatech Trading Limdted (& its Members) with and
into the Big Bird Foods Limited in terems of the provisions of Sections 279 to 283 and all cther enabling
provisians of the Companies Act, 2017 be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive or e Company Secrotary of the Transferor Company,
be and is horeby singly autharized to sign, submit or present pecessary applications, petitons,
supplementary applications/petitions, summaons, deeds, documents, instruments, rejoinders, replies,
and to swear affidovits or execute bonds for the above-mentioned amalgamation’ merger o the
competent authorities incleding but not limited to honorable Lahore High Court, Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Competition Comumnission of Paklstan.™

The Board of Dineciors of the respeciive Compandes (L= Metatech Trading Limited wnxd Big Bird Foods
Limited) have alse passed the following resohutions (as an integral part of the Scheme) for the
subsequent approval {with and without amendments! alterations) from their respective sharchokders
in their fortheoming meeting as and when meeting is comvemed bry the honorable Lahore High Court.

1. RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 279 4o 283 of the Compandes, Act, 2017
and other applicable provisions, if any, and subject to the approval of the Honorsble Lahore High
Crnsrt, the proposed merger of Metatech Trading Limited { Transferor Company’) with and into
Big Bird Foods Limited ("Transferee Company”) along with the draft Schewne of Amalgamation/
Morger/ as placed before the Sharehalders, be and sre hereby approved,
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RESOLVED FURTITER THAT approval be and is hereby acooirded o implement the Schemie and
accordingly application/petition shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Paldstan, honorable Lahore High Court, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limibed and any other compebent
auitharibybes).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the shareholders, be and i3 heseby granted to the
birma and conditions s set oult in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation” Merger, which includes,
infer-alia, the Following

a] Th.:tll!nﬂ:rdihhiﬂ.liuilﬂu:ﬂng Incoene Tax and all other stanubory Habdlites of the
Fransferor Company will be transferred to and vest in the Transferes Company (25 desoribed
in Schedulbe = T of the Scheme);

b} That all the eoplovees of the Transferor Company, i any, in service on the date imamediately
preceding the date on which Scheone Bnally mkes effect i the Effective Date, shall beoome the
employees of the Transferee Company (a8 described in Schedule - 4 of the Scheme) on such
date without any bresk or interrupbion in servioe and wpon terms and conditions not less
fevorable than those subsisting in the concerned Transfercr Company on the said date:

€} That the Scheme of Amalgamation [ Merger shall be effective from Effective Date, the
Fmvi.nnm:ufﬂuﬁd‘mu; mflruﬂwrﬂlhmmudvqlhlﬁﬂﬁ!mm-ﬂ
undertaking{s) of the Tranaferor Company {as desoribed in Schedule = 1 of the Scheme] into
the Transferee Company, shall be applicable and come into operation from the Sanction Date
or snch ather date as the [onorable Lahore High Court may approve;

d:l That the Transferse 'l:m‘q:mr.i:s shall allot shares o the sharcholders of the Troansieror
Cirmpany in sccordance bo the SWAP Ralbio ay per the Valuation Report given by the Abdul
Khalig, Chartered Accountants {or amy sther renowned pracicing-chartered sccounting firm),
a5 tabled before the meeting and taken note of; and

ej That the Heting stahes of the Metatech Trading Limidted (META) with the Makistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX) and eligibility status (of META) with Central Depositary Company of
Pabistan Limnited (CDC) along with all privileges, rights and Babilities of the Tramsderor
Commpany with FEX and CDC shall be transferved in the names of the Transierse Company (as
described in the Scheme)

f)  Effective date of the Schemse is March 31, 2023 or any other date which s determidned by’ the
Fusrurable Latore High Court. Howewer, this will nol affect the SWARP ratio determined in the
Schime. Any difference, if any, will be adiusted either in goodwill or merger reserves, as the
case may be. Moreover, sctiaal trareher will be effectuated on sanctioned date, when the Scheme
shall become the operative {as defined in Article = 3 of the Scheme). No further approval shall
b required from the sharehobders of the Compary, |

g) SWAP ratic will not be changed unless directed {and accepted by the Company) by the
honorable Labore Tigh Court or the Secarities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, as the
case may be. Any difference, if any, will be adfusted either.in goodwill or menger reserves, as
the case may be. Mo further approval shall be required from the sharcholders of the Campany.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT paersuant fo the prowision of Section 279 to 283 of the Companies,
Ao, 2007 wind wther applicable provisiors. necesary pinbseparate application(s), petitions) and
may e moved by the Chicf Executive Officer of the Company Secretary singly before the
Honorable Lehore High Court for seeking ity directions a8 to conrrering, holding and conducting
of any meeting(s) of the shareholders and creditors (if any| or dispensation thereof, a4 the case may
be, inchusding for the appointment of Chairman, issuance and dispatch of notices and p]-m:mm::f
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advertisemnents and for sceking any other directions as the Honoreble Lahore High Court may
dearn fit and proper and for seeking the approval of the proposed amalgamationy’ merger and the
proposed Scheme of Amalgamation [ Merger,”

5. RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval be and iz hevebrr given to fhe Board of Directors to amend
the swap ratio, if advised or directed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan or
honorable Lahore Fligh Courl, as the cese may be, for the ismance of shares to the shereholders of
the shareholders of the Metatech Trading Limited.

& RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ithe shareholders, be and hereby authorize singly e Chisf
Executive or the Company Secrelary of the Company, to undertake and implement all relevant

steps/actions, required to be cosmpleted. as a consequence of the approval of the above special
reschiticrs,

7. RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the Chiefl Exccutive Officer or the Company Sécretary of the
Transferor Compary, be and are hereby singly suthorized fo submit the certified true copies of the
resolithons passed by the sharcholders of the Company to the Honarable Lahare High Court, the
Hﬂgilﬂ'l'-lr of Cﬂmpﬂdﬁ.‘a i Seecuarities amwd i'_'u:d'l.n\ﬁl Commission of Paklstan, Pabfstan Sieck
Exchange Limited and such other competnt authorities, if necesaary

£ RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Chief Excoutlve Officer, or the Comnpany Secretary of the

Transferor Company, be and are hereby singly authorized:

a} To ‘sign, submit o present necessary applications, pelions, supplementory
applications/petitions, summons, deeds, documents, instruments, rejoinders, replics, and to
swiar ilfidaviiss or execobe bonds for the above-maentiomed amalgamation/ merges;

b} To enpgape smy counsel{sladvocatefsiioonsultantis) to fle the application{s} and petitionds}
hednre the Homooabde Lahore High Court, and to do other neediful rasis:

€} Toappear [in person o through representative(s)] before the Honorable Lahose High Court;
the Offices of the Fegistrar of the Companics; the Securities and Exchange Commilssion of
Pakdistan; Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and/or before any other suthority or persom in

: comnechion with e aferesaid amalgamationmerger; and

d} Todo any other act, deed or thing which may be ancillary or Inckdental ts the sbave-menthoned

matter o which may othervwise be required for e aforesasd purpose.

CERTIFICATE

The above extract is the certified true copy of reselution, which was passed by the Board of Directors
of MetaTech Trading Limited in their meeting held on fun 23, 2003 st Corporate office of the Company
which is situated at 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-elghal, Lahore,
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{(AND ITS MEMBERS)

(IN TERMS OF PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 179 TO 283
AND ALL OTHER ENABLING PROVISIONS
OF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2017)
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1. BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
BACKGROUND

Big Bird Foods Limited (BRFL) was incorporated on September 21,2011 asa private limited company
under Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with enactment of the Companics Act, 2017). Subsequently,
it was converted info public limited on June 21, 2023, The principal business of the Company is to carry
ot the business of manufacturer, importer, exporters, suppliers, distributors, agent of dealers/manufacturer
doing business in food and produce of every kind and to act as agent of manufacturers, merchants, traders
and others for the purchase, dispoeal and sale of all kind of merchandise, goods, commoditics, materials
mdgemmnﬂytummksmﬂmmmtwmﬂmykhﬂhmpmﬁ&mwﬂm
managing Agency busimess. :

The Corporate Unigue Identification (CUIN} of BBFL is 0077146,

Registerad office - 2-A, Ahmad Block, New Garden Tow, Lahore
Manufacturing Facility - 63-Km Multan Road, Lahore

Externil Anditors - Abdul Khaliq & Co., Chartered Accountanis
Legal Advisors - Umier Farcog, Advocate, Lahore

Financial position (as per audited accounts) of the Company as on June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Jume 30, 2022
Rs.

ASSETS
Mon-current asscis
Property, plant and equipment 7,294,903,142 |
Capital work in progress 101,141,913
Long term loans and advances 1,620,241
Long tern deposits and prepayments | 13,844,027

7.411,509.323
Current assets
Stores and spares 310,620,578
Stock in trade 743,994,004
Trade debts 910,991,108
Loans and advances 164,557,752
Deposits and prepayments 1,264,354
Short term investment 34825,1
Cash and bank balances 304416

77777770 Ll
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2,236,847,247
TOTAL ASSETS 23 9,648,356.570
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
;i Share capital and reserves
|
q‘ Authorized share capital 3,000,000,000
i .
.i Issues, subscribed and paid up capital - : - 970,930,000
Accumulated [oss (1,902, 792,080)
Surplus on revaleation surplus of operating fixed assets 3,557.950,775
Merger rescrves
Loan from director - related party 16,000,000
4,642,088,695
Non-current liabilities g
Long term finance - secured 1,439,857,610
Deferred markup 258,872,528
Liminishing musharaka finance: 405,432,857
| Deferred taxation - net 814,619,796
| Employees’ benefit obligations 78,110,372
'r 2.996,893,163
Current liabilities
Current and overdue portion of current liabilitics _B0Z,253,629
Short lerm borrowings 361,769,415
Trade and other payables 457,520,421
Accrued and deferred mark-up 387822247
2,009,374,712
| TOTAL FQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,648,356,570
Ratio Analysis
Book Value Bz chare L5557
Current ratio times 1.11
Deebt-equity ratio times 1.08

L e

-

&

1-""I




P w8

1. METATECH TRADING LIMITED
BACKGROUND

METATECH TRADING LIMITED (META) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1953 as a public Limited
Cmm_vmdiudwuwmliﬁedmﬂuKwﬂ&hk&mhm{m?ﬂmﬁwkm;m#
Limited). Due to closure of its plant and disposal of manufactaring facilities, the Company had long become
2 dormant Company. However, during the Financial Year 2021-2022, the Board of Directors, while
approving the revival business plan, had decided to change the principal business of the Company to operate
in the technology-enabled healthcare business & services. Upon the unanimous approval of the revival
business plan by the Shareholders, the Company has resumed its commercial / business activities/operations
in the new / revised ﬁnn&fbusimFurﬂtmmc,fhacmmnﬁmthuhubmuhngndmw‘:
MeraTech Health Limited after approval from the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan as on
August 02, 2022,

Hewever, due to adverse market and economic conditions Ensmile Studio Business was sold to Moderzha
Al-Mali with the approval of shareholders in their extraordinery gencral meeting held on March 24, 2023
and principal business of the Company was changed to carry on the business of services legally parmissible,
sale, purchase, import, export and to act as generul traders, general order suppliers of products commodities,
material legally permissible and name of the Company was changed to MetaTech Teading Limited.

MetaTech Health Limited has been changed to MetaTech Trading Limited vide SECP"s Certificate No.
BO51595 dated May 18,2023,

The Corporate Unique Identification (CUIN) of META is 0000637 and the date of incorporation is
December 19, 1953,

Registered office - Room No. 508, LSE Plaza, Khaysban-e-Aiwan-Igbal, Lahore.
External Auditors - Krestor Hyder Bhimiji & Co., Chartered Accountanis
Legal Advisors - Axzizuddin & Shahid Law Associates

Financial position (as per unaudited published accounts) of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is as
follows:

March 31, 2023
Rs.
CURRENT ASSETS
Refirnd due from Govt — net 2222 780 /
Receivable from Modaraba Al-Mali 469 HEY \}}U
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Authorized Share Capital 600,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up-capital 74,324,250
Accumulated (Loss) {71,531,782)

2,692,468

3. OBJECTIVES AND BENEFITS

1) Objective of the Scheme

a. Book value of META per share is Rs, 0.36 whereas its market value is Rs. 7.29 per certificate

(az on June 21, 2023).

E=.

Shareholders’ Equity 2,692,468
' Me. of Shares Outstanding 7.432.425
| Book ‘u’nlluc - Rz, / Share 0.36

- META has weak financial position having limited capacity to raise funds. However, BBFL has

strong financial position and shareholders of HE.TJ. can participate in profitability of BBFL
{with healthy EBITDA i.e. eamings before interest, twxes, depreciation and amortization) soon
after merger. Moreover, technical, financial and sales & marketing expertise of BBFL will be
an sdded advantage for the operations of META. Thus it is expected to have positive synergies
with this merger for the shareholders of both of the merging entities. ;

. BBFL shall be listed at P5X by virtue of listing status of META and accordingly BBFL would

be having capacity to raise funds from the Market. Capital market can sct a5 a catalyst to grow
of merged company i.e. Big Bird Foods Limited and listing status can give it the requisite fund-
raising power to hamess its future diversification plan, if any.

. Free float of 30% i.e. volumes will be created by BBFL with good free float once it is listed

at PSX.

The requisite changes in the Memorandum of Association of BBFL shall be made, if requirad,
to accommodate the intended activities of META (as a transferor) in BBFL (as & transferee).
Upon the completion of merger / amalgamation through the intended Scheme, META will be
dissolved under the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore without winding up,
and the shares of BOFL shall be issued to the registered members/shareholders of META.

2) Benefits of the Scheme

benefits:

To BEFL and its Sharcholders:

In addition to the benefits enumerated in the above section, the merger shall also provide the following

8. Operational and strategic symergics in terms of coms, efficiency and fund raising (if any) will
be available to BBFL if all operations of both the companies (i.e., BBFL & META) are

combined.

T
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{ b. The proposed merger will provide a broader shareholders” base which will be conducive in
| further fund raising from the capital markes, if required.

? ¢. The combined equity valoe of the company shall increase to more than FKR 4.61 billion, which
| will bé beneficial to all shareholders,

' d. ShmuﬂfBBFI..willHMnnFﬂMwiHm‘ﬂtmmﬁmmmm

To META and its Shareholders:

a. Financial position of META is weak and with this merger shareholders of META will be the
£ port of strong balance sheet of BBFL.

' b. The combined value (based on book value) of BBFL shares that are being given to META's
shareholders under the SWAP ratio is expecied to be in-excess of the market value of META's
shares. Thus, the shapeholders of META shall gain from the merger transaction.

c. It i3 expocted that trading volumes (at PSX) will be improved after the proposed merger which
will provide liquidity and tradability to the shareholders/investors.
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ARTICLE - 1 - DEFINITIONS

1. Inthis Scheme of Arrangement (including the preamble hereto), unless the subject or context otherwise
requires, the following expressions shall bear the meanings specified against them below:

{n) “Act” means the Companics Act, 2017,

b} “BHFL” means the BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED, a public limited company fermed under the
Companies Ordinance, 1934;

(c) “Commission” means the Securitics and Exchange Comumission of Pakistan incheding its regional
offices;

{(d)  “Completion” or “Completion Date” means date when undertaking and business are transferred
{as per Article - 3) from Transferor to the Transferee within 120days of Sanction Date and shares
are issued’ swapped / cancelled as per SWAP ratio determined in this Scheme (as per Article-4);

{(¢)  “Court” means the Lahore High Coust, Lahore or any other court of competent jurisdiction for the
time being having jurisdiction under Sections 279 1o 283 of the Companies Act, 2017 in connection
with this Scheme;

T S R

(i “Effective Date”™ means 00:00 hours as on March 31,2023 or such other date as may be approved
by the Court on the request of the parties to this Scheme;

(g1 “META™ means METATECH TRADING LIMITED, & public limited listed company formed
under Companies Act, 2017;

| {h) “PSX™ means Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited;

(i}  "Rs.” or “PKR" shall mean “Rupees™, being the legal tender money of the Islamic Republic of
Pakiztan;

(i}  “Samction Date” shall have the same meaning ascribed thersto in Article 6 (T)(iv), being the day
on which the honorable Lahore High Court approves the Scheme and on which day the Scheme
becomes operative; .

| ik) “Scheme™ means this Scheme of Ammangement in its present form, with any modification thereofl
or addition hereto, as approved by the Court and/or the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan andfor the general meeting of members of the respective companies;

(1) “SECP” mcans the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan;
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(m)

“Underiaking and Business - META" mcans the assets, undertaking, business, liabilities of the
METATECH TRADING LIMITED (including shares allocated under the Scheme) as more
particularly described in Schedule - 1 hereto,

The headings and marginal notes are inserted for convenience and shall not affect the construction of
this Scheme,
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ARTICLE = 1 ~ SHARE CAPTTAL AND MANAGEMENT

e

L BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 3,000,000,000 divided into 300,000,000 of ordinary
shares of Rs. | 0V- each, cut of which 297,093,000 crdinary shares are fully paid and issued as follows:

Moo of Shares lesoped lssued for/Against Hs,
797,093,000 | Cash 2,970,930,000
= | Consideration other than Cash -
= | Bonus Shares -
297,093,000 2,970,930,000

{#) Pattern of Sharcholding of the Shares held by the Shareholders as of Effective Date is as follows:

Category Mo, of Shares % holding
Mr. Abdul Basit Sponsors 32,680,230 11.00%
Mr. Salman Basit Sponsors ; 36,641,470 12.33%
Dr. Abdul Karim Sponsors i 48,525,190 16.33%
Meirs. Sadin Karim Sponsars 2,970,530 1.00%
e, M. Mustafs Kol Sponsors 45,554,260 15.33%
Mr. Ahmed Kamal Sponsors 23,767 440 8.00%
Mr. Muhemmad Aleem Sponsors 17,825,580 6.00%
Public and Invesiors Dihers Investors 89127500 30, 00%
297,093,000

{b) Total number of sharcholders of BBFL, as of the Effective Date is 07 (excluding others/investors),

(¢) The Share Capital of the BBFL will not be changed for Ordinary Shares under the Scheme as described
in Article-3. However, the patiern of shareholding can be changed till the Sanction Date. Moreover,
30% free Noat shall be created by Company by disposing of requisite shares to the investors or others
before listing of BBFL at PSX. This is shown under pocl of OthersInvestors Category.

(d} Category of Othera shall be counted in free flost once BBFL is listed ai PSX after the approval of the
Scheme,

() The Board of Directors of the Company (BBFL) before the Scheme is as follows:

Sr. Na. Name of Iirector Category
1. Mr. Abdul Basit Chairman / Non-Executive Director
2. Dr. M. Mustafa Kamal Chief Exscutive / Director ___
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3 Dr. Abdul Karim : | Non-Executive Director
4 Mr. Salman Basit Mon-Executive Direcior
5. | Mr. Ahmed Kamal Non-Executive Director
6. Mrs. Sadia Karim Non-Executive/ Female Director
7 Mr. Muhammad Aleem Non-Executive Dirsctor

! {f) Compliance to the Listed Companies (Code of Corporsie Governance) Regulations, 2019 regarding
| composition of Beard of Directors, committees and other matiers shall be made before listing of BBFL
at PEX.
Impact of the Scheme: -
() The Share Capital of BBFL shall be given to META under the SWAFP ratio,

{h} After the merger under the Scheme, the authorized share capital and issved mmupna! of BBFL shall
be the following;

Authorized Capital - Rs. 3,600,000,000 divided into 360,000,000 ordinary shares of
Re. 10/ each

; Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital - Rs. 2,989,057,860 divided into 298,905,786 ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/- each

Reconciliztion - No. of Shares

| BEFL
Oxrdinary Shares before Merger 297,093,000
Shares to be Issued to the Sharcholders of META : 1,812,786
Ordinary Shares after Merger 298,905,786

(i) BBFL shall continue o operate itz existing operations. Requisite changes in the Memorandum of
Association of BBFL shall be allowed and be made 1o accommodate pdditional’ extended operations
of META.

(J) After the Scheme, BBFL shall operate as a poblic listed entity.

(k) Goodwill and any capital reserve (merger reserves), if any, may arise on amalgamation in the books of
BBFL under the Scheme as mentioned in Articke - 4.

(1) The existing Board of Directors shall continue after the sanction of the Scheme. The next election for the  ,\
directors of BBFL shall take place under Scction 159 and 166 of the Companies Ac I7, on or befi
May 31, 2026,

WL L1l Ll



(m) Moreover, no cross holding shall exist between META and BBFL a3 described in Article - 3.

(n} The suthorized capital of META shall be added to the authorized capital of BBFL and the added capital
shall come to Ra. 3,600,000,0000-. No additional fee shall be paid 1o the Commission for the increase
in the suthorized capital increased up to Rs. 3,600,000,000/- as the fee for the combined capital already
stands paid by the respective companies.

~§3-

Name of the Company

Authorized Capital before
the Scheme

Authorized Capital after the
Scheme

BIG BIRD FOODS
LIMITED (BBFL)

Rs. 3,000,000,000 divided mio
300,000,000 ﬂdmtn' shares of
Ras. 10/ each :

Rs. 3600000000 divided into
360,000,000 ordinary shares of
Bs. 1v= each

METATECH TRADING Rs. 600,000,000 divided into | Dissolved by the Order of the

LIMITED 60,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. | Honorable Lahore High Court,
10 each Lahore without winding up

Total in Rs. R, 3,600,000,000 Hs. 3,600,000, 000

[I. METATECH TRADING LIMITED

The suthorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 600,000,000 divided inte 60,000,000 of ordinary shares
of Rs. 10/- each, out of which 7,432,425 shares are fully paid and issued as follows:

Mo, of Shares Isued Tzzned for/Againat Ra.
1,034,500 | Under Scheme of Merger/De-Merger 10,345,000
170,000 | Consideration other than Cash 1,700,040
6,227,925 | Bonus Shares 62,279,250
| 7,432,415 74,324,250

(i) Pattemof Sharcholding of the Shares held by the Sharcholders &z of Effective Date is as follows:

No. of Shares % holding
Directors, their Spouse end Family Members 120 0.0%
Modaraba Al-Mali 1,029,013 - 13.8%
Public/Others 5,191,855 69.9%
Joint Stock Companies 933,951 12.6%
NIT 277,486 1T UR-,,
7,431,425

(b} Complete list of the shareholders is attached os Schedule - 2 (List of Sharcho
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{e) Total number of sharcholders of META, as of the Effective Date is 1007.

{d) The Share Capital of the META will not be changed for Ordinary $hares under the Scheme a described
in Article=3 (TV). However, the pattern of shareholding can be changed till the Sanction Drate.

{e) The Board of Directors of the Company (META) before the Scheme is as follows:

! Sr. No. Name of Director Category
i I Mr. Zahid Mahmood Chairman! Tndependent Direcior
A 2. Mr. Mansoor Ahmad Khan Chief Executive /Director

f 3 Ms. Maaria Ahmad Mon-Executive Director

! I Mr. Sohail Habib Executive Director-

! 3 Ms. Farzin Khan Tadependent Director

| (6. Mr. Muhammad Igbal Independent g:hmm-

' 7 Mr, Usman Ali Shah Independent Director

Impaet of the Scheme: -

(f} Cxi the completion of the merger / amalgamation and after the issuance of shares of BBFL to the
registered members of META, META will be dissolved by the order of the Honorable Lahore High
Court, without winding up.

{2} The Shares of BBFL to be issued to the registerod member of META shall be as following:

|

!

! = el -

| No. of Shares Outstanding 7432425

‘, No. of Shares of BBFL to be issued 10 the shareholders of META 1,812,786
SWAP Ratio (No. of Shares of BBFL against cvery One share of 0.24
META)

—n PENE —

{(h} The Undertaking and Business of META shall be transferred to BBFL (as described in Schedule - 1),

(i) Board of Directors of BBFL shall be given power to execute, on behalf of META, the deeds/ documents
for the transfer of assets, liabilities and reserves of META.
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ARTICLE - 3 = THE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

GENERAL

| 1. This Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated pursuant to the provisions of Sections 279 10 283 of
the Act for the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking and Business of META (a8 a Transferor) into
BBFL (as Transferees) as given in Schedule — 1. Upon the completion of merger / smalgamation
through the intended Scheme, META will be dissolved under the Order of the Honorable Lahore High
Court, Lahore without winding up, and the shares of BBFL shall be issued to the registered
members'shareholders of META.

Il. Requisite changes in the Memorandum of Association of BBFL shall be allowed and be made to
< accommodate additional/ extended operations of META. The Board of Directors of BBFL is
cmpowered to make requisite changes in the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the BRFL.

MI. The transferce (BBFL) shall be bound to discharge any liability in respect of the assets acquired and
any liability in respect of the assets shall not exceed the transferor’s (MET A) cost of the assets at the
time of the disposal and the tranaferee must not be exempt from tax for the tax vear m which the disposal
takes place.

. Arcomuizted losses of BBEL shall be ru-eh.uutmmﬁl' mm:lﬂlﬂld under the Scheme and ssf-off
against Surphus on revaluation surplus nfnpannng fined assets as described in Schedule-3 - Statement
of Financial Position showing Merger Effect.

V.  Assets, lisbilities and undertaking {as per Schedule 1) of META will be transferred to BBFL with same
rights, obligations, privileges and covenants. Moreover, Shares of BBFL shall be issued to (he
shareholders of META through merger functionality of CDC. Thus same status and encumbrance
attached to the META shares shall be attached/transferred to the shares of BBFL for those shareholders.

V1. After merger (and afier issuance of shares of BBFL to the sharehalders of META), the sharchobders of
BBFL can change/ amend the business'principal line of business of merged entity (BBFL) by following
the relevant laws and regulations.

TRANSFER OF THE UNDERTAKING AND BUSINESS FROM META TO BEFL

VII.  The Undertaking and Business of META shall be transferred and vested in BBFL in the following
manner;

a. The designated immovable (including land, building, usufruct with all equitable and legal
rights) and movable assets, lizbilities, revaluations reserves, capital and revenus reserves
described in Schedule — | (The Undertaking and-Net Assets of META to BBFL) shall stand .'Q
transferred/vesied to BBFL from META. Generally, these net assets include land, building, W
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equipment, investment property, cash and bank balances, rovaloation reserves and related
liabilities.

The Undertaking of META, including land, building, vsufruct with all equitable and legal
rights, as at the effective date shall, without any further act, Instrament or deed, be and the
same shall stand transferred/vestad to and be vested or deemed to have been transfered 1o or
vested in BBFL on the Effective Date.

MNotwithstanding anything contained in the Stamp Act, 1899 (11 of 1899) or any other law for
the time being in force, no stamp doty shall be payable on transfer to the transferee company
{i.e. BBFL) of the whole or any part of the undertaking and of the property of any transferor
company (i.c. META) as 2 result of sanctioning of the Scheme by the honorable Court,

The transfer / vesting shall be subject to the existing rights (equitable and legal rights),
charges mortgages and hypothecation, if any. There are, however no
charges/mortgages/nypothecation registered on the assets of META. The land shall
stand transferred/vested in the name of BBFL upon completion of all legal and
regulatory procedures/Clearance from the Lahore Development Authority.

Such assets of META, which are moveable in nature or are capable of transfer by
manunl / physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, shall be so transferred and
shall become the property of BBFL as its integral part. All the bodies, departments and
concerned institutions/companies, wherever required, shall transfer the assets without
any cost, taxes, any further act or decd by the BBFL.

All the utility licenses, connections, meters, and other facilities for electricity, gas,
water, telecommunications and others allowed, licensed or provided by any
Goevernment agency (including Water and Power Development Authority, Water and
Sanitation Agency, Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, Sui Southern Gas Limited) or
other agency to the META with the respective benefits including the deposits and
prepayments, Govemment approvals, (if any) will stand transferred without any
additional charges/costs to the BBFL. The security deposits and any other cost paid by
META against any of these and other existing facilities shall remain unchanged and the
charge of name shall take place without any additional fee, charges or costs whatsoever
and without any delay.

All the registrations, rights, powers, licenses, .permits, sanctions, permissions,
privileges of the META shall stand transferred to BBFL.
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h.  All the titles of land and other immovable property registered in the name of the META
will stand transferred in the name of BBFL. However, the existing land and building
of META, afler transler 1o BBFL, shall not be disposed of without the prior written
approval of the Commission.

| i. The lease rights (short term and long term), equitable rights, legal rights given by
- META to the third parties shall be transferred (with all rights and obligations) from
META to BBFL.

+ j. The existing land and building of META, transferred to BBFL under this Scheme, shall
i be retained by BBFL and the disposal thereof shall not be allowed without the prior
d written approval of the SECP. This restriction shall be included in the Memorandum
: of Association of BBFL.

k. Undertaking and Business - META (Schedule-1) is transferred/vested to BBFL.  If
required, requisite changes in the Memorandum of Association of BBFL shall be
allowed and be made to accommodate additional! extended operations of META.

I. Listing status of META at PSX shall be transferred to BBFL. The shares of BIG BIRD
FOODS LIMITED shall stand listed on PSX. As the shares of META are eligible for Central
Depository Svstem (the "CDS") of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the
"CIDC"), the scrip-less shares of BDFL shall be also be the eligible for Central Depository
System (the "CDS") of Central Depasitory Company of Pakistan Limited {the "CDC").

-
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m. /s the purpose of the listing of BBFL at PSX is to enable the company to have & regular
price discovery process and also enable the secured creditors of the company to have
access to the publicly listed security of the company; therefore, the matier of any write-
offs, over-dues, rescheduling/restructuring or litigation, if any, which may appear in

{ the credit information bureau report in respect of the company, its subslantial
.' . shareholders, directors or promoters, shall not be treated as any hindrance in the listing
, of the security of the company. Because of BBFL continuing to have normal banking
relationship with its secured creditors, improved business outlook and continuity as a
going concern, the requisive NOCs to be issued by the secured creditors (financial
_ institutions) in accordance with Section 279 of the Companics Act 2017, shall be
5 deemed as their explicit cohsent with the Scheme and the resultant listing of BBFL at
1 Psx LR | 3

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY META TILL THE COMPLETION DATE vli
e

VIII.  Till the Sanction Date, META shall not sell, transfer or dispose of any of its Undertaking and Busi
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(i)

(ii)
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The amalgamation / merger in accordance with this Scheme shall be treated as having taken sffect
from the Sanction Date and as from that time end until the Effective Date when META's
Undertaking and Business is transferred to and vested in BBFL.

META shall carry on and be deemed to camry on all its business and activities, if any, and shall
stand possessed of its properties and assets, if any, for and on account of end in trust for BBFL
and all the profits accruing to META or losses arising or incurred by them, if any, shall for all
purposes be treated 4s the profits or losses, if any, of BEFL.

(iii) 1t is hereby undertaken by META that it will carry on its business with reasonable diligence and

business prudence, until the Sanction Dete and it shall not alienate, charge, morigage, vpothecate,
encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of the respective Undertakings and Business or any
part thereof except, in the ordinary course of business, or without the prior written consent of the
Board of Directors of BBFL.

DETERMINATION OF THE UNDERTAKING AND BUSINESS

A balance sheet:

(i

(i)

has been prepared by META (appended herewith as Schedule §) of the Undertaking and Business,
including without limitation, the ‘capital reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surplus and
accumulated profils and losses of META, as reflected in the books of account of META
immediately preceding the Effective Date and report of agreed upon procedures from the Auditors
has been taken on the books of accounts. Since META is listed Company, its accounts are publicly
available and nive months results ending on March 31, 223 has already been disseminated to the
shareholders through Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited:

shall be prepared by META of the Undertaking and Business, including, without limitation, the
share capital, capital and general reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surplus and acoumulated
profits and losses of META, as reflected in the books of account of MET A as of the Sanction Date
and which shall be audited by the Auditors of META, within sy (60) days of the Sanction Date;

(iii) has beer/shall be prepared in accordance with the sccounting principles generally ascepted in

Pakistan and shall include the notes setting out the methodology and assumptions used in
identifying the Undertaking and Business of META.

A balance sheet:

(i)

has been prepared by BEFL (appended herewith as Schedule 5) of the Undertaking and Business,
including without limitation, the capital reserves, revenue reserves, rovaluation surplus and
accumulated profits and losses of EBFL, as reflected in the books of account of BEFL immediately
preceding the Effective Dute and which has been audited by the Auditors of BRFL:

s*'%'
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(if) shall be prepared by DBFL of the Undertaking and Business, including, without limitation, the

! share capital, capital and gencral reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surplus and accomulated
1 profits and losses of BBFL, as reflected in the books of account of BBFL as of the Sanction Date
and which shall be audited by the Auditors of BBFL, within sixty (60) days of the Sanction Date;

(iii) has beenshall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepied in
Pakistan and shall include notes setting out the methodology and assumplions gsed in identifying
the Undertaking and Business of BBFL.

{iv) The Statement of Financial Position showing the Merger Effect shall be prepared by the Board of
Directors based on the audited financial statement as on Sanction Date that will show the assets,
liabitities, reserves (the Undertaking and MNet Assets of META) shall be transferred on the Sanction
Date and this Statement will be certified by the practicing Chartered Accountant.

STEITITIII S TT AT T TIT I,
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" ARTICLF. = 4 - SHARES
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CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme being effective in terms of the order of the Court, shiares shall be issued at par value
subject 1o the terms of this Scheme and without any further application, deed or instrument as a
consideration for the transfer to and vesting of the Undertaking and Business of METATECH

TRADING LIMITED in the BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED as defined in the Scheme.

The Shares issuance shall be as under:

a. SHARES ISSUANCE BY BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED (BBFL) TO METATECH

TRADING LIMITED (META)
METATECH TRADING LIMITED n =
No. of Shares Outstanding _'?,431,4!_5__
“No. of Shares of BBFL to be issued to the sharcholders of META 1,812,786
"SWAP Rati: No. of Shares of META against One Share of BBFL 0.24

METATECH TRADING LIMITED

Ra.
Total Assets . 2,692,468
Less:
Total Liabilitics -
Met Assets Transferred 2,692 468
Share Capital and Reserves
Shares of BBFL lssued to the simr:l‘mldm of "'.-'I'ETA 18,127,860
Accumulated loss (71,631,782)
Merger Reserves 56,196,390
2,692,468

Any cross holding, if any, existing at the Sanction Date will be eliminated and shall be given 1o the

shareholders of META and BBFL, as the case may be on the Sanction date.

The SWAP ratio has been calculated on the basis of valuation of shares of all companies (BBFL. and
META) by Abdul Khalig & Co., Chartered Accountants. The resulting SWAP ratio, so worked out,

will benefit the members ¢fhnﬂ'| the companies.

MNormally, the following three factors are given considerations while working out the SWAP mtio: \-\‘E‘
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a. book value/net asset value/break-up value;

b, mearkel value of shares: and

¢. dividend caming capacity of the merging companies;
d. the comparable transection method,

. VL As BBFL, is unlisted companies; therefore, the market value of shares has not been considered as one

-*f of the factors in caleulating the SWAP ratio. Similarly, the dividend eamning capacities of META and
BBFL has not been considered as the other factor as these companies have not declared any dividend
as yei. Accordingly, only the last applicable market value of META has boen considered as one of the
factors in the valuation, '

TRANSFER/CANCELLATION OF SHARES

VI.  All members whose names shall appear in the register of member of META, on such date afler the
Sanction Date as the Board of Directors of BBFL may determine, shall surrender their share certificates
for cancellation thercof to BEFL. In default, upon the new shares being allotted and issued by BBFL
1o the members of META, to those whose names shall appear on the respective register of members on
such date, as aforesaid, the share certificate in relation 1o the shares held by them in META shall be
deemed to have been duly cancelled. A notice of up to fourteen (14) days' shall be given to the members
of META of the date fixed by the directors of BBFL, for determining the entitlements to ordinary shares
of BEFL to be issved to the members of BBFL. The members holding physical shares, if any, will
deliver their share certificates to the company for cancellation and shall be issues the shares of BEFL
in physical form within thirty (30) days from the reopening of the Book Closure. As the shares of
META are eligible for Central Depository System (the "CDS”") of Central Depository Company of
Pakisian Limited {the "CDC"), the scrip-less shares of BBFL shall be directly credited by book entries
in the CDS in liew of the serip-less shares of META to their respective Investors’ accounts or sub-
accounts. with CDC participants within thirty (30) days from the reopening of Book Closure as
announced for the determination of the merger entitlements, !

VIl Upon the allotment of the Ordinary shares of BBFL to the members of META in démnueriﬁ:-tﬁuid.
all share certificates reprosenting the ordinary shares of META shall stand cancelled.

X, While making physical allotment of the new shares, the fractional allotments above 0.5 shares shall be
rounded up to one share and any fraction below 0.5 shall be ignored. However, for shares in CDS
fractional shares shall be ignored.

X.  Shares will be issued by BBFL to the members of META under the SWAP ratio. The working of the
merger adjustment and the Dalance Sheet of BBFL, to emerge immediately afler the merger is attached
herewith in Schedule-1 and Schedule-3. The merger reserves or goodwill arising of merger, as the case
may be, shall be recognized in the books of BRFL. ‘t&.

XL Mew Shares shall be issued by BBFL to METAs sharcholders.

7
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®i. There shall be no cross-holdings between BBFL and META. Any cross-holding shall be distributed
amongst e respective shareholders.

XIIL.  The distribution of shares and the merger effect are shown in Schedule - 3. The same mothodology
shail be followed after the Sanction Date,
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RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BBFL AND META IN RESFECT OF THE UNDERTAKING
AND BUSINESS

ARTICLE - § - RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS

. L. All suits, appeals, arbitrations, governmental investigations and other legal proceedings instituted by
i or against META in respect of the Undertaking and Business (as defined in Schedule 1) and pending
before amy cour, tribunal, regulafory body or any other authority shall be treated as suits, appeals and
legal proceedings by or against BBFL, and may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
BBEFL accordingly.
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All taxes on income, including but not limited to, advance tax and withholding taxes,
eollected/Ceducted from the Effective Date till the Sanction Date in respect of the Undertaking and
Business shall, shall be deemed to, be to the benefit and credit of META and shall be transferred 10
BRFL.

[1I.  The capital reserves, revenue reserves, revaluation surpluses and accumulated profits and losses of
META, as at the day preceding the Effective Date and immediately preceding the Senction Date
respectively, as audited by the Auditors relating to the Undertaking and Business, shall constitute
and be treated as reserves and revaluation surpluses of & corresponding nature in BBFL (as defined
and mentioned in Schedule 3), and shall be accounted on that basis in the books of accounts of
BBFL.

V.  The authorized share capital of META shall be merged with the authorized share capital of BEFL.

Eore s R
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MName of the E'-ampln}r

BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED

(BBFL)

Authorized Capital before

Authorized Capital after the
Scheme

L the Scheme

Es. 3.000,000,000 divided into
300,000,000 ordinary shares of
Rs. 10/- each

Rs. 3.600000,000 divided into
360,000,000 ordinery shares of
Rs. 10V each

|

METATECH  TRADING
LIMITED {META)

Rs. 600,000,000 divided o
60,000,000 ordinary sharés of Rs.
10/- each

Diszolved by the Order of the
Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore without winding up

Total in Rs.

Rs. 3,600,000,000

Rs. 3,600,000,000

VL
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The merged authorized capital may also be increased further, if so required, with the approval of
the sharehoiders by passing a special resolution in the general meeting, in sccordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017,

The transferee (BBFL) must undertake to discharge any liability in respect of the assets acquired,
if any, and any ligbility in respect of the assets must not exceed the transferor’s cost of the asset

at the time of the disposal and the transferee must not be exempt from tax for the tax year in w

the disposal of such assels tikes place.
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VII.  Theassels acquired by the transferees (BRFL) shall be treated as Iuvmgﬂm same character as the
samc had in the hands of the transferor (META),

1 TRANSFER OF STAFF AND EMPLOYEES

VIIl.  Every officer, staff or other emplovees of META, as existing on the Effective Date, shall become
the officers, staff or employees, as the case may be, of BBFL (as mentioned in Scheduls 4) on the
basis that their services have not been interrupted by the transfer and vesting of the Undertaking

{ and Business of META into BBFL, uader this Schemeé and on the same remuneraiion and other
conditions of service, rights, privileges as to the provident fund, gratuity, any other retirement
funds, if any, and other matters as had been applicabls to them, before the effective date.
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ARTICLE - 6 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

SANCTION AND EFFECTIVENESS OF SCHEME

I.  Sanctions and Provisions of the Scheme:
(i} This Scheme has been formulated in terms of the provisions of Section 279 and all other ensbling
provisions of the Act and for an order under Section 282 (along with Section 283) of the Act for
bringing the Scheme into effect.

(i} This Scheme is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned in its present form or
| with or without any medification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve and this
| Scheme zhall become effective, with such modification or addition, if any, also subject to any

conditions, which the Court may impose.

! (iii) The respective Boards of Directors of META and BEFL have approved the foregoing Scheme for
the submission of the same to the Court. The respective Board of Directors of BBFL and META,
have also authorized, consenicd to, either singly or jointly on behalf of all concerned, to any
modifications or additions or alterations 1o this Scheme or to any conditions, which the Court may
think fit to impose and may give any directions, as the honorable Court may consider necessary to
settle any question(s} or difficulty arising under this Scheme or in regard to its implementation or
in any matter connected therewith,

(iv) The provisions of this Scheme shall become binding and operative on the date (the "Sanction
Date"™) that a certified copy of the order of the Court, sanctioning this Scheme under Section 279
of the Act, and by making any necessary provisions under Section 282 of the Act, and upon such
Scheme having been filed with the office of the Registrar of Companies, SECP, Lahore.

{v) Wotwithstanding that the Scheme becomes binding and operative on the Sanction Date, the merger
of META, and trensfer to and vesting in BBFL, of the Undertaking and Business shall be deemed
to have taken place on the “Effective Date™ and shall be treated sccordingly, as per the provigions
of this Scheme.

e e

{vi) Except as expressly otherwise stated herein, the Undertakings and the Business, following the
Sanction Date, shall be recorded in the books of account of META (as per Schedule 1) at the
respective values appearing in the books of account of BBFL on the date preceding the Effective
Date.

{vii) Each of META and BBFL shall take all actionsand execute all formalities considered and deemed
necessary and expedient by their respective Boards of Directors to properly and smoothly cause
the transfer and vesting of the respective Undertakings and Businesses in the manner stated herein, &.ﬁ

and shall corry out and exccute this Scheme pursuant to and lnmmﬂmﬁdlﬂum‘dﬂ:;w

| Court.
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(i) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the respective Boards of Directors of
META and BEFL, may, generally or with regard to any specific issue or matter related to the
execution and implementation of the Scheme, upon its due spproval by the Court, authorize any
person(s) or officials o camy out such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed expedient and
necessary, for 2 proper and smooth implementation of the Scheme from time to time.

{ix) The Board of Directors of META and BBFL have given their assent to any modification or
amendment to the Scheme or to agres to any terms and/or conditions, which the Court and / or any
cther Authority, Body or Commission under the law, may deem fit to direct or impose or which
may otherwise be considered necessary or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty
that may arise for implementing and / or carrying out the Scheme and to do all acts, deed and
things as may be necessary or desirable or expedient for puiting the Scheme into effect.

(x) For the purposes of giving effect to the Schems or any modification or amendment thereof, the
directors of BBFL are hereby authorized by META 1o give such directions and / or to take all such
sleps and actions as may be necessary or desirable incloding any direction for settling any question
of doubt or difficulty, whatsoever that may arize from firne to time,

As of the Sanction Date, the terms of this Scheme shall be binding on each of META and BBFL and
all their respective shareholders, members, employees, debtors and creditors and any person having any
right or lighility in relation to them,

All the costs, charges and expenses, incurred / to be incurred in relation to or in connection with the
Scheme of Arangement and of carrying omt the implementation of Ih:_ Scheme or incidental to the
completion of the amalgamation/merger in pursuance of the Scheme, shall be borne and paid by BBFL.

There can be difference in tax year(s) between effective date and sanction date, Tax returns shall not
be changed/revised for the effective dates for the entities involved (i.. BBFL and META). Moreaver,
tax podition as on Sanction date shall be carried forward o the transferee ie. from META 1o BEFL.

This Scheme shall become null and void, subject to the following and in that event, no rights and
linbilities shall accrue to or be incurred in terms of this Scheme:

(i} il the Seheme is not approved by the requisite majority of the sharcholders and members of any of
META and BBFL;

(ii) if'the sanction of the Court in respect of this Scheme is not obtained by such date (if any) as may
be mutually agreed by the respective Board of Directors of META and BBFL.

After the Sanction Date, the shares of BBEFL shall be technically listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
under the order of the Court without any further, act, decd, formality or fee, subject to the filing of
documentation as may be required by it, in sccordance with applicable rules and regulations,
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VI Afier the Sanction Date, META will be dissolved by the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court,
Lahore without winding up.

DELISTING / LISTING

VIL  Subsequent to the Sanction Date, METATECH TRADING LIMITED shall stand de-listed from
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited within such timeframe during which the shares reconstruction
armngement is completed, and the members of META shall be allotied the shares by BBFL.,

IX.  Subsequent to the Sanciion Date, the shares of BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED shall stand listed on
FSX within such timelframe during which the shares reconstruction arrangement under this Scheme is
completed, without any further, act, deed, formality or fee except that BBFL shall be required to file
all required documentstion to PSX for the purposes of listing.

X.  The opening price shall be based on the P/E mtio, which is determined on the basis of the market
equivalent share and the earning potential of the merged balance sheet of both of these companies as
determined under the Auditors’ Certificate after taking into the impact of the SWAP ratio, but it shall

| ot be less than the par value of the shares of BBFL (ie PKR 10/~ per share). Based on the Auditors’

Certificate, the Board of Directors of BBFL shall communicate the opening price of the BBFL to PSX

accordingly.

MISCELLANEOQUS

AL This Scheme shall be governed by and be construed in secordance with the substantive and procedural
laws of Pakistan,

Xl The section or headings used in this Scheme, are solely for the convenience of reference, and shall not
affect the meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or any of its provisions.

| XHI.  The transfer, vesting and amalgamation of the Undertaking and Businesses in terms of this Scheme
shall not: (i} constitute any assignment, deveolution, conveyance, alienation, parting with possession, or
other disposition under any law for the time being in force; (ii) give rise to any forfeiture; (iii) invalidate
| or dischargs any contract; and (iv) give rise to any right of first refusal or pre-emptive right.

AV, This Scheme is subject to the sanction of the Court and may be sanctioned in its present form or with
any modification thereof or addition thereto as the Court may approve; and this Scheme is also subject
to any such modification or addition or conditions, if any, which the Court may impose,

XV.  The SWAP ratio (as mentioned in this Scheme and having been duly approved by way of the special
resolution)) will not be changed unless directed (and sccepted by the Company) by the honorable :
High Court or the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Any difference, if any; m#

adjusted either in the goodwill or merger reserves, as the case may be. No further




9g-

change having been ordered by the honorable Court or the SECF, shall be required from the
| sharcholders of the Company. :

XV1. The Board of Directors of BBFL shall have the power to rectify any rounding errors or typographical
errors, if any in the Scheme and it will not affect the spirit and efficacy of the Scheme.

) ey
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SCHEDULE =1 - The Undertaking and MNet Assets of METATECH TRADING LIMITED
to BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
_ Rs.

Loans and advances 469,688
Deposits and prepayments 2222780
2,692.468

Shares (o e [zsued under SWAP Rabo ) ' Nos. 1. 812,786
Shares to be Issued under SWAP Ratio Rs, 18,127 860
Merger reserves Rs. 56,196,390
Shares to be Isswed under SWAP Ratio Rs 18,127,860
Accumulated loss Rs. (71,631.782)
© 1,692,468

The above figures are based on unsudited accounts as on effective date i.e. Murch 11, 2023, However, these
figures may change based on the audit for the said period. But this will not affect the SW AP ratio and difference
will be adjusted in merger reserve. Moreover, actual transfer shall be effectuated on the Sanction date and this
will not affect the SWAFP ratio and difference will be adjusted in merger reserve.

e
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SCHEDULE =2 - List of the sharehalders of BLG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
List of the sharehalders of METATECH TRAMNG LIMITED

List of shareholders will be added on the effective date
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SCHEDULE =3 = The Statement of Financial Position showing Merger Effect
= Big Bird Foeds Metatech Big Bird
Limited Trading Limited Foods
M . = Iee.) ! Limited
BRFL META Merger Effect/ BEFL
 March 31,2023 - March31,2003  Reclamificstion  After Merper
K. Ha. R R
" ASSETS
Mon-carreni misets
Property, plan: and equipsecat 7.053,743,106 7,083,743, 106
“Capital work in progress 122,393,167 T 122,393,167
Lv:r'lg tenn loane and advances Dh6, 604 G568, 004
“Loag term deposiis end prepayments 30,618,707 30,618,707
7,207,721,584 . T 7.207,731,584
ht‘urrr.-.ll nazoly T
Stores and spares 352,706,263 362,706,263
Stock in trade 855,781,027 §55,781,027
“Trade debis 979,659,551 979,659,551
Loans and advances 146,787,173 469 688 147,256,861
Depasits and prepayments 761,448 2222 TR0 4897178
“Short term investment 34,053,616 34,059,616
Cash and bank balances 58,223 435 53223945
2,439,592.023 2,692,468 2441584491
TOTAL ASSETS 9,647,613,607 1,691,468 9,650,306,075
_EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ehﬂ-ﬂ: upital:ld reserves
Authorized share capital 3,000,000,000 600,000,000 3,600,000,000
Tssues, subsceibed and paid up capital 2,970,930,000 74,324,250 - 2,989,057,860
“Accumulsted loss (18122834700  (7L,631,782)  1,883,915.252 -
Surplus on revaluation surplus of 3,456, 416,840 (1,883,915,252)  1,572,501,588
operating fixed assets
Merger resenves 56 196,300
4,615,863,370 3,692,468 H%ﬁ '
~on-corrent labilities
Imglﬂm finance - secured 1,068,857.610 % 1, 068,857,610
Drefrrred markup 272,457,347 272,457 347
Diminishing musharaka finance 405,432,857
Deferred taxation - net 770,269,690
Employees’ benefit obligations 77,840,050
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ISANETIN 2,594,857 554
Current linhilities
Current and overdue portion of current 788,053,629 . | TRE, 753,629
lizbilities = 5 .
Short term borrowings 339,737,259 139,737,230
Trade and other payabies 734,137,737 734,137,737
Accrued and deferred mark-up " 575,064,058 575,64 058
: e ST
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,647,613,607 T 9,650,306,075
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SCHEDULE - 4 . Transfer of Staff and Employvees

|
| |. Muhammad Usman . Company Secretary and CFO
i 2. Ameer Hamza . Sales / Operation Officer

Mr. Sohail Habib is executive director {and Chief Operating Officer). However, he will resign on oe before
Sanction Date and will not be transferred 1o BAFL. ;

— e =
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SCHEDULE - 5 - The Statement of Fianocisl Pesition = BIG BIRD FOODS LIMITED
The Statement of Financisl Position — METATECH TRADING
LEMITED

Ag etlached
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CIA ETERED ACCUNTANTS

HB,22-275

Tha Board of Direciars
Big Birds Foodl Lirntted
20, Ahemnd Block, Mew Carden Tow, Leshaoira:

The Bourd of Directars
Metotech Troding Limbted
Raom Ma. 508, L5€ Flaza, Khavaban-s-Aiwan-lghol, Lohore;

Dimar. Sirs,
AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON SHARE SWAP RATION

We hove been reguesihed fe certify the basly of determination of shore swop rofls as on Morch 31, 2023
upon prapoied merger of Metolech Troding Limited (META) with ond Inta Big Bird Foods Limled (2BEL)
vnder the scheme of Compromites, Arrongement ond Reconstruction [in fenms of provishons of Sections 2079
to 283 and ol other anobling provislons of the Compontes Act, 2017}

ARMALGAMATION [ MERGER SCHEME [PURPOISE AND OBIECTS)

Undar the scheina, the BBFL wifl ococquire the ossetr and labilitie: of META ond the Underiaking and Business
of META hall be iraniferrad o BEFL, :

O “he samplalien of merger [/ amalgomation ond offer the iswonce of shares of BBFL to The regisiersd
mambers of MLTA, META will be dissclved by the order of the Honorable Lohore High Court, withaut winding

up.
SCOPE OF THE CERTIFICATE

The management of ile Blg Bird Foods Umiied ore in the process of filing the Scheme of Merger of Big Bird
Foods Limited w1 ond Idle Mete Trading Umited, o Bited compony where all the osssts ond related
liobiities of the META shall be trarsfarrad 1o BBFL and shores thall ba laved to the shoraholders of META
whigc! 1o the approval of the Henorable Lohore Migh Coirt, Labore, on the Schems of Compromivss,
Arrangement ond Reconsiructlon in ferms of provislons of sectfions 379 to 282 and oll other snobiing
prowisions of the Companies Act, 20017,

MAMAGEMENT S RESFOMSIBILITY -

It is the rronogemen:’s responsibility *o prepore the share swop rofio in accordance with the. Scheme of
Amangement under sectons 277 1o 272 ond ol other enobling provisions of the Comoanies Act, 2017, This
cortificals doss nof reBeve tha maonagement from s resgomibility.

AUDITOR'S RESPOMNSIBILITY

O respensibility b to certify thot the thare wwap rollo hos bean properly computed and determined on the
basis of the overcge [of morkel valiee and Sook volee] of both companles. As BBFL, i unlisted companles;
tharafare, the markes?! valee of shores hos not Leen condidered as-one of the fachar In E-tlh!l.llﬂ‘ﬁ'hg tha SWAP
ralia. Similarly, the diidend aaming copocdies of META ond BAFL hos not hoon contldersd os the othar
focter oi theie compiinias hove not declored ony dividend o yel. Accordingly, only the lost applicable
rarkal value of META hos been comiderad oz one of the factors in the woleaikan,

(7=, Crutherg-11, Lahore, Piy A92-41-35755203-94 E-mail; abdulkhaligandeodgmail.com |'|1
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1. ‘We have abtolned Informotion aboul the net assels of the Metatech Troding Limited to be trunsferred
1o Big Bird Foods Umited from it audited financiol stotements a3 on March 31, 2023,

Accardingly, our verificption wes limited 2o the following procedures:

2. 'Wa have obioined the pottermn of shorehelding of Metatech Troding Limiled oy ol March 31, 2022 for

the purpose of determination of the party wire shares fo be lssied to il ecch respective shore holder

. by the wransferess in proportion 1o the shares previcusly held by each of tham in Metoledh Troding
Limited of wome ehos, kind ond foce woales.

T Wi have oblalred infermation ag fe fhe lost opplicable market valus of META,

4. We have verified the, computation of the swap rofio o3 prepared by the monagement of the Big Bird
Fonds Limited 1o effectuate the schame of merger [oftached o Annexurs = A).

5 W have chadead thal oll fhe finondal nformation used I the swap rafio ragording fhe assefs ond
Babilities ks based on the audited financial stolements and occording fo the pravisiom of the proposed
swcheme of mergar and amolgomotion o3 approved by the BOD of Big Bird Foods Limited and all the
alocations and transfars of the pet assen hove bean mode in the rofic o5 dedided by the manogemant.

& We hove dheckad the flnancial infarmation of tha entiiss as regords to all the assafy, hiebilities, share
capiial and reserves after the proposed sheme of demerger ond amolgomation takes affect ond
conlirmed that the net cssels are transferrad to the tramferse componies in the allocotion criteria os
decided by the monogement that alio serves the bosls for the determinotion of swap rafio regarding
the el assts tranferred ond issvance of shares by the tramferees there-agaimt,

CERTIFICATE

[

fosad on the procedures mentioned above, we carfify thal the shores to ba lved by the Big Bird Feods
Uimited [“romferee companles”] fo the existing shareholders of META under the schame of amalgemation /
merger v @ swop rofio of 4,1:1Le, 243.90 ardinary shares of BBFL for svery 1,000 ordinory thares (Le.
0.7 4sharm of BBFL against every Ona thare of META] held in META (Referred 1o Anmexure — AL

Cur certifieate i in occordance. with the "Guidelines for lsue of Cerfificates for Speciol Pirpotes by
Practicing Charlered Accountant Firms” inued by the imfitute of Chortered Accounfants of Pakistan ICAP)..
D werification wa limited to the infarmation o1 mentioned obove.

Restriction an uee and distribulion

This cerlificole i being istuad on the spedfic request of the manogement of Big Bird Foad: Umited Far the
purpase of submission to the Honoroble Lobors High Court, Lohore In conneclion with the Schema of
Comoromises, Arrongement and Reconstruction of Matatech Trading Limited Inte Big Bird Foods Limited
whereby the META will be dissslved by the order of Honerable Lohore High Coun, Lohore, without winding
vp and the lsuance of shores 1o the existing sharaholders of META by the tromsferee company in ferms of
the provisions of sactions 279 1o 232 and ol other snobling pressions of the Companies Act, 2017 and shall

not ba vaed for any other purpase spesified Merein,
IE\ S
i i o
74 AL &
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

To the members of Big Bird F_‘nmls- (Pvi.) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements ™

Opinjon

We have sudited the annexed financial statements of Big Bird Foods (Pvt) Limited (the
Company}, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the
statement of profit or loss, stalement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including & summary of significant accounting policies and cther explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information end explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

I our opinion and to the best of our information and sccording to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, the sialement of changes in equity and the. statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in
the manner so required amnd respectively give 8 true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the loss and other comprehensive Joss, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the peried then ended.

Baszis for Upinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as
applicable in Pakistan.

Chuir - responsibilities under thos¢ standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our rcport. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopicd by the Institute of
Chertered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fullilled our other ethical
responsibilizies in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Oiher than the Financial Statements and Aaditors’ Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Reporl, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thercon. Our opinion oa the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

I connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
the other information is materially
ined in the audit or otherwise
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related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion.

« Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' mpl:n-:rl. However, future events or conditions may cause the Compeny fo
mmmmagnlngmmm

. Fmiume the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial slﬂmm.ts,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the sudit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our-audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the

Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account
and returns;

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the period
were for the purpose of the Company”s business; and

d} no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1930 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement parther on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Abdul
Khalig.

— e
Abdul Khalig & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Place; Lahore
Date: 21 June, 2023

UDIN:ARI0Z310I93dGEql
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appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regand.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and farr presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the sccounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due (0 fraud or emror,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company"s ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless manapement either
intends to liguidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do s0. The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Onr objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error, and to issue an
anditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assorance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstalement when it exists. Misstalemenis can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reascnably be expected to infloence the cconomic dectsions of users taken on the baziz of
these financial stalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the sudit. We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of matcrial misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to froud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that iz sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of imternal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal conirol.

*  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
cxists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
unceriainty exists, we are required to drow attention in our auditors® report to the
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Big Bird Foods (Frivate) Limited

ASSETS

Mon-turren ausers
I’m.h!!hﬂ.ﬂd #m
Capital work-in-peogress

Long term boans and ndvances
Long term depasits and prepayments

Carrent sasels
Sinck pn trade

Trade debts
Loans and sdvances
Deposits and prepayments
Gl rar [Evestel
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized Share Capital:

300,000,000 [2022: 300,000,000 ordinery shares of Rs. 10 each
fssued, subscribed and prid-up share capital
Accumulated Loss

Surplux on revaloation of sperating flved nudets

Loen from direstor - relabed party

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
WWM+M
Deferred markup
e

Deferred mxation-net

Employee's benefit obligation

Current lisbilities

Caurrent and over doe poction of nos-cerrent Habibdes
Short term WEF

Trade ucd other puysbles
Acerued and deferred mark-up

Contingensies and commitments
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from | 1o 46 form an integral part of these

101,141,913
1,620,241
13,544,027
T39I

[ 31080578
T43,904,094
930,991,108
164,557,752

1,264,354
34,025,145

51,394,216

2236847247

16,000,000

R

158371528
05,452,857

Th110372

WL, 283 608
361,769 414

DAL 457,529,421
2 387
i 2005374711
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Nine Month Period Ended March 31, 2023

Sales - net
Cost of sales
Giroas Profit

Distribution and selling éxpenses
Administration expenses

Crher expenses

Ciher incomn

FProfit! {Loss) from operations
Finance cost =

Laoss before taxation

lT'axﬂlnn

Loz after taxation

The annexed notes from | to 46 farm en integral part of these financial statements,

BB

2,700,118,718
{2,565,482,201)
134,636,517

(90,763,904
(%1,600,606)
(9,653,238
(182,005,748}

(47,383,231}
21,514,951
(25,868,250}

(258,117,112}

(280,985,392)

22,508 237
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Blp Bird Foods (Pve) Lid, March 2073

Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited _ ~l/o-
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Nine Month Period Ended March 31, 2023

Loss after taxation (258,416,165)
Remessurements chargeable to other comprehensive income ';-_ 53516511

e T

o —




Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited t Ij‘,.l' J—
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Nine Month Period Ended March 31, 2023

Motes March 31, March 31,
2013

Cash Mow from operating scivities
Cash flows from operativas 36 47 560,064
et Increased {decrease) in fong term loans to employees (LI7897)
bhtﬂm}'dmmhhlg:mhm:ﬂm 733,072
FPinance cost pald (70, B59.320)
Gramity pald {6,559,661)
Income inx refimded z
Encome tau paid (1M TAET)
Mot cush {used in) proerated from operating activities (49,201.229)
Cash fow from knvesting sctivities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and squipment’s {160,000
Caphtal work-in-progress {486,000)
Proceeds from sale of fixed aspets 7
Interest received on short term nvestment 1.333.713
et cash geoerated from investing activities 687,712
Cash flow from fisancing activities
Share money deposited F169%,000
Lean from/ (i) Directar 16,000,000
Laag term financing - repayiments (105,763,274)
Proceeds from short term financing - net (940,43
Diminishing musharaka flannce- repayments -
Met cash (uyed in) generated from financing activities 1,992,793
Net increase/ {decrease) in cash and cxh equivalents (46,521,224)
Cash end cash cguivalents af the beginalag of the year S,67 1,388
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6.1 50,150,165

Drecior

Big Bird Foods (Pwi) Limited, March 2023 : Page w4
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Mig Bird Foods (Private) Limited : 9\
Statement of Changes in Equity = / / £
For the Mine Month Period Erded kiarch 31, 2023 \
Sharedepik| Rovsiuaties | Accamuiated ; |
Share caphsl P Direcier’s Laas Tl
Balance a3 a1 July §1, 2021 LICKOOOD00 TIRIILAD A MIMENE (1, T4LES8A1) - HEMMIIME
Ltas for the period - : 2 ammmﬂ - | EsAnsieny
Dhey comprebemsive mooms - - - SA06.500 - EIE!I
Total comprenensive leas n = 2 % (252, 1,634 T (LRGN
Incremeninl deprocledion - et fws. | : D A =1 S|
- - (107, 596,397) 107376579 = 2
m*m
Share deposk monTy resved . FLHE000 =1} - = FPE, 000
Share caphtal lapens 870,939,000 3 ;
Loa recaivesd from directos S . TR go0a00 | i
1030000 (TR A 00O - - 15,000 500 168,598 Doxy
Balance 3 on Mareh, 31 2023 ] |

L -
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited ° ' ' : o //3"’
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

1 Lasgnl staius and operations

L1 w:mnmmmjmmiwmmwuwn.muin?mu:
Private Limited Company under the Companics Ordimance, 1984 (repealed with enactment of The Compenics Adt,
mmmmwmﬂmmmmﬁwurnmgmnw
poultry foed products. .

The goagrapiiical locstion and address of the compay's busincss unit and plant i a¢ under;
-mmlmﬂﬂduﬂuhﬁwﬂMﬁWBMMMTmmm.
- The company’s menufsctaring facilitics are bocwied at 63 Km Mulan Road, Lshee.

1 Basks of preparation

21  Statemant of complinnce
mwmmmptwﬂhmnbummh:ﬂwmwmu
mmm_ﬂﬂm#ﬂhhmﬂmdm?mm
smmsmmwmmmmmﬂ-ﬂnm{mm n: motified under e
Cmptﬁﬂﬂﬂ.ii}ﬁ'rdWﬂﬂmuﬂmﬂWhﬁ¢ﬂlT.ﬂmMMarm
nlmmﬂmhwmmnmmunsmmmﬂﬂwm
muwmnnml?mmmm .

211 Significant events

i

12 Basks of measeremeat and preparation
These financial satements have been prepared onder bistorical et comvenition, swoept as dischosed in poficies.

231  Functiomal and presentation corrency
mMHMmMmmmmﬂMhhmﬂmmﬂm
m.ﬂmupmdm?ﬁuwwmmmﬂnﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂm.uﬁﬂmm

24 Use sl istimutes wnd judgment
hmummmhwu made psdgements, estivestes snd novrmptions that affoct 1
spplication of company's sccounting policics #ad reported amaumis of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these extimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing besis.

il =l

mmwmmmmiupuﬁﬂnmmﬂpmﬂmwhm
mm&lﬁlﬁ:MHMmWhhmiqw

241  Properly, plant and equipments
The Company reviews the residual values and useful lives of propesy, plant and equipment on regular basis. Further
nﬂﬂhﬂnﬂmﬂmﬁmﬂﬂm@hmﬁupﬂmwﬂmﬂmmw
mmhmmuﬁmtmﬂ;uﬂnmmiumﬁmwmﬂm,ﬁmm
equinment with correspanding effect on the depreciation charge, imnairmend and relabed deferred txx linbidity.

242 Provision for inventory obselescence !
mcmmnummmuﬂum.wmhmmmwm:dmm:wmm
dirminuation in the respective carying vales, Nol realizable value is determined with reference i estimated sclling price
exs estimatnd cost b3 comphete and estimated cost to make the sales.

243 Allowasce for expecied credit busses
mnmmwmmwmqmﬂmummhuwﬂm
[ifictime excpected oredit losa

F
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited “; /f(f rh
Notes to the Financial Siatements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

244 Taxstien

The Company takes irto accouns the current income 1ax laws asd decitbons taken by the taxation suthoritics. Instances
whiors the Compeny's view differs from the mcome . depantiment 6t the assessment stage sod whene the Compainy
considers that 25 view on ibems of material natare &5 10 socordance with law, the amoents are shown as coptingent
Hiakilts

4.5  Frovislans and contingencles

A provigion is recognized, as & resull of past event, the Company hes & present Jegal or copstrictive obligation that can
oo 'estimaied refinbdy, and it is probable that an catflow of economic’ benefits will be required ko seiile the obligntion.
Provisions e delermloed by dizecunting the expocted fiture cieh flows al pre-tax maie that refles the oarent moskot
aezeaements of tho time valiss of money end the risk specific o tve lisbility, The unewinding of dizsount i recognined as
finance cost, if any,

Whire it ks oot probeble that en outflow of ressurces cmbodying scooombs benofits will b required 10 pertle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation can nol be messured with sulficient refiability, It is disclosed a5 conBingent
Teabillitye.

a6 Ispsirmest

J44.] lmpairment of fimancial assct

The Company measures loss allowances for Expected Crodil Losses (ECLS) on finsncial sssels inennsed o mnormiiced
cogt after consldening the patierm of receipis from and ftuze Anamcis] outleok of the counberparty and is reviesred by the
maaapoment on regular basb Asy chanpe In the extimates in fabare weare mipht sifect the camyving amounts of the
recpectiver items of nstets with & comesponding effect oin the profit or loss.

24.4.2 Impalrment of non financlal azsets

The ceerying mmounts of the Cospany's asdels afe pevbewad &l sach belanes shoet dabs tn determine whether there
iz ey Indication of impainment loss. I soch indication sists, recoverable amount |5 estimated nsng aiteria ghven |n
respective accounting siandards to determine the extent of impairment loas, if any.

2.5 Kew sccounting standards, amendments and IFRS Interpretations that are sffective during the peried
The following standacds, amendments and imepretations are offective for the year ended Jume 3, 3033, Thewe

gandands amendmenls and isdcrprotabions are either nol relevant do e Company's operstions of wre nod expectied o
Tave significant impect on the Company's financial sinbements other than ceriain additional disdomires

- ; Effective from annoal
2500 ﬂnﬂuﬂar[ﬂupﬂﬂmﬂhmﬂ:ﬂﬁtﬂtw - P il T o A
Imterest Rete Beochimark Refonm — Phase 3 (Ameodments w0 IFRS 9, LAS 15,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) Tacisary 01, 2001
Ameniiment 1o IFRS 16 ‘Leases' - Covid-19 related nent contession extonded April 01, 2021
bepand Jume 10, 2071

Cerlain anmial impreversdinis havs alse becn made to a sumber ef [FRE %

X33 Standards, Imterpretations and amendments
Mew accoumting stardands / emendments sd [FRS Interpretations that are aoft yet effective

The following standards, amendments nd interpretations ase only effective for sccounting periods, beginning on or afle:
the date mentioned against each of them. Thess standards, interpretatioas and the emendirents are sither ant relsvant ta
ibe Company's operathms or ane not expectad 1o have significent impact on the Compaeny™s Ooencial salioweats othe:
ik ceniale additlcnal disclopres

Bip Bird Foods (Pet) Lid . horch 2021 Page no. T
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited — fa’,.S—""
MNodes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

31

Dt Bird Foady (P ) Lid, Mavsh 7073

Effective from ssnual

Amendneats to IFRS 3 *Business Combinationa’ - Referonce to the concephual framework Tamuary 01, 2022
Amerdments to [AS 16 "Property, Plaat and Equipment’ = Proceeds befors intendad ose Frmaacy 01, 2032

Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Continpant -Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ - Oneroas
Conlrocts -— cost of falfilling & contract Irngazy 01, 2022

nnial Tnprovensests to IFRLS Sizpdands 20182000 Cyole (relebed (o IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and JAS 41)  Janusry 01, 2022

i:ﬁmwﬂﬂ!?mmﬂFmHm - Clasilfoation af lisbilities & current } o, 2023

Amendments to 1AS | *Presentation of Financial Statements” - Dischosure of scoounting policies. 0 1 2053

Amendments to LAS B °Accoonting Policies, Changes in Acoounting Eslimates and Errors” »
Diefiniibon of sceountlog estimales Juneey O, 2023

Amendments to ‘TAS 13 Income Taxes® - deferred tax relwied o asseis and Hablixles arlsing from & Japuary O, 2023

Amendments 1o [FRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Amets betwesn an Irvestor and s

Deferred
Amendmenis Lease Linkility in a Sade and Lemeback o1, 2004

Crermin arnusl tmprovements hive alzn bees made in & number af (FRS

mmuwmwmmmwmmm
(FASH) has slso issued the fallowing standards which kave nol been adopiad locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commiszion of Pakisian:

[FR517 Imsmrsace Contracs

FR% 1 Firg-tame Adeplion of Intcmational Flesnclal Reposting Standard

Summary of significant mﬂq policies
The sccounting policies have been applied consistently 10 all periods presented in thess financial statementy,

Froperty, plant and equipment’s

Propory, plant ssd equipnssats exeopl for freshold land, cepital work in progress are sisied af cosl less sccumulsted
deprecinlion apd Impalrensnt losses, i any. Frechold land and capitsl work In progress are slated ab coat bess ellowance
for impairment, i any. Cost of property, plant sod equipment Inchades acquizition cost, bormowing cost daring
comstrociion phase of relevant asset and other ditectly ubiribofable c0$1s including trial ren production cpenses (met of
income, if amy). Traasfers from caplial work s progress wre made 1o the relevant calegory of property, plast and
equipment as and when the astets are available for s in the manner intstded by e Compary’s msagement,




Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited — r”é"'
MNotes {o the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

33
331

133

333

134

5as

Big Bied Foodls (Pl Lad March 1023

Susplus arising on revahastion of property, plant and cquipment i3 recoguized, mot of tex, in sintemoent of comprchonsie
Incame and sccumulsted o reserves im shancholders” equity snd is shown in eguity, Revalustion s carricd ot with
pafficient regularity to ensure that the carving ameounts of the assets does not differ maserially fom the fuls value,
Accemiilaled deprecintion st the dele of revalualion i not climinabed spuinal the coot of the st The mrplus on
revndustian of property, plank snd equipment (5 the extent of incresnental depreciation charged on the refated propesty,
phﬂﬂmmhwh;wthnmhﬁhﬂmwmiuwm&kmh
statement of changes in aquity.

Deprecimion bs charged io income on the redweing balesce methed 50 a5 1o wiite off the depreciable snount of the
property, plant and oqulpment over thelr estimated usefiol lbves af the rses specifiad b nate 4. Deprecistion on
depreciable asests is sommenced from ihe daie the rsct b peadlable for wso up ot date, wheen iise sssel [ disposad off.

The cast or replacing & major iters of propesty, plant und cquipment is recopniaed in the carrying amoust of the isem T it
is probeble that the future cconomic benefits embodied within the Hem will flow to the Company and ix cost can be
meagured reliably, The canrying ameunt of the repleced itom is derecognized. The cost of the duy o day servicing or
property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or Joss sccount is incarrsd, i

Cialns arsl loases on disposal of an item of propesty, plost end equipiesl se defermined by comnparing the procosds
from disposals with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized on net hasis within “other
income” in profil o loss sccounit

Finasclal instruments

Finamcial assets

The Compeny clexsificy is fizancial mescts a5 mbmequently menssmed af amartised east o7 mexeared ot fair valoe taroegh
profit o I on the hasis of both: - The eotity"s business mode] for managing the Orascial awels; and - The contractual
cazh flow chamcteristioy of the financial assen
Financly] sasels messured ai smortissd cost

A debt ingtramesl is measared af eavoriised easl i it iz held wilhin a busipess mede] whose obicctive is fo hold nanckal
ampate in order to collect contractual cashy Bows and its contrectual semns give rise on apecified dabes wo cah Rows thet
e solaly pavments of principal and profel on the principel smount outstanding. The Compeny includes in Gis calegocy
trade debis, shon-term loans and advances and othes receivables.
Financial assets messured at fair valae through profil o loss

A Gnaneisl asoet |3 measured of fnir vatue through profit or boss it {a) Iis conbrctaal bormas do nol glve e to cah fows
e apeeified deten that sre Salely Payments of Principal snd Isterest on the principnl amaunt sutstending; (b) It & pot
heeld writhsin @ busimess mode] wisse ohjective is eillver 00 collect contractual cash Oows, or to both collect oanfractual
cash flows and scil; or () AL initial recognition, it ks imevecahly designated as measured at fair vahse theough peobit or
bnss when doing =0 climinstes or sigaificandly redies & messurement or recogeition inconsistency thal would otherwise
ariza from nssasuring asseis o linkiliies er recognizing the gains and lasses on themn oa different bases,

Finaacial liabilities measared ot amorised oorsi

This cutegory includes il finencial liabilites, otber inn dvage messurod ol fuk velue ibrough profit ar loss, i any
Derecegnition

A financinl sewet (or, where applicable, a part of a finemcial wsset or & part of & groep of smilar finencial sxects) i
derscogalasd whers the righte w recelve casth fiows from the asast hove explred, or the Company has tansfored its
rights to recelve cash fows from the assel, or hes atsemed an obligation to pay e recelved cash fows in fall without
misterinl delny to a third party under a pass-through armngement and the Compasy has: (a) Traraformed substantlally &l
of e rizks and sewards of dve assel; o [b) Meither trsusferred oo etaioed subytaially all the sisks and reweards of the
esset, bud has transferred control of the asset. When the Company has transferred fts fghi io receive cash flows: from an
ngset {or b endered dets & pass-through sracgement), and has seither trassforred nor rebsined subslangially sll of the
rikes and reacards of the asesl or trensfeered contral of the seet, the ssxet lu recognised to the extant of the Compeny”s
continging involvemnent in the esvel In dbed cese, (e Contpany also neoognises an associated llshility. The tmasfemed
asiet and the sssociaved Lsbility are mepsured on o basis that reflects the rights and oblizations that the Company has
retuined. The Company derecognises a finamcial liahifity when ihe obligation under ibe Habilily is discharged, cancelled
of expired.
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited s ;’f} ?‘-—*
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

338  OMeetting of Ainancial sszeis and Asancial Habilitia
A financial acset snd 2 fimanciol lability is offset and the net amount Is reporied [n the balance shoet if the Company has
8 Jegally enforceabls right 1o sel-off the rocognized amousts and intends edther 1o seltle on @ nel basis of to redize the
Besed and sebibe the lability sinvoRsnooushy,

34 Impairment logaes
141 Finsncinl ssssty

Tha Company sssesses ot a forward locking basis the expected credit losses sscciuied with i (oancial mscts, The
Company opplies the simplified spprosch 10 recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade debts, due from cnstoemers
and contrect assets, Individually significant financinl assets are togted for impainment on an individuad basiz The
remaining financial assets are assedsed collectively in groups that share simélar credit risk characteristics. The Congpany
recognises in profit or Joss, a5 sn Empairment gain or boss, the amoumt of expocted orodit losses {or reversal) that ix
reguired to sdivst the loss allwance ot the reportng dete,

343 Nonfinsmcial aasein

Tho carrying omounts of the Company's non-financial sssels, ofber thas invenbories and deferred tax assets, are
revicwsd at cach reporting dste o delenmine whether thore Is amy indication of Impairmene. 1F any soeh indication
EXisD then the asset's recovensble amount is ctimeted, For goodwill and [misngible assets that have indefinite §ives or
thet are not yot avmilaile for use, recoverable amount is catimated at cach reporting dete.

¥ An impairment bass iy rocognized if the carrying amount of an aesl of ils cash-genoreting unit cxcceds ity recoverable
amoumt. A cash-genersling unit is the smalicst identifishie xsset group that generates cash flows that largely e
independent from othor assets and groups,

Impairment losses are recogaized in profit and last. Impairment losses recoprized In respect of cash-generating wnils we
aliecated first to reduce the carrying amount of sy goodwill slocated to the units snd then to reduce the carying
amoyat of the othes sasets of e unit oo @ pro-rots basis. Impatrment losses an poodwill stall not be reversed.

- 1 Taxathon
loome: tax on the proflt or loss For the yoar comprises of cumrent and deferred tex:
151 Curvent

Provision of current ta Is based op the taable income for the yoar determined In scconiznee with the prevailing law
fios tauation of moome. The changs for current tax & celoulated using prevailing 1o maes or I rates expected 1o apply
to the profit for the year If enacted after laking into account tmx orediss, rebates and exemptioas, if any. The chasge for
coren! nx akio includes adjsimonts, where considered pecessary, the provision for tax made in provious years arising
frmim axsecsments framed duting the year for such yesrs.

333 Deferved

Deferred tax is provided uaing the balaswe theet ability method in respect of &l temporury differences arising from
diffcrences between the carrying amaunt of assets and Hahilities in the financial statements and the correspoeding tax
hases umad In the computation of e tavable profl Deferred tax Nabilities wre geserally recopnized for all iaxable
temporary dilferences and deferred ot aseets e racagnized to the extent that il is probable that taxsble peofits will be
wvnilable sgainst whick the deductible temparary differerces, unmed tax lossex and tox credbz con be wfllzed, The
cartying mmount of deferred o st | reviewed a1 each balance shest date and reducsd o she extont that it is oo
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will bs svailable to allow all o part of the deformed tax assel to be utilized.

Daferred tax assets and labilities are caloulstad ot the rales that an: cxpected fo sppdy 1o (e period when the asset is
reslized or the Hability ix sefled, baved on the tay mbes (and tax brws) that heve Been enacted or subsiantively enacted
by the balance shest dete, Deferned tind i3 chargad or oredited i the profit end loss socount, except im the ease of dems
credited of charged W0 equity in which case it is incleded in cquity.

Biy Bird Foods (Pve) Lad, Merch 2033 . : : Page na. 10
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited .--/;‘9"‘
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

38
36l

inz

3.7

iz

34

L]

ER LA

Taxable temporary differences are adjusted by the portios of income expecied to fall under FTR.
1 ; :

Right-of-use nssels

The Company recogaizes fighi-of-use msscts ot the commencement date of the lesse (i.e., the due the urdertying nsses
wvaileble for el Right-of-use assets are messured of com, less any sccumulated depreciation and impainoest lusses,
and adjisted for any remeasurement of lease Ginkilities. The cost of right-ofiose sssets inchades the amount of lease
Linbilities recogaieed, Iritinl direct coste incurred, and lense payments made ot or befre e conroencement date lass any
keaze incentives recelved. Right-cf-use sscets are depreciated on o straight-line basis over the shorter of the leme term
ansd the estimated uschisl Fves of the xessts.

Lease liabikithes

In calculsting the presont value of lesse payments, the Company uses it Incremental borrewing rate of the lense
commencensenl date becanse the interest rate implicit in b lesse & nol rosdily determinable. Afler the commsenocment
date, the mnount of lease lishilities is incrensed to reflect the sccretion of interest and reduced for the lease poyments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of leass Habdlities it remensured if there is 8 modification, o change in the lense
term, & change in ‘the leass paymoents (e.g., changes to fabare payments resulting from o chenge in an index or rate wed 1o
determine such buse paymeots) or & change in the xezessment of an opthon 1o plerckase the underiving asset.

Hjarah restals

In fjarsh transactions, sigaificant postion of the risks and rewards of ownership arc retained by the lemor, Islamic
Pinescisl Aceounting Siandard 2 - Tareh' requires the recognition of "Wjrak. pavosenis’ {losse repinls) agalnst ijarnk
financing & af expense bn profit o Joss oo o sraighi Hoe basis aver Bie {joreh torm,

Drividend

Dividend disribution to the Company"s sharehaldoers is recognized a5 2 lability In the Compary’s fosscisl stuements
b the pericd in which dividends are approved.

Provizsioas and contingeacies

Provigions ure recopeised bn the balases shest when the Company has a lagel or constructive obligation a4 n result of
past events and |z is probable ikt putiow of sconcmit bonefits will be reguired to seixla the cbligation and & reliable
eatimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewsd ol cuch balasce sheet duie sed adjusied 0 relec)
cigrent best estimate, Whers the outflow of tesources embodylng economb: benefits ks ot probable, 1 contingent
Himbility is disclosed, unless the posxibdlity of cutflow s remote,

Invemtories
Inveninsies, excepl for siock in wansil, are =aned M dvwer of cos and net reglizable value. Cost iz determinad as fallows

Sderes nad ppares

Giere, spares ardd lonss tonks ame salued are lowor of weighted avernge cosl end net realizable valee Cost is determined
using weighted average method exeept for the items in transit which is determined on the basis of cost inourred up 1o the
balénce sheel dabe For Hemo which sre slow moving and / or demiificd s» surplus in the Company's regquirements,
adequate impairmant | recogaized. The company revisws the carrying amoant of stores, spare parts and locss teold of 4
regular basis and provision Ts nasde. !

Stock s trade

Stock of pow materiad, wark in process and fArished poods are valoed ot lowwer of weighted averape cost asd Bet
realizable value. Stock of packing muterial is valued ot weighted sverage costl less inpairment, if any. Cost of work in
process and findshed poods comprisss comt of diros) material, babour and dinectly sllocable manufactaring overhecads,

i Biead Foodds (Pt ) L, March 2033 Piaypm s 1
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Stock in trensit is valued ot cost compelainp nvelse valos plud other chitges pasd thereon

et realizaible vahee signifies the estimatsd sefling pedce in the ordinary course ol business a5 estimated cost of
completion and estimated cost necegzary in be Incurned Bn onder to make & sale.

Bilologiesl assets

Blidlogical assety are measured &l mich roporting dete, st fair value loss costs oo scll, Geirs and lossos Shal anse on
myzavoring biclopical ansets at fulr vahie less coats to sell are recogrized bn the peofit o loss |n e period I which they
arise, Costs o sell fachude all costs thet would be noccesary o scll the biological assets, including cosls nevessary to get
the biobogicel nssets to markel. The fdr velucs of bislogicel ssscty (Birds) is delerméncd snmuslly.

Trade debit and other receivables

Trade debis and other retsbvables are shaled inltally af fulr vilee and subsequently measured ol amoctissd cost nsing the
effective inferest rete method. Provision is mads oo o bashs of Tietime ECLs thet resll from all pessible defial events
awer the expedied 1ifie of the trade debts” Bad debis wre written off when considensd recoverabie.

Heveane recognition

Feveniue B meopnbed when or as perfommance obligtions ase satished by tramifering confrol of 4 promized goods or
Rerviee A0 & cumtomicr, and control cisher transfers cver thme or 8 & point in time. Revenue b measared ot fadr vaidue of the
consideration received or pecsivable, exclhudlng discounts, nobaetes sod govermmen!t kvics.

Intesest Income in accroed o A Hose proportion besls by reference do the principal outstanding and the applicable mie of
retum.

Foreign carrencies

All monetary ssrets snd liahilities in foreign currenches are transieed into rupees af sxchange ratcy provailing st the
balonce sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are iransinted into rupees at exchange rates prevalling of the dase
of ransaction, Mommonetary Resets andd liabilities that are messmed in borret of historical cost ie a fomeign ourmency ans
translted (mio fopees of etchangs rases prevelling @ the date of transsction. Mon-monstmry assets and liabRities
denominated in fongign currency that are dated o foir value are tensdaled ioie rupees ol exclonge rabes prevalling af the
datz when fadr values are determined. Exchanpe pune and lossee are incloded ie the peodhl and bess scoount currenty.

Borrowing cest
Bomrowing, eouts are interesi and other costy that the Compaay incurs in conpection wilh the bormowing off fands. The
Company capitnlizas bormowing costs that are directly sttributable to the scquisision, constmsction or production of

gualifying axects ax past ofthe cosi of thess assets. The Company rocognings ofher bosrowifig cosls &5 8 exipernas in
the paryod iz wisich it incars.

Cash and cash pqeivaleats

Cagh and cush sqivabaats in v statenent of fniscial pesition comprize cash s hasd, cash wt banks snd shont-term
highly Hapabd depoaies with & materity of thret monitis or kess, (hal are resdily convertible 1 o known smeunt of cash apd
wubiest (o an tsigatficast risk of changes In vadue,

Stafl retirement benefiti L

The company operates an vafunded grataity schemi for all its permanent employees which provides for the gradested
soale of benclits dependont oa the lengih of service of the employee oo terminal dabe, sebjcct (o the compietion of
minimum qualifying period of sorvico, Gratuity is based on employees’ kot drasm salary, Remeasnrement gains / losses
& por achasrial vaksation dore ot finascial year cnd are recognised kmmedistely In other comprehenrsive incmes and all
ather expeniscs are recognised in secosdimie with LAS- 19 "Employes Besefits™ in the peodin asd loes seeoant. The muet
pecent vabastion was carrisd out as on March 31, 2023 using the *Projected Urdt Crodit Mchod™

Poge no, 13
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited _ : "/QJ"_
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023
¥

4.4 Deprecistion for the year has been allocated as fiollaws

Coost of sales 309 B26,984
Adminksrative enpenses 400512
Distribetion and selling expenses £, 562

- 316851168

42  Fomitwre fixtores snd squipements incledes amount of Rs. 67.5 million of freerers owned by the company bng with 3rd
potics In nommal course of business,

4.3 Falr Value Memurement
The Compeny had revalued fis frochold tand, boilding and plant & machivery o June 30, 2021, The revaluation had
been carried oul by KO, Traders (Private} Limited, independent valuers ot connected 1o the Cormpany and was on the
panel of approved valoers of Pakisan Banks Associstion and possessed appropriste qualification and experience In the
Tair viles messurements, The baxis esed fior the revaluation of freshald land, buildings snd machinery wers &s folloows:
Lapd
Instituted Site and conducied market Inquiries s surroundings ares of the under valuation premises W mseeptain the
current markes vakue of sinilar type of land, which &s selling in the imnmediats sumrmindings
Ruildings = :
Afer tking into acoount the specification, type snd clis of building, the repiscement valwe has booa pomputed
eosidering iaflation facior, currency Govaluation, escalsilon of busliding matenials & labour raies oto,
Fiant and machinery

For the purpose of valuation, evatiated the ficed assel 8 present condition, a3 ecquired and exist in the 'companics’

ewmnership. Afier verification of the physical existoace, Iocatios, condition of the property and hast inguiries canductad
im the mmarie=t

Forced Sales Vadve (F3V) of land, burldings snd machinery waz Bz 793 millioe, Rs. 2250 millios aad Rs, 2,966
miilien respecively as a2 June 30, 2021,

The fair vabuation of revahied assets has been determined using bevel 2 inputs of fir valus hierancky.
Hed thore been o revalisstion the cost, sccumalaicd depreciation and book walise of revakied assets as ot Marck 30,

S

2020 would bave been o fodlows:
Accumulsbed
Partiva Coal Bosk Value
a rs I i
Lands[recheld 148,074 928 - [ 48,074,928
o = freeholid Eind 1,716,452 441 825,111,732 291.327.719
sod Machisery 1,666,821,981 | 1,167312,958 | 1,495,500,021 |
Total y 4501336350 1,992,424 680 1.535.911,670
5 Capitsl work-in-progress

Chvil works - building 21 10,141,913
3 " Iﬁl.!li,ﬂli

51  The moverment in capital work in progress i as follows:
Bolucce af the begimming of s yoor e L RTTRCT S 100,655,913
Addition during the year Jﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁm 426,000
} Ei?&ﬁl' e ]

Trarsferred to opemting fined sl .. Fer—d =
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Long term loans and sdvances _
To employees - secured, considered good 6.1 BRI 1,620,241

Company bas provided interesd froe sdvances to its emplowees, adjusteble agains tkeir monldly salary. These advances
are secuced apainet granuity payalkie to saff

Movement m advance to sl

thﬂﬂﬂhﬁ.hﬂhguflhjiﬂ 1,BE1, 98]
Add: Advances during the year 292549
Lese Reeetved during the yeur 434 380
Closing balance at year ond 1,750,241

Lezs: current portion shown Ender cument assels i 120,000

The maximum aggregste balance of advances doe from the stfT af the end of eny meonth wes B, 1,74 million (2022: Ra.
£A7 mallion).

Long term deposits and prepayments
Security depasits = [arah
Seoarity deposits - pther

Stores and spares
Stores and spares

Hiock in trade
R marlerkal

Tacking massrial
Flaished goods

Trade debis
Ciibers - congidered good - unsecancd
Allowanes for expecied credit loses ) L 11

Mevement in allywasce for expecied credit losses
Al beginning of the veur

Cheange fior the year

Wiitten o1 during th year

AL epad ol the yoer

Loans and advanses

Current matisity of advascs o stell .l
Advence o supplies

Lester of credil

incoms tax refundeble

Crher advances

=1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

1813 The expsours of The Bank of Punjub bas been restructored/ reschoduled for & tenor of § yoars (farther extension of 1
year In repayments B boen grasied In curmest yem) The lmit cerries 8% food markup e has finad matority in
September 2029, It ks repayable In twenty sipht step-up quanerly instalbmests and socared by way of (i) PP Charge up
o Rx2dl milicn oe lend, bisilding and machisoy nsalled ol compaey’s foods processing plast locaied &l Manzs
Jusnber Khond, District Kasar (i) JPP charge of Ra §00 million over current sassts of the company snd (i) Personal
Guamnpiees of sponsoring direciors,

1814 The loan spproved by United Baak Limitod "UBL" iz sscured by way of () JFP Charge of Re. 334 million on fixed
swets including band, building, plant & mackinery of the compary (If) Exclusive charge of Rs.267 million over 2 pouliry
fhrm msasuring 1193K-1004 located ot Mauza Hadbast Chak no. 14, Rakh Hisidersbed, Tehsil Maskeers (Bhnkiar)
cwned by Grosd Poront Poultry P Limited. (ilf) Corporate Cosrmies of Big Fesd Pyt Limited, o sisior concor and
{iv) Personal Cussraniees of sponsoring directors.

The loan carries markup st UBL's Cost of Furds snd has finel repayment In Decerber 2025, Payment of mxrkup
ﬁ@aﬂmﬂdhw&mmﬂ.mﬂ

I5.1.5 This represents Terms Pacility sinounling b Ba.500 million [Fecility I) from Ssodi Pak Indestrial And Agricolvarsl
Investment Compeny Limited "SAFICO" whikh ls secured by way of (I) ranking cherge of Re. 667 million over fixed
nssets of the company (1) 181 exclusive charge of Ra. 294 million over tbe proporties focalad &8 Abmed Block, Now
Garden Town Lahors owned by group compasies 1.6, Grend Perent Pouliry Pyt Limited, Big Bird Pouliry Breeders Py
Limited and Big Feed Fvi. Limitod, ssd (iil) Personsd posmmiees of all the dirccing.

The Company ovailed Long Term Floance amausting 1o Re. 320 miflion (Facility U) from Swadi Pak Tedustrial and
Agricultural Investment Compary Limited "SAPICO" which is secured by way of () 13t exclusive charge over land,
baiiding, plant and mechinery of Raiwind farm {owned by Blg Bird Poultry Breeders Pri. Limited) measaring mea 163K
[ TR situmbed ni Mmara Fakh Jodbn Diveer, Tohsil & District Labore and (1) Ranking Charge of He 467 millice over
current azsels of the company.

In December 2021; SAPICO spproved resinscturing of both feciliies (Facility | & II) for a fresh period of 7 yours
commencing from 00072021 (inclugive (wo years' gmce pericd for principsl sed markep paymests). The Hmits
repmyable in 20 equal qusnerly insaliments camy mark up of the rute of & mosths KTROR + 1.3% pa Mark ops accruc
from 01.01,2022 io 30062023 kave aisa been deferred which mre recoversbls in 60 egual monthly installmenss
commencing from 11072023,

18.1.6 The serm fnance facllity of Bs 473 million has been approved by Pak China Envestmont Company Limited "PCICL" for
thve tenor of five years including prace perid of cighteen months. 1L s secured agsinst (7) 192 SBCP Charge of Rs. 633.33
milliem and token martgage of Bs. 010 million over & peuliry Farm measuring 12895-16M simated 22 Mouz Gendalas,
Tehail Pindi Gheb, Attock owned by Blg Bird Poultry Breeders Pvt. Lisited, b sister copcemn (i) Ranking changs of R
£33.23 pver all present and futare fixed assels of the compasy. (1H) Corparate Guarenioes of associale concerns e, Big
Bird Poultry Breeders Pyt Limited and Big Feed Pro Limdted and (fv) Personal Guarantees of spoasering directors, The
facility originally was repayshie in 14 equal quarierdy instaliments and carried Mark-up rats |3 3 months KIBOR = 2.5%
pavahle al quarierly bagis.
ln Oetaber 2009, PCICL spproved exiension i repayment tenar of the limit up to oine years {inclusive grace period
against principal and maskup for 3.5 yoars yews commencing from fine disbursement date ie. 16102017} After
restnsctuging, the fycility i repayable in 22 oqual guarterly installments starting from October 2021 and opproved
defarment of mark up payment for | year ending ca 16.10.2020. The facility carries new pricisg & 3 moaths KIBOR +
Pipa ;

15.1.7 During the year; the company fulfy scttied torm loes of Rs.375 million obtained from Samba Hank Liméted. The fecility
was secured by way of {[) 15 exchaive morigage charge over a property (insludieg hind, bullling & machinesy)
mma:mwunumnﬂmmmwmmwmmrmmm
Pvi. Lisited, & sister coneern (1) Ranking chargs of Ba. 534 million on Fixed Assets (present & future] installed 1 Foods

peocezsing plant of the company (i) Ranking clarge of Rs 534 million on receivables (prescnl & fubure) and (i)
Pmﬂmundmmdn;dhnm

g Fird Foods (Pet ] Lid, Monch 201) . Puge no. 14
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] Deeferred markiop

Dieferred markep & 22
Less:; Current mabarity

i Diminishing Mosharaks Finance
Déminishing Mushamim 201
Lagma: Curment madurity 3

201  From finandial instinations - secarad

Brubai |slnmic Bank 20.1.1
Asicar] Ixlamic Bani 20.1.2
il fefamic Bank .13

00,1 This represents Shirkad ul Melk Cum facility mnctioned by Dubed fslemic Besk Pekistar Limited that has beer
converied from outitanding exposure of short term bomewisgs | wakalah istishoar). The Scility Bas total repoyment
senar of five years (inclusive 13 months grace perbod) mnd bis finsl settfensont In December 2025, The Fmit casvies profit
rate of & menths KIDOR plus 2% per anuum i secured against (i) Token Registernd Morigage of Rs 100,004 and
remalning by way of Equitshie Morignge of lbe property measuring 214K-19M shested ot Hadbast Mauza Jamber
Klerd, Tehsil Panokl, District Kagur owned by Mr. M. Abmad Kzmal 5o, M, Mustafn Kenal, the direcior of the
Company {if) Ranking charge of Bs.534 million over Current Assets of the Company and (i) Persons! Graarentees of
smnsrawing direcine,

20.1.2 This represents Diminishing Musharskeh Facility sanctioned by Askari Bank Limited for a tenor of five years. The
facility paysblz in twenty quarterly installments stating from June 2021 casrfes pricing a1 M KIBOR + 1.50%pa s
secured e wy of {7 Token Registered Morigage of Rs. 0.10 million and rematning squitable morigage over & prapserty
{pouliny farm) measucing 1, |BAE-08M situated ot Chak oo, 3, Rakh Mankira, Tehsil Mankira, District Bhakiar paned by
hife Grand Parent Pouliry Pvi. Liméled, » sister concern (if) Ranking charge of Rs. $33.34 million over corrent assets of
tac company sad (i) Personal Guansiees of sponsoring directoes. Keaping fn view the cusyent nation-wide business
challanges; the compuey roqusited the bank lor exionsion in wdsting repayizel beor which i usder considerntion ot
the bank,

20,13 The *Diminishing Musharake® facility spproved by MCB Iglsmic Bank Limited "MIB® i repayable in fve years
inclusive grace period of 1.3 years (principal only). The Hmit s sceurad by wey of (i) JPP Charge of Ris. 267 millian oa
alb present & fitare fined msets of e foods proctssing plant jocated at Mauza Jumber, Tehsal Patioki [istrict Kasar (ii)
Personsl Guarantees of sponsoring directors. (jif) Corparate guaraniees of Big Feed (Tvi) Limited, Grand Parent Pouliry
{Pvt) Limited and Big Bird Poultry Bresders (Pvt) Limited, The Escility carries profit eats &t RTK plus 1% p.a.

31 Deferred lnbilities e o
Dieferred trxation 2.2 o8 00 31461975
1. | BISI9T96

1.1 Thedefemsd tax ssiet on mmused i bnsses T booa recognized oaly the exiont of unabsorbed tax deprecistion loases o
these sre svalixble for vse for an infinite poriod usder the present income X Laws.

B Fard Fouds (Pt} Lad, Moreh 2023 Page e 19
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Moles to the Financial Statements
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1.3

]

£ B )

22,03

Sig Bard Foods (Pec ) Lid, March 2023

Miarch 31, June 30,
2023 2023

Dieforred taxstion .
Thie assct (Habflity) for deformed tasthon commprises emponry differences relating bo:
Acceloraied tax deprecintion 1408 524,845
Fetirernent Berefit LAY (21.652,000)
Business bosses & anabsorbad tax depreciatlons B4y (435470,197)
Allowance for expected credit losses 2R (18.052,803)
{xhers provisions 5], (117,829,348)

3L BIL619.706
anldht;m of deferied fax

Cipening deferred tux lobility

Closlng deferred tax liability

Dieferred tax sttributed (o other comprehensive inoome

Wt deferred tax charge 7 (credit) recognized in satement of profit or loss

FI1.593.265
214,615,796

Employes's benefit obligation
Retirement benefits - smdl gratuity

Presen: vabue of defined benefit chligation’ TE110,572
Add: B -
nmﬁmm 78110372
Changes in present valos of defincd benclit ebligations : ;

Present valoe of defined beselit obligation W; 51,118,985
Current service cos EOL AR RLI U 13,958,241
Interest cost on defingd bonelit obligation e 1 46T
Benefies due but not pald {payabic)

Terefte paid

Remesnireinenka:

Actuaris! [pains)lioeses from changss in mancisl sssemptions
Experience adjusiments
Present value of defised benefit abligation

Expenses fo be charged to P&L
Clunrest service com
Inuesest cost on defined benclils oblipsiion

Tatal remensurements chargeable ln plher comprebonsive lnenme

Remessurement of plan abligation: y A
Achssrial bosses from changes io finascis] sxsumptivns %:ﬂ?d__,_r,“ 537,175
Experience adjustments e SR {5,103, 658)
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For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

Jume ¥,
Fiird ]
2214 Changes In et lability
Balance sheet lishility THASL G2
Expense charpeabie tn Mil 18632217
Reomstasuroments chasgeakile In oiber comprebansve income (5516511
Benefis pald (10,501,025)
Balmce sheet linkility TE1I0572
2115 Significant actunrisl sssumptions
Discount rate used for interest cost i P L charge 2E lﬂ% i i
Discount rate used for the vear end obdigasdon [ a b 3 13.29%
Average duralivn of e defined benelil obligation is 8 vears (7 vears),
Estimated sxpenses to be charged ko P & L in Financial Year 2023 Rs. 21.3 million.
2216 Year end scnstivity snatysh on defined benefit abligation
D¥iscount rate + 100 bps SERamT  sia2an
Discount rate - 100 bps ;ﬁgfﬁt_t;l_qﬁﬂﬁl 60,108, 386
Salary increass + 100 bps 4 ﬁiﬁ;;; 0,251,333
Salary Increase - 100 bps ;é fTase, a7

ILL7T DMatribution of dming of bensfit payments

1 11,366,079

2 11,083,438

L 10,702,300

4 10,313,100

3 i 9942 2T

B 10 o L AL 53,279 551

11 and shove ; EALSIDIE 2. 0,510,104,142

1218 Risk sssosiated with schema .

Martality risks

“The risk that the sctesl mortakity sxperience iz difforsst than the expomed mortality. This effect is mono pronsusced in
schemes where the ape anid service disiribution i on the higher side.

Whhdrwwal risks

The risk of actaal withdrawals experieaco s differool from sssened wilbdraowal probability. The significeance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitied benefits of the beneficiary.

Final salury risks
Thee risk that the final salary ot the time of cesstion of service is greater than whist we assumed. Since the benefit i

calcwluted on the final salary (which will chosely reflect inflation and cther macrocconoaméc facinesl, the benefit amioent
Incresses ns mbary inceases,

B Corrent amd over dus porthon of nen-correst Babilithes

Currenit arsd over doe partion of loag lerm finencing alaRia 408
Curront portion of diminihing muskamka fnamoe 1 7,143
B02.351.629

34 Shert ferm berrewings
Sheet term borrowing from basks - : i S0 728 361,760,415
= TET % !El_m_lli

Big Bind Foods (Pei] LAf, Mearek 2033 Fage mo. 2
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited ,—-/5?\?'
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

3.1 Facilities have been obtained from various convantiosal banks and Islamic banks under mark-ap arangements against
sanctioned lisnkt Such facilities have been obtained at park-up rees ranging from 16.30% o 21479 [ 2002: 8.73% w
16.31%)per mnrum, paywhle moathiy'quarterly on the balancs culstanding &5 per agreement The facilities ere secured
agalnsl ranking exchigived joind panti passn charges over present and futuie mavable' immovabie wsets, hypothecation
of current ssets and personal gesrsices of ditectors.

25 Trade and sller paysble

Trade ereditors I 0T 618
Agcroed expenzs 5d 4dd 66T
Sales tax payzbls 140,067
Addvance fom auEstomers 24466219
‘Weorkers' welfioe Rand i EM.T49
T ﬂ?&l:l
6 Accrmed apd deferved mark-op
Markap under long ke frsnce T98, 307,040
Mazicap under shom tarm borrowinga ReS13

26,0  This ischudes over dus inberesy’ mnark-op amounting Rs, 2593
7 Contingencies amd commilments

7.1 Contingencies

2701 Besovery suli pe: OOE NGy 3964772022 was filled by Pak Ching Irvestment Compamy Linsited befipre Labore High
Cotrt Labore an 22.07.2022 against the compary . The Company's case Is strong, acd there Is 8 bgh probabilicy of it
being successfal The cese bs currently pending, with tbe last bearing held oa March 20, 2023,

3712 BRecovery st no! COSMNO: TOLMZ) wes fled by Askari Bank Limited before Lahore High {oart |shore on
28 12,2022 against the company. The Company's case possesses considershle strength, and there is o strong 1heliboed of
hﬂmmMmhmhh;mﬂﬂhmmmhﬁh-ﬂmﬂl.m

2713 Recovery suit ne: COSNO: 680102019 filled by United bank Limited agalost the company on 20.06.201% before the
Lakore High Court Lahore. Subsequently on 19.5.20215uit filed by the United Bank Limited was docroed in teem of
settlement sgreement dated: 38.4.2021 by the Eabore High Court Lahiors, Banik fled execution petitiog for recoreery of
dperetal menount against compamy and I disscion/ MorigagorsGuarsntors. The Comparry his very good cme in is
farvoue and there is lielibood of Its sacoess. The case bs pending and last date of hearing was 19.05 2023

114 mm:n:mﬁm:WI'HWEMMLHHMLMHMMLMW
tse company. The Compeny possesses o sirong case with fivorsble prospects for soocess. The case bs curnemtly under
coasideration, end the mot roceat bearing was beld on 12.06 2073,

172 Commitmests

17.2.1 The company has epened letiers of credit for Emport of spane parts sod ingredients Rs Nil {2022 35 million).

T Dapk pewantee givea by bank on the betalf of compasy: 129 million (2022 129 millkion])

3723 The company has given corporsie gueranbees in fivor of it assoclafed companies of Re 247 million (2022: 25T miliboak
3724 The mmoont of fiuure payments under ljarak and taz period in which these payvacnts will become dus are as follews;

B Fira’ Foode (Pat ) Ladl, Meareh 2007 Pape no. 28
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

March 31, March 3,
1013 0T
vt e R - e
Mot later than one your 7l T

Later then ope bui sot 1nter than fve year B ETRT YT -

£ 2128133557 .
T —— e r—
[ursh Fecility (Lessing) foe purchass of commercial & nom commercial velslcles speonting o Ra. 100 milEon for the

tenar of five yours bas been epproved by Meerin Bank Limited The révtaly ageind eech unseclion is payable on

manthly basis
It is secnred by the way of,

o) Secarity depoaits wp io 13% of the value of pon commencial and 10%% for conmcrcinl vehicles, () Owmensip of
[jars ssaots in frvor of the bask, (c) A ranking cherge smounting Rx. 134 million over immovabia & movable saeets of

ihe company, (d) Personal poarentes of all the spoasoring difeciors.

F - Hales - oot
Local Salies ARG 505,230
Less; Sales fax (15,829,797
Export Bule BEL169 226,219,285
TALIGRE L TO0 115,718 LT0115.718
19 Costol mabes
R mrsteria! connanad " 1.895,321.759
Salasrex, wagts and henefits & IATIATI
Packing materinl 43,795 253
Freight, loading and unloading i 16,579,347
Power and fud . BI02194
Walch and waard T 10,25%.003
Mirceilneous B - A0, 344
Repair uad mainterence 213 16,968,735
M 2,735,19120
lexrensc in fmisiad goods 3 Emtm'u_;zl
, AE2 201
I8 Opening mw material 604 i A0E, Sl
Porchases made durieg the year | §  1,m95.511.75%
Less: Closing raw mmerial fans LIRS Bel s 0 ALE G
292 Salnrice wages and benefils includes defined benefit plan of Ra. 3.4 million (P02Z: Re | 1.3 inillion).
3 Dhirihetien and selling sxpemses ' :
Snlaries, wages and bencfits 3e0 L 35508357
Advertisement g 7,602 881
Freight ostward STagionst  pewans
Remt, rate and taxes EREBAITAID 9,351,520
Yot Eﬁ?ﬂ 6] 61703
Other selling expenses , =i§s?3 5 - 46,463
Depreviation 41 Bemirhrmai 2,885,106
P

Big Bird Foods (e ) Lid, March 2023




Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited |
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

/2T~

L1 Ealaries, woges and benefits includes defined bonefit plan of Bs. 0.997 million (2022: Rs. 1.3 million).

1 Axdminksdration et peases

March 31, March 31,
01 ' 2022

217802
2,441,218
SATEIM
6,355,991
163030
LOSR 210
12,745,081
9,339,060
0,384, T30
1,442,083

SEDPTS
Lysiiasi. 5141608
THIE

L1 Balasies wages and berefits inchudes defined benefit plan of Ba 1.13 million (2021: Ba. 4 miflion).

312 Auedibers remaneratien

From limancisl msscls
Imterest on bask depoits
¥rom non-financiel assets
(inln on disposa] of asts
Miscellaneous incoms

Sark-up on shon berm borrowings
Selnrk-up on losg term financing:
Hank chapss

k"] Taxation
Current yexr

Dig Bieed Fovads (Tt} Lia, Miwrch 2027

S ETLA88% 1,333,713
ety

IATS A1
16,705,796

21,514,951

AR g
I25.466,138
L197.763

23510001

2016438
(43,383,664}

@
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Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

b8 |

isd

Jb.1

3T

AN Per mansgement's issooment, the provizion for inoome i msds i the (nancks sstemeant if suficient There was oo

i Eeence: of ket thee yeacs of income tex provision with to ssssssmenl.
As change for the ourrend veor tanstion i hased on FTR in cese of export wed mindmm i i case of local sales

therefore, tax reconcilistion |5 not presented.

Lot before working capital chanpes
Effect on cesh flow dus te werking capital chamges:

(increase) | decrease in stores and spares
(Increase] [ docreass in Sock in wrede

It {decteanc} in trade debin

Inoresse in bosns and advamces

(Inanoae '’ docrease in depokits snd prepayiswnts
Incresse! (decresas) in trade asd olbeor paysbls

32

Lah

Cash and cash equivalents i
Cash and hank balances 14 _ 16,150,166 i
Hhiatt berm investment - (throa manths matarity) 13 : _'
1 R Era 5 1
=k ,
nmnmumnwguvmmummmmmnmam FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIF
; Diminishing
Short term barrawings Musharks Long Term Laam
Ropess

Balance st Juoly 01, 3002 M 0015 LAMEST 510
Changes from Financing Cash Flows
Repaymient - = {571,000, 00)
Proceeded during the yex . = -
Restructaring during the vear W é
Short lerm borrowings net 40T 156 - -
Changes from Financing Cash Flows 802,156 - (371,0001,000)
[Balasce st march 31, 1623 139,737,285 HEAOLA 1063,857 610

B Fied Feads (Pec) Dl Moeeis 2011

Fagame, 35
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Mates to the Financial Statements

For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

382

Earnings Per Share - Basie And Diloted
There |5 no dilathve efect on basic camings par shirg of the Company, basis is compuied g follows:

Lo aller tax for the year Rupee oo OLGRTITS  (2SRA1G165)
Weigntcd sverspe nomber of enduery shanc vablamiing during .

e yeur Number 197,093,000
Lioss per shase | Rupos (047
Financial Risk Mapsgement

The Commpany s ohjeotive in marsping risks ix the creation and protection of sharchaldors” valuz, Risk is bnkerent bn the
Company’s sctivities, bul it i managed through & process of ongning identifi cation, mensurement and mocikacing,
sahject 1o risk limits ond oty comirols. The procsss of risk masspermeat s oritical 1o the Company's confiming
profitability, The Company is exposed 1o credit sk, liquidity risk and muskct rk {which includes mbenest mbe risk and

prive risk) arizing {rom the financial insruments |5 holds,

The Asdii Comenitice oversees how management menkioss complionce widi the Compeny's risk managemenl poficies
and procedures, and reviews the sdequacy of the rivk musagoment framework In relation to the rsks fased by the
Company. The Audit Commitiee 15 sssisied in it cversipht role by imbernal sndil. [ntemal wudit uedertakes both regulae

vl adboc reviews of risk manapement cooirols and procedores, the rosulis of which me mported B0 the Audit
Commitice. '

The Company finsnces i3 ooerations theough aquity, horowings snd manspemenst of working caplial with & view w
iindnining & appeoptiate mix belween various soirecs of TRBRCE to minimine figk,

Market risk

Market risk s the risk et chanpes in nearkes price, nach as Torsipn exchangs mied, intersst rafes and equity prives will
effect the Company”s Income or the vabue of its holdings of finarcial imstruments. The Compsay by nol cxpascd o price
fisk

Curreacy risk

Cormency fisk i3 the sk tsel dve fair volwe or future cesh Oows of  foancial instroment will Ductaste becwase of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial trunsections of reccivablos and
payabies that oxist dun io transsctions in Forokzn currencies.

The company is not exposed 1o currensy rigks since there are 0o financlal ingruments of the reporting date whess fitare
cash flows iy depesdent upon chasged in fonsign exvchange mies. .

Interest rate risk

Triterest risk {2 the risk that thoe fuir value or futare value cash flows of the Gnancial instruments will fluctuste bomese of
chanpes in market interest rates. Tha compamy’s exposore o e fisk of chaages in market ntercetl rales relates priesarily
to the compary's Joag tenn and short torm frencley emangoment of Nosting intervsts rafes o moel ity busines
opertions and working cepital requirements. The following tsble demenstries the smsitively (o o remsonebly possibie
changs in interest cabes, with all other wariables hold comgiant;

Increane / [hecreans kn hasls polats
+la
=L "]

Big Brd Focdr [Pl ) Ladl, Miareh J02T FProge . 38

Ly

e e mw e e Y R T W
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Modes to the Financial Staiements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

354 Other price risk
Oeher price risk repregents e risk thet the falr valee or fistire cash Dows of o finencial instrament will Nzciuste because
of changes In market prices (otber (an thoss erisiag from nteret rate ik or curroncy risk), whether hose changes s

caused by faciors speckfic to S individeal Snanrcial insriment or s isuer, or facioes affecting all similer firancial
mstrements traded in the markes

30S Credit rish

Credit risk represepts the risk that one pasty to & finsncial festrument will caces a fnencinl joss for the ather party by
[asling fo dacharge an obligation. Credit rid: arices from depogils with basks, tads wnd other recelvebles
“ﬂl’.jl. l_-ni

EEERCIT TR L L i Tl e SN T R s o

386  Expoware io credi risk
The carrying amount of fnanclal assets represents the maximmem oedit exponre. The maximam expomes 1o credit Tigk

ol the repariing date was s Spllews:
Trade debis 930,991,108 ]
Loans srd advanoss 1,740,241
Dhcpasits and prepayments 14,713,137
Bank baiances 6,568,072

Balsnce of July 01, 2022
Charge for 1he period
Prad delbsts written of

The alfowance in respect of trade receivebles ane used {0 record inspairment Insses unless the Comparsy is satisfied that
&0 recevery of e ameunt owing b posaible; at that poént the smount conisidersd irmecoverabie i3 wriitem ofT sgainst the
financial nsset directly,

Trade debls are cssentlally due from local customers . The Company does not expect these coemterparties. 1o fail 1o meet
teeir obhgations. The majority of sales 5o the Company”s cusioeners ere mnde on spocific tormn, Customor anedil risk b
naamaped by subject o the Compeny's cstahlished palicy, procedures amd coatrols relsting to customer credit risk
mesnagement. Credie limite sro edsblighed for ol costomers based on imterpal reting criteri. Credit goality of the |
cnsivmer ks assessed based on an extessive crodit reting. Ouistending cusiomer soccihables are fegrilarly Sofiloned.

L

187 Credil quality of major financial asets
The Company limits ity exposure &6 credit risk by only [mvesting In highty lquld securities and only with coustarpanties
thai have a credit rating of at lesst Al and A Cdven thess high oredil retings, menngemenl does not expsot any
equipterparty ta fall to et e obligations.

IRE Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk repressnt the rlsk that the coenpany will sncooster difficulty in meeting obligations sssccissed with
financial labiives

Fmﬂﬂqﬂhﬂmhﬂuﬂnﬁﬂqﬁﬁdﬂuﬂnﬂmﬁﬂ&mﬂhﬂlmhﬂwﬂ

funding through mn adequuie ameunt of committed crodit facilities. Dwe 1o the dynamic nature of (e company's
business, the Board malmtalay Sexiikty e funding by maintsining svailshility ander commitsed credit linex

By Bied Foods (oo ] Do, Miseek 2075 Page n, 3T




Big Bird Foods (Private) Limited --'133"
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Pericd Ended March 31, 2023

sdanagement monitor: the forecasts of tbe company’s caaly and crsh equivalents on the bagis of expocted cath Gow. This

is gemerally cartiod vul in sccordance with practico and timits set by the company. The company's liquidity manapernent

policy imvolves projecting cash flows and consddering the bowvel of lqubd aseets meccssary w0 mest s [babilisies,

mmmwmmwmwmmmﬂmm
plany.

The table below analyses (he company's financial Eshilitles ilo relevanl maturily grocplags based on (e remalsing
period at the balance sheet date W the contrectual matierity date. The amounts disclosed in the lable are s cortroctusl
undiscountod cash flowe a8 (he impact of discounting is nat significant.

Toar T

Fimancial Linbibithen
As at 3ist March, 2033
Tl'ldﬂlhd#.lh#mﬁh
Acomed and deferred mock-up
Disnimishing measharalos finasce
Shor ierm barowing « saconed o
Long term linanwing A i

i J.‘Fﬁh_'l, LREERLE *’"1 PSR

T Avm 30tk Junc, 2032 J

Trade and other payables 412,852 185 432,052,333 -
Acerved & deforred mark-op BTLER 3 413956504 il e krld
Dimvinishing rrusharaka finaoce : * . 90,340,000 185,607,143 405 432857
Shart tern borrowing - secured 61,780,618 IS1, 769,415 .
Laong term famcing _ 3056, 704,095 U6 BAR £RS 1AM 857,610

414,195,277 2 010,003,241 2,104, 163,994
¥  Fiaascksl instruments by calegorics
Fuir value ls the price that would be received ic sell an asel or paid o m.wuumm
betweoen market particlpants al the measnsement date. liverment In & subsidisey aro cmrisd o oost The cemying valioes
of all other Enarcis] mysets end |iebifities reflected In the financial statements spproximate thelr fhir vadue.

Mareh 31, Jame M,
gl w3
........... Rpees.. oo
9.1 Financlsl sssebs st somorifeed cosi
Trade debts “"«!ﬂiﬂ.ﬂi ' 930,591,108
f.oans and advances _é R R 1,740,241
Deposits and prepaymenis it J!,,ﬂll..!l? 14,715,127
Shaort term investmeng b uﬂy,ﬂa’ 14,025,145
Cath and bank balancss -i _ S0a006
L _ﬂﬂﬂﬂ.
Financial lHabiltes ai amortioed caet
Trwdiz and other payshien 431,652,183
Acorued aoxd delesred mark-up JED 2T 240
Deformed markiip -
THminlshing muzharsies finance 290,44, 000
Shor term borrowings : 361763415
Laong tern bomowings : 036,704,033
* 1&1%

Bug Beed Foudy (Pt} Lad, Moech 2033 | Frage no. 28
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023

121 Falr valem of financisl sssets and Habilithes ;
The camying valoss of all Mesnclal sty and lsbilities reficeied i the flamsclal =alemens spproximese their falr
vabaez. Fair value bs determined on the besis of objective evidencs & sach reporting dete.

mwm:mmmm-m
wl;wmm

Level 3: Valuabion technigues (market sbecrmble) - [Hif)

Level 3; Valuation technigues (mon-marikct chservabicn) = (NIT)

383 Caphtel risk management
The company’s objectives whet Pasaging capital sre to safegasnd dee company’s ebilidy 1o conlienr & 4 going comoom
in ender to peereide seturms for sharcholders and benelits for otber slakeboldss and to meintuin an optimal capstal
stnscsure to redrace thee oot of capital,
: ";.'.- ".':"_.

The Company monitors capital msing “nel debl o copital ratio’. Net deie is calculaiod as lomy and shorl tems inlorest
hesring hank homowings less cash and cach equivaients

The gearing ratio i at Jone 33, 2022 and Mareh 2023 are as follows:
inferes! bearing bank borrowings

Less: cash and cash equivalents

Mt Dieht

Total Equity
Total capital {net debt and squity}

Met debt to total capital ratio
40 Plast Prodection capecity {Anmual)

Pirds sisughtering capacity TR T 34
Birds slsughnered i i &5
Percersnps of trtal capacity et [ 12%

40 )  Capscity is ealenlated an the basic of dlangheesing of 6,000 binds por hoar.
42  The Compeny operaicd the plani conmidiering the maricet dermend end sopply of the products.

41 Tranasction with related parties {Amaclates)

41 Detwils of tnssctions with nelated parties during e voer, otber e (bose which have bom disclosed lsewhere in
thwese financinl sasements, are o5 follows:

Hamg Hatae of Transchions
Grand Parert Foubiy (Pve) Lad. Hent of C¥fice e 924,000 924,000

Lol dmidelwy _
Compaery repaid loan io director smeonting o Rs 16 milkos.
Remuneration of key mansgement (4 disclosed in note # 42,

Mg Bid Foscedy (Poet | Lidl, hliwrehe 203 Page na. 19
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For the Peried Ended March 31, 2023

1.2 Following arc the related parties with wiom Uhe Commpany had entened in%o imns=ticns of hive arangement fagreement -

in place.
Hams Belationzhip Shareholding
Big Feed (P} Lad, Adgsociated compairy by sinue of common dircctoeship Wi
Big Bird Poulery Breeders (Pvi) Lid.  Associaled company by virhie of commen direciceship Hit
Ciramd Parent Poafiey (Fsi) Lid, Azmacinied company by virve of commen direcinnhip il

The Company doex not hedd sy shares in the above mentisned compankes
a3 Rémuirration of chicl executive, directors and executives

[ Descripition ___314azezs 202
Y aa r.' - -m
Basic Salary -'-f‘-; Z qf% 'gﬁlm_m 4,815,300 'ﬁ%
House rent 2,168,775 | 5,320,896 | 2168775 | 3177707
al 431,950 | 1.1 i 281,950 706,157
ofal Tﬁl&ﬁ%m 10,543,440
r of persons ! 1 ]

Mo reemuneration ks being withdrewn by chisf executive and oiber disecion.

March 31, blareh 31,
g a3
43 MNumber af emplovess Turbers
Todal murvher of emplovees 411 a1E
Averuge numiber of emplovess during the year 13 417

id [rake ol sutharization for izsoe

MMmewmhhhﬂﬂanﬂmﬂmmnmthm
Jane 21, 3023,

4 Correaposding figure

43.1 Comnpwrative figares Bave been rewmanged, wherever pecessary for the purpose of comparisor. Howswer, no significant
rearrangements have been made in thess finencial detements

Al General
Figures have been rounded off 1o S atanesl fupess unss olicrwise Raiod,

o e P L e ——— = = e
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? IH ['.IEPEHDEHT AUDITORS' REPORT

10 THE MEMBERS OF METATECH HEALTH LIMITED
REPORT ON TIHE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of METATECH HEALTH LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2023 and the
staternent of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive Income, the statement of changes
in equity, the statement of cash fAlows for the period beginning from July 01, 2022 to March 31,
2023 and notes to and forming part of the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In cur opinian, the accompanylng financlal statements present fairly in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and of its finandal performance and its
cash flows for the period in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework for
the purpase as stated in Note 1 of the financal statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further describad In the
Auditors” Responsibiities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We ara
independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Coge of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Aconuntants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiliies in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficdent and apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the annexed financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting along with purpose of preparing these finandal statements. As a result, these
financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinkon i not modified in
respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finandal statements
In accordance with the applicable finandal reporting framework and for such internal control as
the management detérmines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management Is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a golng concem, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unkess the management efther
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to
do 50.

Those charged with gowernance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reparting process,

Urber Dcer s Rarachi - Faisalabad - [sfamabad
Whgls nifta | ko ankan hlesmm
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: Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the finandial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our cpinion. Reasonable assurance ks a high level of assurance,
but Is not a guarantee that an awdit conducted in accordance with [SAs as applicable In Pakistan
will always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, Individually cr in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expecied to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesa financial
statementis,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from eérror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to deslgn audit
procedures. that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intermal control,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poficies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as 2 going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue 85 & going concem.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, struchure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and everts in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defidencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this Independent auditors’ report is Amin Al

:X{,l"llk:t ﬁf" }}JH‘; ; o8
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METATECH HEALTH LIMITED

. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
March 312023  June 30 2022
Note Rupees Rupes.
NOMN-CURREMT ASSETS
Property and egquipmant 4 - -
Long term Investment 5 . .
Defamed taxation A a .
CURRENT ASSETS '
Trade debls 7 . z
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 8 469 688 34,346 314
Tax refunds due from the Govemment - income Bax 27270 145 563
Cash and bank balancas g - 144,604 465
742468 170056 348
TOTAL ASSETS 742,468 178,006 348
EQLITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Ruthonzed capsdai 10 800,000,000 50,000,000
Issined, subscribed and paid-up-capital 10 74,324,250 16,335,000
[Accumidated Joss) / unappropriated profit {73,581, E7 548 308
T42 468 13,861,308
Sukuk proceeds in advance 1 3 ’
T4l 468 73.861.308
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term loan - unsecured 12 - 82 495 878
Trade and other payables 3 - 22.714,164
. 105,215,040
Contingancies and commiiments 14 . ;
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES T{_Jiﬂ 179,046 348

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

s



METATECH HEALTH LIMITED
STAYEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

Rewvanue
Less: Cost of sales

Gross profit/ (loss)

Administrative and general expensas
Operating loss

(fher ncome
Share of profit from aasociale company

Met loss before taxation

Prowvishon for taxation
Met (loss) [Profit after taxation

(Lossy Profit per share - Basic

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statemnents.
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March 31,2023 June 30, 2022
Rupees Rupees
13,106,344 -
(15,641,602
(2,535,458) -
{106,347.251) (3.787.077)
{106,882,70%9) (3,787,077
35,481,561 4,129,059
4376,137 -
37,857 608 4,129 059
(71,025,011) 341 862
{2.113,829)
(73,138,840} 31962
Restated
E.III 0.05

e




METATECH HEALTH LIMITED
-STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
March 31,2023 June 30, 2022
Rupees Rupees
Net loss after taxation (73.136,840) 31982
Total comprehensive loss for the period —— 138,840} 3415982

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
([T,
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METATECH HEALTH LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

CASH FROM OPERATION ACTIVTIES

Mt ioss bedore faxation
Adjustments for non cash and other iems.
Depreciation

Shane of profit from associate

Operating loss bekore working capital changes
{Increase } / decrease in curent assets:

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other recenvables
Increase f/ (decrease) in current Eablithes:
Trade and other recensables

Cash used in operations

Incorme tax paid

MNat cash (used in) | generated from operating activities
CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property and equipment purchased during the period
Short term irvestment

Procesds from transfer of property and equipement

Investment made in the share capital of an associated company
Wet cash used in investing activities

CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES

Changes in short term loan - related party
Met cash generated from financing activities

Met (decreasa) | incraase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents ai beginning of the peniod
Uash and cash equivalents at end of the period Note -9

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

(LT
(M
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™

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2022
Rupees Rupees
{71,025,011) 341,981
528,328 7,550
(2.376,137) ¢
{22,719,164) (3,158,600
{95,591 944) (2.808.525)
35,724 435 {34.346,314)
- 22718164
35724435 (11,627,150}
{59,867, 543) {14.436,079)
(2,241,040 (145.569)
(62,108, 589) (14,581,548
{14,555,963) .
. 80,000,000
14,555 963 -
- &0,000,000
[___(82495876)] | 35948276 |
(82,495 876) 36,948,276
(144,604,455) 102,356,627
144,604,465 42237 838
0 IM:ﬁmidﬁE




METATECH HEALTH LIMITED

. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

lssued, subscribed Unappropriated Total

and paid-up capital || profit / {accumulated

__loss)

Balance as at June 30, 2024 16,335,000 aT.204 336 13.339,326
Balance as at July 01, 2021 16,335,000 7,204 326 73,539,326
Total comprehensive income for the perod - 341,982 341,082
Balance as at June 30, 2022 16,335,000 57,546,308 73,861,306
Bonus shares issued during the penod 57,989,250 (57,888,250 -
Total comprehensive loss for the penod - (T3 138 240) (73,138 B40)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7: 1 T42 458

The ennexed notes form an integral part of these financlal statements,
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METATECH HEALTH LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1

NATURE AND STATUS OF BUSINESS

The Compary was incorparated in Pakistan in 1953 as a public Limited Company and its shares were listed on
the Karachi (now Pakistan) Stock Exchange. As praviously stated, the Company had long become a domant
Company due 10 closure of is plant and disposal of manufacluring facilies in 2010. In order to revive the
company, the Board of Directors had approved a revival plan and decided the principal business of the Company
to cperate in the lechnology-enabled healthcare business & services and also changed its registered office. The
Company’s registered office is now situated at 508, 5th Fioor, LSE Building. Alwan-e-ighal , Lahare,

Upan the unanimous approval of the revival business pian by the Shareholders. the Company has resumed its
commercial / business activities/operations in the new areas. Furthermore, the Company’s name has also been
changed o M's MetaTech Health Limited after approval from the Securidies & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
as on August 02, 2022,

Towards the endeavor of revival of the Company, the Company under the management of Modaraba Al Mali (a
PSX listed Istamic Fund focusing on the corporate restructurings and revival aclivities) has signed a Term Sheel
with Mis Ensmile (Private) Limited for an investment of Rs. 300 million and has also laken-over the Operations
and Management of Ensmile's Digital Dental Aligners Sludios in Pakistan, Besides this, the directors of the
Company has also decided for raising about Rs. 408.782 million from Modaraba Al Mak through the issuance of
Perpetual, Non-participatory and convertibhe Sukuks i.e. 5.5 sukuks are to be issued for every one existing share,
comprising 40,878 338 sukuks of Rs, 10 each. These sukuks are convertible into ordinary shares in 1:1 ratio. The
Company has also started eaming revenue from its operations from the islamabad based Dental Aligners Studio
of Ensmiie (Private) Limited. However, due 1o cument economic market situation, these Sukuks are on hald by the
SECP and the management of the company has decided lo cancel the propesed sukuks and these had besn
sellied by transferring the vestment in Ensmile {Privaie) Lim#ed to Modaraba & Mak after the alictment of
shares In its name under a duly executed lransfer deed entered info between the company and the Modaraba Al

However during the pericd, the members of the Company in their meeling held on March 24, 2023 have decided
and approvec the transfer of business cperations of the Company to Modaraba Al Mali for 3 consideration of Rs.
0.470 milbon and all the assels and liabikities of the company refated o the Ensmile portiolic are o be transfemed
and taken over by the Mcdaraba Al Mali Further, the members have aisc approved the change in principal
business line of the company whereby the company will no longer manage the dental studios o Ensmile [Private)
Limited for sales and marketing rather deal in trading business. In pursuance of company’s objectives from health
care business to trading, the company has aiso changed its name Io MetaTech Trading Limited w.e.f. May 18,
2023. Since, the members of the company have approved the formal plan during the period, therefors, this
afrangement as to lransfer of operations and disposal of assels & Habilities have been accounted for in these
financial statements.

The carrying amaunts of assets and labilities transfered to Modaraba Al Maki as approved by the members of the
company in their EOGM held on March 24, 2023 are as follows:

Assels Rupees
Proparty and equipment 14,027,635
Long term investmenl 289,396,637

Trade debls 173,078
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Other receivables 7,623,337

Cash and bank balances 2,113,647

313,934,334
ity and Liabilit

Short term loan (4,979,500}
Sukuk proceeds receved in advance {300,020,500)
Trade and olher payables (8,464,646)
(313,464,646)

Net assets 460,688

Subsequent to the reporting dale, the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting heid on June 14, 2023
has decided a proposed plan for the merger of the company withiinto Big Bird Foods Limited subject lo the
approval of plan by the members of the compary in their upcoming EQGM held on July 31, 2023,

These financial statements are being prepaned for the purpose of filing a pelition for the Scheme of Compromises,
Arcangement and Reconstruction for Amalgamation™erger (in lerms of provisions of Sections 273 Ta 283 and &l
other enabling provisions of The Companies Act, 2017) and to determine the SWAP ralio under the Scheme:; for
onward approval by the Honorable Lahore High Court afler completion of all relaled corporate and legal
formaliies. The effective date of the Scheme is March 31, 2023 or as approved by the Honorable Lahore High
Court

Upon the complefion of merger / amalgamation through the intended Scheme, MelaTech Trading Limited will be
digscived under the Order of the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore without winding up, and the shares of Big
Bid Foods Limited shall be issued lo the registered members | shareholders of MetaTech Trading Limited.
However, il the date of sanchioned order of the Honorable Lahore Migh Courl, the company will continua iis
business of trading activibes.

Since the company i3 going to be merged withinto Big Bird Focds Limited afler the sanctioned order of the
Henorable Lahore High Cour, therefore, the company is not a going concem and these financial statements hava
been prepared on aiternate basis of accounting La. net realizable basis.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

Thess financlal stalements have been prepared in accerdance with the accounting and reporting standards as
apphicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB] as notified under the Companies Acl, 2017;

Provisions of and direciives issued under the Companias Acl, 2017

\Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and direchives issued under the Companies Acl, 2017 have been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
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These financial slalements have been prepaned under (he historical cost convention without taking into account
any adustments for the effects of inflation or curment values, except for the following malerial items in the
statement of financial position. These are as under;

Advances and frade receivabies which are carried al value determined after the provision of impairment under
expecled credit loss approach:;

Certain financial instruments which are caried at their fair value in accordance with IFRS §;

Delered tax fiabilities recognized at amounts in accordance with AS 12

Provisions are recognized 2t amounts refiecting the best estimate and contingencies are disclosed in accordance

In thesa financial statemants, except for the statement of cash fiows, i the Iransactions have been accounted for
on accrual basis of acoounting.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management
o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assels and liabdities, Income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and judgments are based
on histoncal expenence and vanous other factors that are beleved to be reasonable under the drcumstances, the
result of which form the basis of making the judgments aboul carmying values of assels and Sabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimales.

The estimales and underying assumpions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
ane recognized in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the revision effects only that period, of In the period
of revision and future periods if the revision affects both curment and future periods. in the process of applying the
Company's accounling policles, management has made fhe following estimates and judgments. which are

i) Determination and measurement of useful e and residual vaiue of property and equipments.
i) Income tax

i) Impasrmen of non-financial assats

Iv) Expacted atlowance for trade and other receivables

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Hems included i lhese financial statements are measured using lhe cumency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operales. Accordingly, thesa financial statements are presented in Pakistanl
Rupees, which s the company’s functional cumency. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has
been rounded off to the nearest rupee, uniess otherwise stated.

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS AND FORTH COMING REQUIREMENTS

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023

The foliowing Standards, Interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
effective for accounling penods, baginning on or after the date mentioned against each to them :
Effective for the period
beginning on or after




|A5-1

|A5-8

|A5-12

|AS-16

IAS-37

AS-41

IFRS-1

IFRS-3

IFRS-8

IFRS-16

IFRS-10
! 1AS-28

* New Standards issued by IASB but not yet been notified [ adopted by SECP

Fresentation of Financlal Statwements & Accounting Policies -Amandmants
regarding the classification of Eabiities.

The amendments o |AS 1 require companies to disclose their materal
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting

Accounting Policies, changes in Accounting Estimates and Emors
(Amencment regarding the definition of accounting estimates)

Income Taxes (The amendments to namow the scope of the indial
recognition exemgtion).

Property, Plant and Equipment- Amendments prohibiting a company from
deducting from the cost of propedy, plant and equipment amounts
received from sefing fems produced while the company is prepanng the
@sset for its intended uss,

Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and Confingent Assels-Amendmenis
regerding the costs to include when assessing whether a contract is
L

Amendment resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standands 2018
2020 (the amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS
41 for enlities o exchude laxabion cash flows when measuning the fair
vabue of a biolpgical asset using a present value technigue).

Business Combinations - Amendments updating a reference to the

Concaptual Framewark.

insurance Conlracis - Amendments reganding the sexpiry dale of the
dederral approach.

Financial Instuments -Amendments resuliing from Annual Improvements
o IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (fees in the '10 per cenl test for
derecognition of financial liabilities)

Amendment resulting Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-
2020 (to resolve any potential confusion that mighl arse in lesse
incentives).

Consolidaled Financial Statements and IAS 28 - Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures [Amendmenl regarding sale or
confribution of assats between an invastor and il associate or Joint
Vanture),

Feliowing new standards issued by 1ASE bul not yet effective:

IFRS -1

First Time Adoption of IFRS

IFRS = 17 Insurance Contracts

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023
January 1, 2023

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022

Deferred

indefinitely

Effective for the

period beginning
on or after

July 1, 2009
January 1, 2023
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The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial stalements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied 1o all the years presenied, unless ctherwise staled.

Property, plant and equipment

Owned

These are slated al cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaisment less, if any. Cost in relation
to property, plant and egquipment compnses acquisiton and ofher directly atiributable costs. The cost of seif
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, dinect labor and any olher cosls direcily attribulable to bringing
the assets 1o 2 working condition for their use a5 intended by tha management.

All ilems of cperating fixed assets are initially rmcognized al cost. Subsaquent costs are added fo cost of fixed
assels of recognized as separale assels, a5 appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benafits
associated with it will flow to the enterprise and ils cosl can be measured relably, All other normal repair and
mainfenance cosls and on-going operational expenditute are charged to income during the period in which thesa
are incurmed.

Deprecialion ks charged to the statement of profit or loss by using reducing balance method 1o write off the cost of
an assel over its estmaled useful Fe in accordance with the rafes specified in nole 5.1 lo these financial
staterments, Depraciation on additions i3 charged from tha day In which the assel is put to use whila no
depreciation is charged for the day In which the assels are disposed of.

The assets’ residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed at least annually to adjust the resultant
sigrificant impact on depreciation, if any.

Residual values are determined by the management as the amoun il expects it would receive curently for an
itern of property and equipment if it was already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful
life based on the prevaling market prices of simitar assets afready at the end of thair usaful lives.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on the expected usage of assets. physical wear and tear,
technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar Bmils on e use of the assets and other similar factors.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon dispesal or when no future economic benefils are
expected from its use or disposal. Gaing and losses on disposals are determined by comparing dispesal proceeds
with camying amount of the refevant assels and recognized in the sistement of profil or koss during the period in
which the assat is disposed of,

Since the company Is preparing its financial statements on net realizable basis, therefore, the property and
equipment is being camied al net realizable vaiue which is eguivalent to carrying amounts of property and
equipment at the date of transfer. However, the company has tfransfemed all the related cperaling asssls duning
the period, thersfore, there is no impact on the camying values of properly and equipment at the reporting date
had these values been reported at fair values as the company has no assels as at thal date.

Invastments in equity instruments of associated companies




Irvestments in associated companies where significant influence can be established are accounted for using the
equity method. Under ihis method the investments are staled al cost plus the Company's equity in undistributed
samings and losses after acquisition, less any impaiment in the value of individual investment. Income on
mvesiments in associated companies is recognized using the equity method. Under this methad, the Company's
share of post-acquisition profit or loss of the associaled companies is included in profit or ioss, its share of posl-
acquisition other comprehensive income or loss is included in other comprehensive income and ils share of post-
acquision movements in resenves is recognized in reserves. Dividend distribution by the associated companies is
adjusted against the carrying amount of the invesiment. Unrealized gains on Iransactions between the Company
and its associate are eliminated 1o the extent of the Company’s interest in the associate.

Taxation

Income {ax comprises of curnent tax and deferred tax. Income fax expense is recognized in the stalement of profit
of loss, except to the extent that it relates to ilems recognized in cther comprehensive Income or directly in equity
(if any), and in which casa Ihe tax amounls are recognized directly in in cther comprehensive income or equity.

Current

Provision of curment tax is basad on the laxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calcufaled using the prevading tax rates fo the profit for
the pariod after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. Payable lax is higher of normal tax
at corporate tax rate applied to taxable income, or minimurm taxation at the rate of 1.25% of the tumover or
Alternative Corporale Tax al the rate of 17% of accounting profil adjustable as per income lax laws. For the
income covered under Final Taxation Regime (FTR), taxalion is based on the applicable tax rales under such
Regime.
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Deferred

Ceferred tax Is recognized using the financial position Rability method on 2ll temporary differences batween the
camying amounts of assels and fiabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxalion
PUpOses.

Defemed tax Aability is recognized for all the taxable temporary differences. Defamed tax asset is recognized for i
e deductivle temporary differences only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be availzble
agains! which the assel may be utilized. Deferred tax asse! is reduced o the extent that It is no longer probable
Ihat the related tax benefit will be realized. Significant management judgment is required lo determine the amount
of deferred tax assets thal can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxables profils
logether with future tax planning sirategies.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviawed al each financial posilion dale and reduced fo the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax
assets to be utilized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognized deferred fax assels are reassessed at each reporting date and recogrized 1o the exlent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax assets-and liabilibes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the perod when the
as5el is realized or the ability is setfled, based on lhe lax rales that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the financial position date. The measurement of defemed tax refiects the tax consequences that would follow
fram the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting dale, to recover or setile the camying amount of
its assels and liabilties.

Deterred lax Is charged or credited in the income slatemen!, except in the case of Rems direclly credited or
charged to comprenensive income or equily, in which case it is included in other comprehensive income or eguily.
Impact of future income subjec! o final taxation is also considered in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Technical Release — 27 of (he Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakistan, if considered matenial.
Changes in deferred tax assefs or liabifties are recognized as a comiponent of lax income or expense in profil or
loss, except where they relate to items thal are recognized in other comprehensive income ar directly in equity, in
which case he relaled defermed tax is also recognized in ofher comprehensive income or equily, respectively.

Off-setting
Deferred tax assels and lablities are offset if there & a legally enforceable right fo set off cument tax assals
agains! current tax liabllities, and thay relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Trade debits

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are criginaled and measured at fair
value of consideration receivable, These assels are writlen off when there i no reascnable expectation of
recovery. [ndicalors that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst cthers, the failure of a
debtor fo-engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Actual credil loss éxperience over past years is used to
base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camied at cost in the statement of financial positicn. For the purpases of cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and cash at bank,
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Trade and other payables

Liab#ities for trade and other amounts payable are carmied at costin the stalement of financial position which is the
fair value of the consideration lo be paid in future for goods and services recefved / hired, whether or not billed fo
the company. Accounts payable ars classified as current Babilities if payment is due within one year or less (orin
the ncemal operating cycle of business, if langer), if nol, they are classified as non-current liabiities.

Financial instruments

The Company classifies ils financial assels at amortized cost, fair value threugh other comprehensive income or
fair value through peolit or loss on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assels
and the conlractual cash flow characterisics of the financial asset.

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assels at amortized cost are heid within a business model whose cbjective is fo hold financial assels in
order to collect conlractual cash flows and the confractual terms of the financial asset give risa on spacified dates
1o cash flows that are sclely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outsianding. Interest
income from these financial assats, Impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss
arsing on derecognition are recognized directly in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive incoma

Financial asseis al fair value through other comprehensive Income are hedd within a business model whese
objective 5 achieved by boih collecting contractual cash fiows and selling financial asseis and the conlractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial asseis at fair value through profit or loss are those financial assels which are either designaled in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. A gain or loss on debf investment that is subsegquently
measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss in the pericd in which it arises.

Equity instrument financial assels are measured at fair vaiue at and subsegquent to initia recognilion. Changes in
fair vaive of these financial assets are nommally recognized in profit or loss. Dividends from such investments.
continue to be recognized in profil or loss when the Company’s right to receive payment is established, Where an
election ks made to present fair valug gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there
i5 no subsequent reciassification of fair value gains and losses 1o profil or loss following the derecognition of the
irvesiment,

Derecognition

Financal assals are derecognized when the rights: to recaive cash flows from the asssls have expired or hawve
besn Iransfemed and the Company has transferred substantialy all risks and rewards of ownership. Assels or
Fabilities thal are not contraciual in nature and that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposad by
the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.



Tne Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expecied credit losses associated with its financial asses
carmied al amortized cos! and fair value through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whather there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the
Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses lo be recognized from inétial
recognition of the receivables. The Company recognizes in profit or koss, as an impairment gain or koss, the
amount of expected credil losses (or reversal) that is reguired 1o adjust the loss allowance at the reporting data.
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Financial liabilities

Financial Babilities are classified as maasured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if & Is classified as held-fordrading, it is a derivative or it Is designated as such on initial recognition
Financial liabilibes at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognized in statement of proft or loss.

Other financial kabdiies are subsequenty measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
axpense and forelgn exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or Joss on
derecogniticn is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financiat liabiktes comprise contractual trade and other payabies and short term financing.

Derecognition

A financial Nability s derecognized when the cbligation under the liabilily is discharged, cancelled or expéred,
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tarms, or
the temms of an existing kability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification i freated as a
derecogniticn of the original liability and the recognition of a new labilily, and the difference in respeclive camying
ameounts is recognized in the profil or loss.

Offzetting of Minancial assets and labilities

Financial assets and financial labiities are set off and the net amount is reporied in the financia stalements when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the company intends either to settie on a net basis, or (o realize
ihe assets and to seltle the liabilities simuitanecusty.

impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss afowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) In respect of financial assels
measured at amortized cost.

Tha Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifelime ECLs, except for the following, which are
measured al 12-month ECLs:

Debt securities that are determined to have kow credit sk at the reporting date;

Other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (the risk of defaull occurming over the expected life of
Loss allowances for trade receivables are atways measusad at an amount equal to li‘etime ECLs.

When delermining whether he credit sk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinca initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supporiable informalion thal is refevant and
avallable without undue cost or efforl. This inciudes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
basad on the Company's hisiorical expenence and informed credit assessment and Inciuding forward-looking
information.

The Company assumes thal the credil nisk on a financial asset has increased significantly i it is more than past
due for a reasonable period of time, Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs thal resull from all possible default events over
ihe expected life of a financial instrument. 12 months ECLs are the pertion of ECLs that result from default evenis
thal are possible within the 12 months after the reporting dale (or a shorier penicd if the expecied life of the
mstrument i less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
confraciual period cver which the Company is exposed 1o cradit risk,

Individually significant financial assels are tested for impairment on an indhidual basis. The remaining financial
assels are assessed collectively in groups thal share similar credit risk characleristics.
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The Company recognizes in profit or loss, a2 an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date. Loss allowancss for financial assets
measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross camying amount of the assets. The gross carmying
amount of a financial assel is wrtten off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, THe Company individually makes an assessment with respect 1o
the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there Is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company
expect no significant recovery from the amount writlen off. However, financiaf assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories

The camying amcunt of the Company’s non-financial assets, cther than mventories and deferred tax assels are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. |f any such indication
exists, then the assel's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating
unit 5 the grealer of is value in use and its fair value less cost o sell. In assessing value In usa, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo Iheir present values using a discounl rale that reflecis cument markel
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific o the asset or cash genaraling unil.

An impairment loss is recognized if the camying amount of the assels or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impaimment losses are recognized In profit or loss. impairment lsses recognized
in respect of cash generaling units are afocated to reduce the camying amounts of the assets in a uni on a pro
rala basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessad at each reporting dale for any indications
thial the loss has decreased of no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimales used to delermine the recoverable amounl An impairment loss is reversed only to thal exient that the
assel's camrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the camying amount that would hava been determined,
net of dapreciation and amortization, if no impairment ioss had been recognized.

Kelated party transactions

All ransactions arising In the nomal course of business and ame conducted at amw's length al nomal commencial
rale on the same terms and conditions as third party ransaclions using valuation modes as admissible, except in
rarely extrema circumstances where, subject 1o approval of the Board of Directors, ! is in the inferest of the
Company o do so. Parties are said lo be related if they are able to influence the cperating and financial decisions
of the Company and vice versa,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obiigation as a resull of past
events and Il ks probable that an cutfiow of economic resources embedying economic benefits will be required to
sedlle the obkgation and a rekable estimale can be made of the amount of the cbligation. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the curent best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an cutfiow
¢f economic resources embodying economic benefils will be required to seltle the obligation, the provisions are
reversed.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the poinl in fime when the performance obligations arising from
the conlract with a customer is sabisfied and the amount of revenue that it expects to be enfitlied to can be
defermined. This usually occurs when conirod of the asset is transferred io the customer, which is when goods are
defivered 0 the cusiomers, Revenue Is measured based on the consideraion specified in a contract with a
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of thied parties. Revenue i5 disciosed net of taxes, retums,
rebales, discounts and other aligwances.

Contingencies and commitments
These are not accounted for in the financlal statements unless thesa are actual liabilities and ane only disciosed
when;

a)  them is a possible obligation thal arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed anly
by the cccumence or non occumanca of one or mone uncerain future events nol wholly within the
control of the Company; or

bl them is present chiigation thal arises from past events bul it Is nol probable that an outllow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required o settle the cbligation or the amount of the
obligation cannol be measured with sufficient rediability.

The assessmenl of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of
the fulure evenls cannct be predicted with cerainty. The company, based on the avafiabilily of the latest
information, estimates the value of contingent assels and liabiliies which may differ on the cccumence / non-
eccurmrence of the uncertain fulure evenis nol wholly within the conlrol of the Company. However, basad on the
best judgment of the Company and its legal adviscrs, the likely outcome of these litigations and claims is remote
and there s no need to recognize any fabilily at the reparting date.

Earning per share (EPS)

Basic EFS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adusting basic EPS by the weighled average number of ordinary shares thal would
be issued on conversion of all dilutive polential crdinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes
in profit or loss aftnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would resull from conversion of all
diutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Equity and reserves

Ordinary shares issued represent the equity and are racorded af face value. Any Iransackon costs associated with
the issuing of shares ara deducled from share capital, nel of any related income fax banefits, if any.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equily resulting from lransactions and other events, other than changes
resulling Irom lransactions with shareholders In thelr capacily as sharehciders. Total comprehensive income
comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Odher comprehensive Incoma
comprises ilems of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or
k55 as required or permitled by approved accounting standards.
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§  Long term Imvestmant in:
Associsied company

Ensmilz (Frivatz) Limiled - Camying Valua {squity method ) 51
Lass: Transhered 1o Modaraba Al Mai

81 Movemaent duning the pariod in investmient in associale

Balance as a July 01,

Add: kmesiment in assockats during the peanicd B11
Agd: Share of profit afier lax from essocated company 512
Less; Diddend Incorna mcaived dudng (he perdod

Eatanca és af March 31/ Juna 30,

HNumber of shares of Rs. 10 each
Parcentaga of holding in Ensmile (Private) Limaed

§.1.1 During the pericd . e Gompany hed acquined 33.33% of the share capital of the above nemed sssocisisd company represantng 5,050,000
shares of Rs. 55 41 sach which is calculated under the Saie growth method. The inwestment ks mada in Ina with the new business siralegy of
thes company whers it is suppased fo deveiop Ihe dental shadias of the said associaed company,

Entile was eftabished in December, 2019 and manufactunes Ciear Aligners, & denta! product, which ane ransparent plaste bracss wom
manufachumers. Thisss aligners an

cer e deeth 25 an allemative 1o the conventional melal braces and one of (e leading teeth

March 31,2023

289,386,537
(289,356,637}

sane 30, 2022

ranufaciured with 30 prinkers in Pakisian a5 percompuler generated cuslomized designs for individual padents laken al any part of the wold,

This maragement of the company had ransfemed this ivesiment in e nams of Modaraba Al Mol 35 per the midlualy agreed transher deed

enbered inlo betwenn e partics on March 24, 2023 and the shares of e above named associale hare been aliofled in e name of

Mocarana Al Mall. Thes ivvesimont has been adjusied agan the Sukyk proceeds received Yrom Modaraba Al Mail

£1.2 The company has recognized is shase of profif after tax from above named associale on the bass of unaudied Angncisl statemends. jor thip

pardod ended March 31, X023
1.2 Thig represents dhvidend income eamed oo invesiment from convendional arrangements.

6 DEFERRED TAXATION

Daforred Lax 3550ts arising due 1o deductible emparary diffarences
Long term vesmant

Linavaled tax bosses

Debermad to assot a5 at Mandh 21 7 June 33,

Less. Dedeired ¢ 2ssets nol recagaizad g1

Dedarred tax aseat recognized in he statement of finandial postion

March 31,2023
Rupees

(87,005,845)

June 30, 2023

(107 97T2.402)
167,972,402




1 Defemed i dssels in respedt of deductibie ismporary diflerences have not been recognized in (hase fnancial stalements &5 R s not probabie

T2

Enat fuluee taable poofits will be avalaoie in the foreseeable Tubure against which the Eacable losses will 2 nevarsed.

Barch 31,2023 June 30, 20¢2
Mote Rupees Rupesis
TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Consiserd good 71 078 .
GConsadgied doabifal T2 " 5448 ERE
73,078 § 444 880
Less: Prindzicn for doubtiol debils " [5.444.288)
TanTe -
Less: Transfarred 1o Modersba Al Mad E‘_ﬂﬁ
! Thise balances am past due buf nol impaired and ane within the age brackst of 90
days and had been ransherred bo Modarabia Al Mali on March 24, 2323 as decided oy
the mambars of the comeany on nan recrorsable bags,
Durirg the year, (i company had withen off this batancs asEnst the pravision for
doubbil dabix sinca the balance ks lmecoverable and there s 0o Irack record of Fe
prastieg concemed.
ADVANCES, DEPOEITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances - unsscures
onsidered good
Afvanes o supnlens 285,000 -
Frepaid exporses B 4,711,002 34345314
Dthad Focehvablos - rolated parties
Ernenibe (Privale) Lirdsd B2 2RI 245
biedarskn Al Atal B3 i
8,053,035 o8 4
Conaldened doubtiul B
Advance io suppliars F 1,237 788
Lises: Prowisson e balances doubtial of recovery - (7 237, TE5
8,053,025 R34
Less: Tranafared io Modaraba Al M2l (T.EE333T) .
IR 346 11
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Thils amount had baen adjusted | wiitien off during the period (Nole 17).

Thits represents amounts. recetvatble fom e sbova named reiafed party 85 curend sccounl. The perod end balance having boing e highest
agyregate bafance dus from the seid party at the end of any monih during the period. This balarce i within the age beackt of cos manth.
Moreower. the said party has a histoncal proven rack of profistity wih sound Snanclal focting Bs ewident ficm s balest avaitable audied
fimancial staternans for e year endad June 30, 2072 therefore, 1o provision under the sxpedied cradd 185 I§ required in resped of the
Saance recebsable from it. However, ths balance had been trarslemed to Mocarsba Al Mall on non recoursable basis.

Thig represents he balance amount moshable from Modassha A Vsl sher Be banstar of 2l the nebatad assebs and kabilties of e compay
B decided and agproved By the mevdar of the company In helr EDGM hald on Maech 28, F023 e daclosad in nohe 1 of these fnoncial

slatemants. This Ealance will be recoversbis in fhe orfinary courss of busness, i neiihvar pas] dus nor impained and b wilin the e braced
& o monEh.

This representsd an amaunl of Bs. 7,237, T35 paid to Mossrs. Swiss Embrosdery (Privete]) Limed for supoly of on plate and offer meaterial, bat
the suppler nad faded o supply material A Sull for recovery had been filed wih the Migh Court of Sindh end the malier s pending for

adjudicaton, Due to the uncartanty of Migadon, e Company had mace 100% provision against this balance in the past. During he year, e
Company has written off s balance against e provision for doabtl balance

Maich 31,2023 Jure 30, 2022

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Ciash in hand - 1T
Pay seder in hand . 23217355
Cash ot bank in current aceoynt 2,113,847 121,285 183
Less: Translermed to Modacaba Al Mal (2,113,647
144504565
March 31,2023 Jane 30, 2092

Rupees Prspmesy
EHARE CAPITAL
Autborized capital
50,000,000 {Jume 50, 2022: 5,000,000 Ordinary shores of Rs. 10 each 600,000,000 52,000,000

During v year, the Eoard of Dinecors of the cormpany hart decided ko increass e authorized capilal of the company and which had basn 50
Increasad from Re. S0 million 1o Rs. 600 milion ixdowed by a special resolution passod by the members of the company in Sweir mastng held
an ey 72, 2022,

March 31,2023 Jume 30, M2

Rupses Rupees
lssued, subscribed and pald up capial
1,633 500 [June 30, 2022: 1.633.500) Crdaary shares of
P, 10 each, iy pald up in cash 168,235,000 165,335,000
B,708 525 (June 30, 2022 M) Ondinary shanes of
Rs. 10 sach, fully paid up bonus shanes 3T.889,.250

14,324,250 18,325 0o

During the year, The Board of Dieciors of He company in elr mesting held on August 31, 2121 kave sonconced e Bsuance of 355% of
bomss shares |e. 3.55 bonas shanes for swary One Shats ek in T company

Modaraha Al Maki holds 22 96% of the sham capital of (he Company comprising 2,228,684 cecinary shanes of Rs. 10 each
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March 31, 2003 Juna X, 202

Haots Rupass Riopans
SUKUK PROCEEDS IN ADVANCE
Sukuh proceeds in advance 111 300,020,500
Less: Transferned to Modaraba Al Maki {300,020,500)
Durirsy U paviod, the Boand of Dicectars have Sockded i raise the funds 1o the tune of RS, 408.7E3 milion though (he suance of Perpetual, Fon-

participatory and convertible Sukuks comprsng 40878338 sukuks of RS. 10 each reprasenting 550% of the share capital. These sukuks are
conertile inlo ordinary shares In 1)1 ratio and e same voding righls &3 of axisting ordinany shares. The sukuls are secured against peri passu Eoaling
charge on present and fulure curmend assals of the company. Succesding this proposal by the Board, an amounk of Bg. 300 milion hes been received
from Modaraba Al Mal & advance proceads for sukuks. I timing for issusnce of which ig bo be decided by the Board of Direciors of tha compary
Keaping in view 51 the features of 1he praposed Sukuks as per the barm sheo!, ihese ane classifed a5 sqily instrumeant and shown under B aquity bax
i the skatarmant of Bxancal poston.

However, due 12 uncestain economic indicators, the company has not been granted permission fom the SECP for e issuance of Suluks and
accordnghy the management has cancelied the proposed Bsuance of Sukuks The compary had previoushy obizined the Sukuk procesds from
Modarsta Al Mad for its invesiment requirements in Ensmis (Privale) Limited in pursuance of its business actvias. In this way, the Sukuk proceads for
issuance of proposed Suluks had been adjusted against the investment and the company assumes no obigation to the Modanba Al Mail sfier tha
allogmen of shares of Ensmile (Privale) Limited in its name.

March 31, 2028 June 30, 2027
SHORT TERM LOAN - UNSECURED Nots  Rupses Rupoes

Related partles - associated concerns
Modarzha A Mal 12.1 - BZAG5ETD
L3E Finpnoial Lirited 122 * .

Ty Iwwfmﬂmmwmhmmwwthﬂh
campary which bid bean sasd oft in futl durng e current period

T meoncston 0 his heed of accoand s as Roows:

Balant &8 ot Juby 01 & .
Add. Loan obtanad from the rolated pay 64,975,500
Less: Repayments made dusing the parod [60,009,000)
Less Transierred o Modaraba Al Mak 1222 (4,979,500 ’

The company has franslerred s loan thal was payable b L5SE Financial Services Limilad o
Modaraba Al Mali on March 24, 2023 as decided by the members of tha company I their ECGM
after obleining necessary MGG from the former party,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade credilcrs 7,603 747 .
Accrued eapenses 324,982 225,000
Ircome tax decucied &f saurme payabis HEMT .
Depazis from employees egaingt wahids 211,500 .
Lintritins: agaliia! sefiemanis and condngencies 13.1 . 22454 164

B.454 E46 Fr TR )
Less: Transhemed fo Modarabas &1 Mad (8,454 645) .




131

14

151

169

mw

These fegresanted the abities recognized previousty in connecton with the compensabion payable 1o ex employess of the company who had diamed
. beneffs from the company's old management fngugh fling 2 petifion in he Honorabla Sindh Labour Courl However, thase lablifes had been wrillen
back durirg the perod based on the judgment ol the Honorabie Singh Labour Court dated Seplember 27, 2022 that the ex employees are ngt enlided of
the benefits claimed by them and sccandingly the maior hes bean decided in favour of the company, Accordingly, the relevant provisions crealed in this

fegard have baan wiithen Back boing na mam peyable,

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Thae wire no confngent fanlities and commitments 52 e reportng date. [Jone 30, 2022 Ni.

REVENUE - NET

Fevenie from sendees
Less: Sabes lan
Met Sales

The services of medical consulation and treatmend are exsmpt rom the levy of sales tax under Second
Schaduie of the Puniab Sales Tax on Senaces Ad, 2012

COST OF SALES

R ow mabeial consumed

Surgical / dental fems and consumables
Drrec] wages and salaries

Lritbes

Dfher exparses
Dopreciadion

Raw materal consumad
Dpering. raw materal
Purchasas - Dental aigners
Cosing: raw maderial

ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Zalaries 370 wages
Traveling and Conweryance
Likites

Fees and subscrplon
Postage and ool
Priring and stationary

Legal and professional charges
Audd foe

Inswrance
Rent. rates and tazes
Adsertsement

Othear expenses
Cepracialion on propery and equipment
Prepaid expenses wiitlen off

March 3, 2023

Hote Rupees

13,106 344

Jure 30, 2002
Rupaes

13,106,344

161 557575
1,575,170

7,760,558

s

103,09

4.2 143.243
15,841,802

¥ o E | ] ¥ L]

March 31, 2023
Rupess

5.975.750

=

Juna 30, 2022
Rupess

———R T

4776184

2,400,903

43,850

1,150,000

27 582

52070

171 2,506,085
160,000

18,473

72 5,388,955
7,740,213

2,171,158

d.2 378,083
£0. 488,783

405,330
31,000
3500
25931
300, 00
10, 0

146,426
7,550

%1 - R N -1 1 I8
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These mainky inchude the cosls on account of kwpers, vaksalion e, comporsle senices, court fee, regulslony charges of SECP, Sees paid ko PSX
and COC as well 25 les for e Snanclal aavisory and urdenwniting sendoes.

This inchydes Rs. 2.566.000 charged by the associaled undedaking Modaraba AHMall agns! the e of rented ofice premises awned by te
Modaraba.

March 31, 202 June 30, 2022

16 OTHER INCOME Rupoes Fipins
income from financial assets
Proft an invesimant ! deposits 181 2,138 534 070459
Income from nen-financial assets
0t habiiies writlen back 182  Tei6 3168800
Gan on ransher of business 10,633 863 -
35,481,561 4128058

181

This represenis proft on Sepesis eamed from sharah compiance amangsmants.

182 This amourl represenis ko the account of iabilities egainet seffamants which hava been writien back dudng the pericd due fo ihe reasons disciosed in
note- 131,
15 TAXATION
Cufrent
»  FEETRAT AN 183828
« Final 1ax ragima 1,950,000
M i—_'
20 (LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE Regizes
{Loss) ! samings dor the period | year {73,138, 840) 3882
Weighied average mumber of shames outstandng dunng the perod { year TA432 425 TA32ARS
(Loss) / eamings per share - bas< [5.84) .05

The saming per share fior tha cormesponding pericd has boen mestaled dus ko the acjustnent of bonus fraclion for e bonus shares Bsued during the
poriod. Dduled earmngs pir share has nol been presentad 25 e Company oid not have any convertiole insbuments in isswa as & June 3, 2027 and
March 31, 2023 which would hawe any effect on e (fos5) | @aming per shars if the option fo convert is exarcised

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Partes are said to be reialed i they e able 1 infucnoe the operating and Bnancial decisions of the company. Related paries include associated
compankes, dweciors, key maracemen] personned and employes: banefrs. Culstancing balances and Fransactions with related parfes have sready

been dischosed in e rekevant notes fo Iheses condensed imenm financial stalerents. Other significan] transactions camed oul wibh related paries aro

a5 foliows:

March H, 2023 Jua 30, 3002
Hame of seleted Py Erluiseitip Favte sl ralasanahis Baters o frmonstang Hupren oo
Enmrmin (Privaii] Lirdod A Company F4.23% shandhaid ing B achane of donisl aignen SETRTH
Dvictend roome mosved 11,090,000
Snam of pofi LATEAIT -
Eatur . Mol - Ex-JEC PRI B R Gamemgn Ciecioahip L el - M1
L iyt By Apios el Ericy (T3 A 24
bledarnta B Bla Anpaciip Comainy TEEE % sharbolcing Aanlgremars o Loan oy Ex-LED{1LY) S2 455 YT
Espenacs o g5 pehad of tna Comoany FHSH ]
LSE Franisl Garvicas Limied Aasoialed Company Cameron Dvackrsha Loan Wcevad rom P oy £ 575 500
Adsacated Tomgany Coreron Drsctorsho Brg-warmwe i of lgen B0, 000 00
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231

March 31, 2023 <Jura 30, 2022

Rupeis Fupess
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Humbsar of employses at March 31/ June 30
= Pemmangnt 20
- Confrachaal : z
J E__

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS

o resmuneration was paid b Chief exaculive, Executives and olher Direciors of the company. (June 30, 2022 M), In acdition Io this, ne mesting fes
was paid to the directors of the company and no compansation is being paid o Non-Execusive gireciors of e company,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Compary has exposure to the foliowing risks Fom (s use of financlal instrumaents:
« Creafi riah;

- Liguadity risk,

- arked nigk; and

= Operational sk

The Board ol Directors of the Company has owrall responsibiity for e establishment and oversigh of e Company’s sk managenent framework,
The aceounts departnent of the Company assist ihe Doard in devetaping and monitoring the Comgany's fisk maragensant poicies. Resk management
poicles and systems are reviewed requlary to refiect changes in market conditions 2nd the Company's activiles.

The riek managemant polices of the Company are estabiished to identify and analyze the rzks faced by the Comgany, 10 sel approprials risk Smits and
contrals, snd ko monitor figks and adheranca o limits, end looases on scively securing e Company's shorl 1o medum-tsem cash fows by minimizing
th axposone o financlal markets. The Compary's managament oversees and moniiors compkance with the Company’s sk managament poiices,
procpdunes and reviews: the sdequacy of the rsk managermen framensod in ralagon 1 the fsks faced by (he Company, The Dirsctors: are assisied in
oearsaght nke by e management. Management underakes both regulsr and ad hoc reviens of risk managament controls and procedures, Ihe resull
of which ane reptoed o e Board of Dirsciors.

Credk righ s the risk of Enancial loss 1o the Company If 3 cusiomer o counderpady o a Snanclal ingtnement fails b meed it confraciual obligations on 2
specified heturs dale. To manage credd rigk the Comgpeny mantans procedures covering the applcation ko ot approvals, granding and rencwal of
counlarpaty imits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of thesa prooesses the inancial viaolity of 31 courderparties is reguiarly
meniored and assessed by the compatent authoritles of the Sakes and recovery departments with the approvad of the BCD. The Company is exposed ko
cradi nak from ils operading activilles primarily for local rade debls, advances, doposits, olher recaivablas, balances with banks and other Snancisd
assets. Concardration of cradil sk anses when 3 pumber of coundar paries are engaged in sirvlar busingss aclivibes or have Smilar sconomic fealuses
B would Cause their ab#EeS ko meet conractual cbiigation o ba simllarty effecied by e chanpes in econom:c, political or cther conditons. Thare ace
no significant condentraBons of creds, risk, whather firough exposure to indhddual customears, specdc indusiry sectors and [ or regions.

Tha carryng amount of Enancial assels reprasents the maximum credit sxposure, The madmum exposure W credit risk 3s 2 the end of tha reporting
period was as follows.

March 31, 2023 June 30, 2022

Rupoes Fupsas
Camrylng amount
Trate detts-unsecurad and consigensd good p 2
Advances, deposds, prapayinents and cther receivables 456,688 -
Bank Balances . 121,285,153
459,668 121,285,133
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‘Bank balances

Tha crecet quaity of te Company's cash and cash equivalants, held with varicus commardal banis and fnancial instilufions = asssssed with relerence
ko extemnal cradit ratng thereof, ranging from A&~ 1o Al+ sssigned by tne reputable crecil raling agencies.

Trace debis

Customer is counterpaty 1o local irade debls againet sale of surgical equipments and dental aigners, Saias lmils are estabished for each cuslomer
based on imsemal rating oritesia and reviewsd regulady. Ay sales axcesding hess Emids require special approval of the BOD. Quistanding customer
recandabies ane regliay mondored by the saies and recovery department. The trade dabls are within the age bracket of 90 days.

Concentration to credit risks

Howeaer, I COmparty has no nel on sccount of rage recevabies and tenk belances & S company kad ransfermed all tha baiancois martenss in
cuenent and deposil sccounts and batances recedvablies Trom Urade parties o e Modaraba A Mall 25 on Manch 24_ 2023 as decided by the members of
the company In Teir EOGM

Liquidity risk

Loguidity risk 5 e risk thal an endty wil ancountar difiouty in meeting the cbSgations associaed wilh its Snancial Nabiities thal ane sefled by delivaring
cash or another fnancial assets. or that such obligations wil nave K be setied in a manner uUnfavouratie 1o the Company. Managemant clossly
monies tha Company's fiquidity and cesh fow positon. This inciudes maintenance of slabemenl of Snancial posion Sguidity ratios, doblors and
credhiors concentraton Both o e of e overall landing mix and avoidance of undus miance on large indiidual customens.

The Company manages lguidity risk by maintaining sulfficient cash and the avadabilty of funding theough e adequabe ameunt of commifed crec
tacilthes. The Board of Dieciors has butll an appropriat Rquidity fisk management framawark for te management of the Company's shor, medium ang
lang-teren funding and liguidity managemiort requiraments. The Company manages bquidity sk by maintaining adequate resarves, banking faciites and
reserve bomowing facites, by coniruously monitoring fomcast & aciual cash flows and malching the matunity profles of financial assets and ablites.
The masagament babeves the lguidity risk io be low sincg there is no obligation on padt of thee company a3 af the repcating dele, Folowing ae he
conbraciual mahunities of fnancial ksbiffies. The amoont deciosad in e table ane undiscounted cash Sows.

March 31,200
Contractual Cash Flows
Finaricial Habilltes Carying amoint Tolal Uptooneyear  More than one year
------------------- +1--—--—--—-HI|1|||||.---------"-""-1-—-1----"-1-"
Trate and ofher payabies . - . =
= Emm———
June 30,2023
Contraciusd Cash Flows
Financial Gabilities Carrying amount Todal Upto one year  Mors than one year
S, SRS PR E L
Trage ang cher payasees T 15 25154 25000 " 72404 164
Markel righ

Markel risk is tha risk that the vaiwe of the financal istrumants fuduaie a5 a resull of changes in markel irfarest rales o this market prhica cue o
changt In credi rafing of the issuer of the instrumend, change in marke! serfiments, speculative activeles, supply and demands of securSes and loaidity
in the marksd. Market risk compeises of fhree types of sk namely, interest risk and oiher price risk.

Interast rate rk

Irderect sale vigh reprasent fhe risk el the far vaive of he fubue cash follows of the financlal Instrumaents will fuchaahe becatse of the changes in
markel inferesd rafes, The Company hag o guch risk as the compaay tas no oulstanding inbenes! bearing kans o [he naporing date.
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than arising from the interest and cumancy risk) whather this changes caused by the fackor spacific to the financial instruments or [ts issuge o fachors
etfecing simiar Rnancial instruments traded in financial markets, The Compary ig not exposed to other prce fish ag the company has nd imestmant in
eqiity metnuments sl e reporting date.

Currancy risk
Curmency risk is fha rish that e fair value of hiure cash fows of the fnancial instruments wil Buchuate because of changes i foresgn aachange rales.

Curenty risk ansas mainly from future commangial ransactions or recsivables and payabies that edst due to fransackons in foreign curmencies, The
company ts nol enposed io such risk since the company has no recelvables | paysblas in foreign currency, Atcordingly, the currency risk is minimal

Fair value of financial assets and Eabilities

Fair wa'ue is e price that would be recelved to sell an assat or pad §2 iranstar a Bakd@iby In an orderly fransaction bebwean marked pacicipants af the
measurament date. The carying vafue of sl fnanclal asssls and fabifibes refiected in the fnanclal stalements approsimate thair fair values.
Unidarfying fhe dednition of far valus is [he prasiempton hat the company i 3 Going concarm ang Tens i v intenbion o requirsmant to curlal matakaly
the scale of ils cperaticns of 0 underlake a fransaction on adverse lemms.

A firancial instrument i regarded &5 quated B an achive marked Il quoled prices are readily and regulary avaiatie from an exchange dealer, broker,

industry group, pricing secvice, of regulatory asency, and those srices represent actusl snd regulary ooourming marked fransacions on an am's kength
base,

Fair vahue hiesarchy

IFRS 13 Fae Valor Measpremen!’ requires e company i cassly fair value measunements and b valus hieraschy that reflects he sonificance of e
inpues Used i making the measursmants of fair valua Featarchy has the lolowing levels

Lol 1 Cripbed prces (ueadiusted) In active marked for idenlical assets or Eablifles.

Ll 2 Inputs other than guodad prices included within level 1 thal are observaizle for the assat or labiity, edhar dirscly
(i.8. ag prices) or ingirecty (Le. dive from prices)

Lewed 3 fnpaits far assed o kabity that are not based on chsarvable madket data (unobservable inpuis).

Transher bobwodn kntis of v Gir vaiue histanchy ane recognized a the end of the reporiing period during whach the changes have ocoumed

During the year. thens wera no iransfers between level 1 ang levei 2 fair valua massuremants, and ng Fanshers into and oul of kevel 3 fair vaive
MeaGEmEIL

The Company has not dischosed tha fair values of B financial seosts and Sinancial Eabilbies bocatrse SWer Camang amourds se reasonatie
Bpproximation of i values. A5 a March 31, 2023 and June 30, 2022, the Comgary did not heid any inancial instruments camied at lair valoe

Operational risk

Cparalional rek 5 e sk of direct or Indinect kesses arisng from a wide vaniely of causes associated with the processes, lechndlogies and infrastruciure
supparing (e Company's cpiralion eiher inbernally with In the Company of edemedly ko the Compeny’s service providers, snd from exdemal Tachors
other than credit, marke? and liguedidy risk such as hose anising fnom becal reguistory mquiremnents and pbnerally accepled standards of invesiments and
mianagamant behavior, Oparalion risk axises fromeall of the Company's achilies.

The Company's obiective is to manage operasonal fsk o @& 1o balancs Imiting Snancial losses and damage 1o 88 reputalion and genarating returms
from ke holjers




Tha primany responsshiity for the development and implementation of the controls. over operaional risk rest weh e Board of Dweclors. This
“responsibiidly ercompasses the controls in the following areas

- FRCuingmOnes for the segregolion of duties babwaen vanows binclions, roles and rmsponsbilies,

- rpuitrmmmnts for the: reconcitabion and monfioning of the rarsacions.

- Eompianct wilh e roguiaiony and ol bgsl reqpursments;

- documentstions of conbrois and procadunes;

- Fnquirements for i periodic assescmant of operational nsk faoed, and adequacy of controls and procedures o addness this gk idenfifed

- efhical and busness standards. and

- rich mitigabion, inchading insurance whess effective.

Serene manatament will ensures thal e Company's stall howe adequate raireng and sapanencs and losler efiective: comemnicalion redated io the
operabional risk managoment

Capital risk management

The Board's policy 5 io mainkan 2 sirong capilal base 50 @5 i mainksin creditor and market conlidencs, sustain fulure: developmend of Ihe bussess,
safeguand $e Company's abdity o conlinue 35 a going concem in onder 1o provide The shansholders and benedits for ofer stakeholders snd ko mantsn
cpfTal capital siuciure i reduce the cost of capital, The Boasd of Diseciors meonitors the rehsm on fhe capEial, whch the: Company defines as nel prot
oer taxaton dhided by jotad shaneholders aquity. The Board of Déireciors aiso monilors e kevel of dividend for ordinary shanehalders.

DATE OF AUTHORESATION FOR ISSUE

10 JUL 2093
These financial stakements wem sulhorkoed for ssue by the Board of Diteckoes of e Company o ————

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Cormispanding fgures hine boon reamanged and neclassificd, whersver necessary, of the purpose of bellar presaniation and compansan
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